
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Monday, November 16, 2020 - 5:00 PM

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I. Call Public Mee4ng to Order

II. Execu4ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu4ve Session to discuss the following ma8er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and commi�ees
including the Rockwall Economic Development Corpora�on (REDC) and Board of Adjustments
pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters)

2. Discussion regarding business allowed at the Ralph M. Hall Municipal Airport under state and
federal law, pursuant to Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

3. Discussion regarding legal issues related to personnel ma�ers pursuant to Sec�on 551.071
(Consultation with Attorney).

4. Discussion regarding possible acquisi�on of real property in the vicinity of SH 66 and W.
Washington Street pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property).

5. Discussion regarding legal issues pertaining to poten�al annexa�on/development in the
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) pursuant to Section §551.071 (Attorney/Client Consultation).

III. Adjourn Execu4ve Session

IV. Reconvene Public Mee4ng (6:00 P.M.)

V. Invoca4on and Pledge of Allegiance - Council Member Johannesen
   

VI. Open Forum

VII. Take any Ac4on as a Result of Execu4ve Session

VIII. Consent Agenda

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the November 2, 2020 regular City Council mee�ng, and
take any action necessary.

2. Consider approval of an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances in Chapter 26 “Motor
Vehicles & Traffic”, Ar�cle VII “Stopping, Standing, or Parking,” Sec�on 26-505 “Prohibited in
Specific Places” to include the prohibi�on of parking on South Lakeshore Drive and Summit Ridge,
and take any action necessary. (2nd Reading)

3. Consider entering into a Coopera�ve Purchasing Agreement with the City of Pearland, Texas and
authorizing the City Manager to execute a Coopera�ve Purchasing agreement and take any ac�on
necessary.

4. P2020-044 - Consider a request by Pat Atkins of KPA Consul�ng on behalf of Pat Atkins of
CDGT/Rockwall/2016, LLC for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Saddle Star North
Subdivision consis�ng of 92 single-family residen�al lots on a 44.56-acre tract of land iden�fied as
Tract 3 of the T. R. Bailey Survey, Abstract No. 30, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Planned Development District 80 (PD-80) for Single-Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District land uses, generally
located at the northwest corner of the intersec�on of FM-552 and John King Boulevard, and take
any action necessary.

1



5. P2020-046 - Consider a request by Humberto Johnson of the Skorburg Co. on behalf of the Gideon
Grove Addi�on, LTD for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for Phase 2 of the Gideon Grove
Subdivision consis�ng of 84 single-family residen�al lots on a 30.36-acre tract of land iden�fied as
a por�on of Tract 1-01 of the S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 13, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 84 (PD-84) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District
land uses, generally located at the northwest corner of the intersec�on of E. Quail Run Road and
John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.

IX. Appointment Items

1. Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission chairman to discuss and answer any ques�ons
regarding planning-related cases on the agenda.

2. Appointment with Jim Rosenberg to hear presenta�on regarding a concept plan for Harbor Bay
Marina, and take any action necessary.

X. Public Hearing Items

1. Z2020-043 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Maxwell Fisher, AICP of
Master Plan on behalf of Wolverine Self-Storage Investments-Rockwall EDP, LLC for the approval
of an ordinance amending an existing Specific Use Permit for the purpose of increasing the
number of storage units permitted by Ordinance No. 14-25 to account for the number of storage
units constructed on a 2.857-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block A, Platinum Storage
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, addressed as
1245 SH-276, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

2. Z2020-044 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Casey Cox of Costal Plains
Estates for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residen al Infill in an
Established Subdivision for the purpose of construc�ng a single-family home on a 0.21-acre parcel
of land iden�fied as Lot 24, Block A, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 7, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residen�al land uses,
addressed as 102 Thistle Place, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

3. Z2020-045 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael
Joyce Proper�es, LLC on behalf of Jen-Liang Wu of Unison Investment, LP for the approval of an
ordinance for a Zoning Change from a Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District and Neighborhood Services
(NS) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses on a
121.16-acre tract of land iden�fied as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District and Neighborhood
Services (NS) District, generally located at the southeast corner of the intersec�on of FM-1141 and
FM-552, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

4. Z2020-046 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Mike Whi�le of Whi�le &
Johnson Custom Homes for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for
Residen al Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of construc�ng a single-family home
on a 0.15-acre parcel of land iden�fied as Lot 24, Block E, Chandler’s Landing #16, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residen�al
land uses, addressed as 295 Victory Lane, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

XI. Ac4on Items

1. Discuss and consider the Boydstun reconstruction project, and take any action necessary.
2. Discuss and consider appointments to the city's Park Board and Airport Advisory Board, and take

any action necessary.
XII. Execu4ve Session.

The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu4ve Session to discuss the following ma8er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and commi�ees
including the Rockwall Economic Development Corpora�on (REDC) and Board of Adjustments
pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters)

2



2. Discussion regarding business allowed at the Ralph M. Hall Municipal Airport under state and
federal law, pursuant to Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

3. Discussion regarding legal issues related to personnel ma�ers pursuant to Sec�on 551.071
(Consultation with Attorney).

4. Discussion regarding possible acquisi�on of real property in the vicinity of SH 66 and W.
Washington Street pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property).

5. Discussion regarding legal issues pertaining to poten�al annexa�on/development in the
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) pursuant to Section §551.071 (Attorney/Client Consultation).

XIII. Reconvene Public Mee4ng & Take Any Ac4on as Result of Execu4ve Session

XIV. Adjournment

 This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommoda�ons or interpre�ve services
must be made 48 hours prior to this mee�ng. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at (972) 771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for
further information.

 The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into execu�ve session at any �me to discuss any of the ma�ers listed on
the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code ¶ 551.071 (Consulta�on with A�orney) ¶ 551.072 (Delibera�ons about
Real Property) ¶ 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and ¶ 551.087 (Economic Development)

  I, Kristy Cole, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby certify that this Agenda was posted at City Hall, in a place readily
accessible to the general public at all times, on the 13th of November, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. and remained so posted for at least 72
continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting.

.

    

 Kristy Cole, City Secretary
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect.

 Date Removed

3



1 

 

MINUTES                               
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

Monday, November 02, 2020 ‐ 5:00 PM  
City Hall Council Chambers ‐ 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087  

I.  CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER   
   

Mayor Pruitt called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Jim Pruitt, Mayor Pro Tem 
Kevin Fowler, and Council Members John Hohenshelt, Bennie Daniels, Trace Johannesen, Dana 
Macalik, and Anna Campbell.  Also present were City Manager Rick Crowley, Assistant City Managers 
Mary Smith and Joey Boyd and City Attorney Frank Garza. 

II.  EXECUTIVE SESSION.  
   

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS AUTHORIZED BY 

CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

1.   Discussion  regarding  appointments  to  city  regulatory  boards,  commissions,  and  committees including  the 
Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) and Board of Adjustments pursuant to Section 551.074
(Personnel Matters) 

2.   Discussion regarding legal issues related to personnel matters pursuant to Section 551.071 (Consultation with
Attorney). 

III.  ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

Council adjourned from Ex. Session at 6:05 p.m. 

IV.  RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)  
 

Mayor Pruitt reconvened the public meeting at 6:05 p.m. with all seven council members being 
present. 
 
     

V.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ‐ COUNCIL MEMBER DANIELS

 

Council Member Daniels delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
        
VI.   PROCLAMATIONS/AWARDS

1.   Life Saving Award ‐ Sergeant John Arrowood
 

Mayor Pruitt and Chief Geron called forth Sergeant Arrowood (Marty) to present him with the Life 
Saving  Award  for  his  actions  in  saving  a  life  on  8/29/20.    Chief  Geron  read  the  plaque  and 
congratulated  Sergeant  Arrowood  on  the  award.    The  Mayor  Pruitt  then  thanked  Sergeant 
Arrowood for his service and stated how proud he was of the entire Rockwall Police Department.
Sergeant Arrowood said, “thank you” and that he is very blessed to serve this community. 
 
 

VII.  OPEN FORUM  
 

Mayor Pruitt explained how Open Forum is conducted, asking if anyone would like to come forth and 
speak at this time.  
 

4



2 

 

Bob Wacker 
309 Featherstone 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Wacker came forth and thanked the City of Rockwall for their hard work, and that he enjoys living 
here.  Mr. Wacker then spoke about a “train” event held last Sunday.  His wife, Mrs. Wacker 
(Katherine) organized the event last minute. The parade, with an attendance of approximately 365 
people, started at the new courthouse.   There were many people standing and waving flags along the 
route. He then praised Chief Geron and other Rockwall Police officers, who quickly took swift action 
to address an incident that occurred during the parade.  He went on to thank the citizens of Rockwall,
stating they make it a great place to live. 
 
Mayor Pruitt mentioned that he had recently been in Colorado to help rescue his wife’s uncle from 
the wildfires. He is now living with them.  He had asked the Mayor about the horns blowing on the 
bridge, which were apparently associated with the parade that Mr. Wacker spoke of. 
 
Mayor Pruitt closed the public forum and mentioned the incident last Friday, which involved one our 
police officers who was struck in the chest (he was wearing his bulletproof vest) by a bullet from a 
suspect’s gun. Chief Geron said he sustained minor injuries. He and all of the other Rockwall Police 
officers involved are doing well and in quarantine (per protocol) at this time. The Mayor stated that 
all our prayers are with them. He shared that the City of Rockwall cannot provide any of the event‐
related information regarding the incident, as TXDPS and the Texas Rangers are investigating the 
incident. 

VIII.  TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Fowler made a motion to appoint Shannon Bennett to replace Todd White and 
appoint Glenn Carr to replace Stuart Smith to the Board Adjustments. Council Member Hohenshelt 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously by a vote of 7 ayes with 0 nays. 
Council Member Hohenshelt made a motion to appoint Eric Burress to serve on the city’s Rockwall 
Economic Development Corporation (REDC) for an initial term of 2 years starting January 1, 2021. 
Council Member Daniels seconded the motion which passed unanimously by a vote of 7 ayes with 0 
nays. 
 

IX.  CONSENT AGENDA  

1.   Consider approval of the minutes from the October 19, 2020 regular City Council meeting, and take any action 
necessary. 

2.   Z2020‐039  ‐  Consider  approval  of  an ordinance for  a Text  Amendment to  Article  05, District  Development 
Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20‐02] for the purpose of amending the 
accessory structure standards, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).  

3.   Z2020‐040  ‐  Consider  approval  of  an  ordinance for  a  Text  Amendment to  the  Master  Thoroughfare  Plan 
contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan for the purpose of changing the alignment
and designation of Pecan Valley Drive, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).  

4.   Consider approval of an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances in Chapter 26 “Motor Vehicles & Traffic”,
Article  VII  “Stopping,  Standing,  or  Parking,”  Section  26‐505  “Prohibited  in  Specific  Places”  to  include  the 
prohibition  of  parking  on  South  Lakeshore  Drive  and  Summit  Ridge,  and  take  any  action  necessary.  (1st 
Reading) 

5.   P2020‐039 ‐ Consider a request by Cameron Slown, PE of Teague, Nall & Perkins,  Inc. on behalf of the Nick
DiGiuseppe of Discovery  Lakes,  LLC  for  the approval of  a Master Plat and Open Space Master Plan  for  the 
Discovery  Lakes  Subdivision  consisting  of  428  single‐family  residential  lots  on  a  316.315‐acre  tract  of  land 
identified as Tract 1 of the M. E. Hawkins Survey, Abstract No. 100 and Tract 2 of the R. K. Brisco Survey, Abstract

5



3 

 

No. 16, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 78 (PD‐78) for General 
Retail (GR) District and Single‐Family 10 (SF‐10) District land uses, generally located at the northeast corner of
the intersection of SH‐276 and Rochellee Road, and take any action necessary. 

 
6.   P2020‐040 ‐ Consider a request by Cameron Slown, PE of Teague, Nall & Perkins,  Inc. on behalf of the Nick

DiGiuseppe of Discovery Lakes, LLC for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for Phase 1 of the Discovery Lakes 
Subdivision consisting of 31 single‐family residential lots on a 36.42‐acre tract of land identified as a portion of 
Tract 1 of the M. E. Hawkins Survey, Abstract No. 100, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned
Development  District  78  (PD‐78)  for  Single‐Family  10  (SF‐10)  District  land  uses,  generally  located  on  the 
northside of SH‐276 east of the intersection of SH‐276 and Rochelle Road, and take any action necessary. 

 
7.   P2020‐043 ‐ Consider a request by Tony Degelia of A & W Surveyors, Inc. on behalf of Siren Brewing Company,

LLC for the approval of a Replat for Lot 2 of the Cain Properties No. 1 Addition being a 1.233‐acre parcel of land 
identified  as  Lot  1  of  the  Cain  Properties  No.  1  Addition,  City  of  Rockwall,  Rockwall  County,  Texas,  zoned 
Downtown (DT) District, situated within the SH‐66 Overlay (SH‐66 OV) District, and take any action necessary.

 
8.   P2020‐045 ‐ Consider a request by John F. Dudek for the approval of a Replat for Lot 57 of Chandler’s Landing, 

Phase 2 being a 0.248‐acre  tract of  land  identified as  Lots 35 & 36 of Chandler’s  Landing,  Phase 2, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD‐8) for single‐family residential 
land uses, addressed as 428 Columbia Drive, and take any action necessary. 

9.   Consider awarding a bid to Waukesha Pearce (WPI) and authorizing the City Manager to execute a Contract for
the purchase and install of emergency power generators fixed on site at the Community Building, Soroptimist 
House and Justin Road lift stations for a total amount of $228,050 to be funded out of the Water Sewer Fund,
Sewer Operations Budget, and take any action necessary. 

10.  Consider approval of Engineering Service Agreement with Pipeline Analysis, LLC, to provide engineering services
for Sanitary Sewer Condition Assessments and authorize the City Manager to execute a contract for $152,878,
to be funded by the Water and Sewer Fund, and take any action necessary. 

11.  Consider awarding a bid to Rockdale Country Ford and authorizing the City Manager to execute a Purchase
Order for a new 2021 model truck in the amount of $25,508 to be funded out of the Water Sewer Fund, Sewer
Operations Budget, and take any action necessary. 
 

Council Member Hohenshelt moved to approve the entire Consent Agenda as written, and Council 
Member Macalik seconded the motion (#s 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11). The ordinance captions
were read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 20-44 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE 
NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, 
BY AMENDING SECTION 07.04, ACCESSORY STRUCTURE 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, OF ARTICLE 05, DISTRICT 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, AS DEPCITED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED 
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 20-45 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE MASTER THOROUGHFARE 
PLAN CONTAINED IN THE OURHOMETOWN 2040 COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY’S HOME RULE CHARTER. 

 

6



4 

 

 
CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 20- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, BY AMENDING SECTION 26-505, PROHIBITED IN 
SPECIFIC PLACES, OF ARTICLE VII, STOPPING, STANDING OR 
PARKING, OF CHAPTER 26, MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, TO 
INCORPORATE ADDITIONAL STREETS SUBJECT TO THE PROHIBITED 
PARKING REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT 
TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($200.00) FOR 
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING   FOR   A   SEVERABILITY   CLAUSE;   
PROVIDING   FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed unanimously by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 

X.  ACTION ITEMS  

1.   Discuss and consider Parks & Recreation events for first quarter 2021, and take any action necessary.
 

Travis  Sales  briefed  the  Council  on  the  upcoming  events  in  2021,  which  included  the  Daddy 
Daughter dance and the Special Needs prom dance.  
 
There was no motion made, as Mayor Pruitt stated that a decision to have the above events will
be addressed again at the next month’s City Council Meeting. Mayor Pruitt told Mr. Sales he would 
like  the  Parks  and  Recreation  Department  to  gather  input  from  the  community  regarding  the 
dances.   Mr. Sales  stated  that  the 2021 pool  season  is  set  to be open and  running  this  coming
summer (2021). If they have to adapt, however, they will be able to do so.   
 
Mr. Sales spoke lastly regarding the bridge (game) group who has asked permission to have their 
games at The Lone Star room (at The Center). They have agreed to adhere to COVID‐related rules. 
 
The Council did agree with the bridge group’s request to play their games at The Center. 

 
2.   Discuss and consider a resolution regarding governance of the North Texas Municipal Water District (NTMWD), 

and take any action necessary. 
 

Mayor Pruitt discussed the resolution on the agenda today and the previous resolution (#15‐29) in 
2015. These resolutions give the City Council power to appoint and remove board or commission 
members appointed by the Rockwall City Council specifically noted in the City’s charter. Resolution 
#15‐29 was an agenda  item at  the December 2015 North Texas Municipal Water District Board 
(NTMWD) meeting. The City’s representative voted a “no,” and it failed. The Mayor stated that 
with the lawsuit settled and the legislative session coming up in less than two months, the North 
Texas Municipal Water District Board  (NTMWD) needs  to have  this  item on  its December 2020 
agenda.  This resolution today is asking the board, which is chaired by one of our representatives,
to get a vote as to whether the Water District will support it for the legislative session. 
 
Council Member Trace Johannesen moved to approve the Resolution #20‐15 as written. Council 
Member Macalik seconded the motion, which passed unanimously by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nay. 
 
 
 
 

7



5 

 

XI.  WORK SESSION  
 

1.   Hold a work session to discuss changes to Subsection 06.15, Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline Overlay (TL OV) District, 
of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC). 
 

City Planning Director, Ryan Miller, presented possible changes on the city’s Takeline ordinance
provisions.  General discussion took place pertaining to possible changes; however, Council took 
no action concerning this work session item. 
 

 
2.   Hold work session to discuss strategic plan for the Rockwall Police Department.

 
City Manager, Rick Crowley stated the draft strategic plan for the Rockwall Police Department (year 
2022), has been reviewed by Council Member Hohenshelt.  Council Member Hohenshelt sent his 
comments/recommendations to Mr. Crowley and the Police Department. Mr. Crowley stated that
he and the Police Department will review the recommendations and have responses to present at 
the next City Council meeting.  
 

XII.  CITY MANAGER'S REPORT, DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND RELATED DISCUSSIONS PERTAINING TO CURRENT CITY ACTIVITIES, UPCOMING 

MEETINGS, FUTURE LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES, AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS.  

1.   Building Inspections Monthly Report ‐ September 2020

2.   Fire Department Monthly Report ‐ September 2020

3.   Parks and Recreation Monthly Report ‐ September 2020

4.   Police Department Monthly Report ‐ September 2020

5.   Sales Tax Historical Comparison 

6.   Water Consumption Historical Statistics
 

No discussion / questions took place concerning monthly reports, and no action was taken. 
 

Mr. Crowley addressed the Council about CARE Act funding. He indicated that with very limiting
state regulations, the City could perhaps be able to take advantage of receiving some of the grant
money. For example, the City could try to submit for “straight time” reimbursement for our Police 
and Fire. This is a very positive development for the City of Rockwall. 
 
Mr. Crowley stated the City is going to submit the (grant) application for this funding, and he will 
keep the Council updated on this topic.  

XIII.  EXECUTIVE SESSION.  
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS AUTHORIZED BY 

CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

1.   Discussion  regarding  appointments  to  city  regulatory  boards,  commissions,  and  committees including  the 
Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) and Board of Adjustments pursuant to Section 551.074
(Personnel Matters) 

2.   Discussion regarding legal issues related to personnel matters pursuant to Section 551.071 (Consultation with
Attorney). 

XIV.  RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Council did not reconvene in Executive Session following the close of the public meeting agenda. 

XV.  ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 

 

8



6 

 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, THIS 16th DAY OF 
NOVEMBER 2020. 
 
 

JIM PRUITT, MAYOR 
ATTEST:   

 
 

KRISTY COLE, CITY SECRETARY 

9



 

Ordinance No. 20-46 Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 

 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-46 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, BY AMENDING SECTION 26-505, PROHIBITED IN SPECIFIC 
PLACES, OF ARTICLE VII, STOPPING, STANDING OR PARKING, OF 
CHAPTER 26, MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, TO INCORPORATE 
ADDITIONAL STREETS SUBJECT TO THE PROHIBITED PARKING 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED 
THE SUM OF TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($200.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the citizens of the City of Rockwall approved a Bond Election in 2012 that provided funding for 
the S. Lakeshore Drive and Summit Ridge Drive Reconstruction Project from SH-66 to FM-740 (Ridge 
Road); and, 
 
WHEREAS, City staff held multiple public meetings and determined that the two (2) main concerns 
identified by residents concerning this roadway were [1] increased speeds along the roadway, and [2] the 
excessive volumes of traffic during traffic disruptions occurring on larger nearby roadways (e.g. IH-30, SH-
66, etc.); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s consultant -- Kimley-Horn -- recommend and designed the improvements to include 
narrowed traffic lanes, on-street parking niches, and neighborhood traffic circles to address the residents’ 
concerns with regard to increased speeds; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the narrowed street section does not accommodate for parking outside of the included on-
street parking niches; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Rockwall, Texas, a Home Rule City, by State Law and the City’s Charter is permitted 
to establish ordinances to protect the health, safety and general welfare of its residents; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City has exclusive control and power over the streets, alleys, and public grounds and 
highways of the City pursuant to Transportation Code §311.001, as it may be amended;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. Findings. The recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby incorporated 
as part of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2. That the Section 26-505, Prohibited in Specified Places, of Article VII, Stopping, Standing 
or Parking, of Chapter 26, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, of the Code of Ordinances be hereby amended to 
henceforth to read in its entirety as follows: 
 
SECTION 26-505: Prohibited in specified places 
 
(a) An operator may not stop, stand, or park a vehicle:  
 

(1) On the roadway side of a vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of a street; 
(2) On a sidewalk; 
(3) In an intersection;  
(4) On a crosswalk; 
(5) Between a safety zone and the adjacent curb or within 30 feet of a place on the curb immediately 

opposite the ends of a safety zone, unless the governing body of a municipality designates a 
different length by signs or markings: 

(6) Alongside or opposite a street excavation or obstruction if stopping, standing or parking the 
vehicle would obstruct traffic; 

(7) On a bridge or other elevated structure on a highway or in a highway tunnel; 
(8) On a railroad track; 

10



 

Ordinance No. 20-46 Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 

(9) Where an official sign prohibits stopping; 
(10) On Clark Street, between Williams and E. Boydstun, or Fannin Street, between Washington and 

E. Boydstun, except within the parking niches outside the main roadway lanes; 
(11) On either side of Summer Lee Drive from FM 740 (Ridge Road) west to the western right-of-way 

line of Bourbon Street Circle; or 
(12) On either side of Springer Road, Corporate Crossing, Discovery Boulevard, Data Drive, Capital 

Boulevard, Research Circle, Observation Trail, Science Place, Technology Way, and Innovation 
Drive. 

(13) On either side of South Lakeshore Drive from State Highway 66/West Rusk to the intersection of 
South Lakeshore Drive and Summit Ridge Drive, except within the parking niches outside the 
main roadway lanes. 

(14) On either side of Summit Ridge Drive from the Farm to Market 740/Ridge Road to the intersection 
of South Lakeshore Drive and Summit Ridge Drive, except within the parking niches outside the 
main roadway lanes. 

 
(b) All emergency vehicles shall be exempt from the restrictions set forth in subsection (a) of this section. 

Emergency vehicles shall include ambulances, fire trucks and equipment, paramedic vehicles, police 
vehicles and all governmental vehicles used for necessary governmental purposes.  

 
(c) The City Manager or his designee shall provide for appropriate notice and signage for the parking 

restrictions as contained in this section. The City Manager or his designee shall also be authorized to 
issue citations and perform other enforcement provisions in accordance with this chapter.  

 
(d) No person shall move a vehicle not lawfully under his control into any such prohibited area or away 

from a curb such a distance as is unlawful. 
 
SECTION 3.   That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 
are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict; 
 
SECTION 4.   That the Code of the City of Rockwall, Texas, as amended, shall remain in full force and 
effect, save and except as amended by this ordinance; 
 
SECTION 5.   That should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this ordinance be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid for any purpose by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of 
this ordinance shall not be affected thereby, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared 
to be severable; 
 
SECTION 6.   That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage; 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, THIS THE 
16TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2020. 

 
      

 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 
 
1st Reading: November 2, 2020 
 
2nd Reading: November 16, 2020 

11



MEMORANDUM
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Lea Ann Ewing, Purchasing Agent

DATE: November 16, 2020

SUBJECT: COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT WITH CITY OF PEARLAND

Attachments
Agreement

Summary/Background Information
An Interlocal Purchasing Agreement for participation in a cooperative purchasing program with
the City of Pearland is attached for City Council consideration.

 

The interlocal agreement provides for cooperative purchasing between the Cities of Rockwall
and Pearland for goods, materials and services.  By participating in this cooperative program,
cities realize additional savings through economies of scale when utilizing the coop contracts. 
Another benefit is by piggybacking other cities’ contracts we would meet all the formal bidding
requirements pertaining to contract purchases and eliminate the cost of the competitive bidding
process for the contracted materials and services.  The interlocal agreement would remain in
effect until terminated by either the City of Rockwall or Pearland.

 

Pearland wishes to piggyback our New Edge Technology (CityWorks) software contract. 

 

Action Needed
Staff asks City Council to consider joining this purchasing cooperative by authorizing the City
Manager to execute the cooperative agreement.

 

12



 1 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TX AND  

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TX 

 

 

This Agreement made this ________ day of November 2020, between the City of Pearland, Texas, a 

home-rule municipal corporation located in Brazoria County (“Pearland”), Texas and City of Rockwall, Texas a 

home-rule municipal corporation located in Rockwall County, Texas (“Rockwall”). 

 

 Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Interlocal Cooperation Act (Tex Gov’t Code Ann. 

§791,001, et seq.) providing for the cooperation between local governmental bodies, and pursuant to Subchapter 

F entitled “Cooperative Purchasing Program” containing Sections 271.101 and 271.102 of the Texas Local 

Government Code, the parties hereto, in consideration of the premises and mutual promises contained herein 

agree to as follows; 

 

WHEREAS, the contract is made under the authority of Section 791.001-791.029 of the Texas Government 

Code; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the parties, in performing governmental functions or in paying for the performance of government 

functions hereunder shall make that performance or those payments from current revenues legally available to 

that party; 

 

WHEREAS, the governing bodies of each party find that the subject of this contract is necessary for the benefit 

of the public and that each party has the legal authority to perform and to provide the governmental function or 

service which is the subject matter of this contract; furthermore, the governing bodies find that the performance 

of this contract is in the common interest of both parties; and that the division of cost fairly compensates the 

performing party for the service performed under this contract. 

 

I. 

 

 Each party hereby makes, constitutes and appoints the other party its true and lawful purchasing agent 

for the purchase of various commodities using Annual Contracts (Bids).  Each party will maintain a listing of 

Annual Contracts which are available for the other party’s use.  To utilize one or more of these contracts, each 

party must request authorization, in writing, to the other party.  Upon receipt of request, the receiving party will 

forward a copy of the appropriate Annual Contract to the requesting entity.  Each party agrees that the bidding 

shall be conducted by the other party according to its usual bidding procedures and in accordance with 

applicable State statues. 

 

II. 

 

 Each party agrees that all specifications for selected items shall be as determined by the other party. 

 

 Neither Pearland nor Rockwall shall assume any responsibility or liability to pay for materials purchased 

or services performed for the benefit of the other entity.  In obtaining the services of Contractor through 

Pearland, Rockwall has relied solely on its own inspections, investigations and due diligence regarding the 

13



 2 

services and Rockwall acknowledges that Pearland has made no representations or warranties expressed or 

implied with respect to the services to be rendered. 

 

III. 

 

Each party agrees to pay the supplier for all goods, equipment and products pursuant to this agreement.  

The successful bidder or bidders shall bill each respective party directly for all items purchased and each party 

shall be responsible for vendor’s compliance with all conditions of delivery and quality of the purchased items.   

 

 

IV. 

 

 This Agreement shall be in effect from and after the _______ of November, 2020, the date of execution 

until terminated by either party to the agreement. 

 

 

CITY OF PEARLAND    CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 

 

By: _______________________   By: __________________________ 

 Clay Pearson, City Manager    Rick Crowley, City Manager 

 

 

ATTEST:      ATTEST: 

 

___________________________   ______________________________ 

Crystal Roan, City Secretary    Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________   ______________________________ 

Darrin Coker, City Attorney    Frank Garza, City Attorney 

14



MEMORANDUM
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: November 16, 2020

SUBJECT: P2020-044; PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR THE SADDLE STAR NORTH
SUBDIVISION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Survey
Preliminary Plat
Preliminary Utility and Drainage Plan
Closure Report

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Pat Atkins of KPA Consulting on behalf of Pat Atkins of
CDGT/Rockwall/2016, LLC for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Saddle Star North
Subdivision consisting of 92 single-family residential lots on a 44.56-acre tract of land identified
as Tract 3 of the T. R. Bailey Survey, Abstract No. 30, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 80 (PD-80) for Single-Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District
land uses, generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection of FM-552 and John
King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to [1] approve, [2] approve with condition, or [3] deny
the preliminary plat.

15



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: November 16, 2020 
 

APPLICANT: Pat Atkins; KPA Consulting 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2020-044; Preliminary Plat for the Saddle Star North Subdivision 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Discuss and consider a request by Pat Atkins of KPA Consulting on behalf of Pat Atkins of CDGT/Rockwall/2016, LLC for the 
approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Saddle Star North Subdivision consisting of 92 single-family residential lots on a 44.56-
acre tract of land identified as Tract 3 of the T. R. Bailey Survey, Abstract No. 30, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Planned Development District 80 (PD-80) for Single-Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District land uses, generally located at the 
northwest corner of the intersection of FM-552 and John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The purpose of the applicant’s request is to preliminary plat the Saddle Star North Subdivision.  This subdivision will be 

comprised of 92 single-family residential lots on a 44.56-acre tract of land. This development will be constructed in one (1) 
phase utilizing two (2) lot types that will consist of 50 Type ‘B’ Lots (i.e. 80’ x 125’ or a minimum of 10,000 SF) and 42 
Type ‘C’ Lots (i.e.100’ x 125’ or a minimum of 12,500 SF).  Staff should point out that the proposed preliminary plat 
reduces the number of lots allowed by Ordinance No. 16-08 [Planned Development District 80 (PD-80)] from 109 lots to 
92 lots by eliminating the Type ‘A’ Lots.  According to the ordinance, a total of 12 Type ‘A’ Lots (i.e. 70’ x 125’ or a 
minimum of 8,750 SF) were permitted.  The preliminary plat also decreases the number of Type ‘B’ Lots (i.e. the 80’ x 
125’ lots) from 79 to 64 and increases the number of Type ‘C’ Lots (i.e. 100’ x 125’ lots) from 18 lots to 28 lots.  The total 
change in the lot count amounts to a net loss of 17 lots, which lowers the overall density of the development from 2.45-
dwelling units per acre to 2.06 dwelling units per acre.  Additionally, the amount of open space was increased from 
12.59% (or 5.61-acres) to 14.6% (or 6.508-acres).  Along with the preliminary plat, the applicant has also submitted 
preliminary drainage and utility plans demonstrating how the development can be adequately served.  The following is the 
proposed lot composition of the Saddle Star North Subdivision:   

 
Lot Type Minimum Lot Size (FT) Minimum Lot Size (SF) Dwelling Units (#) Dwelling Units (%) 

B 80’ x 125’ 10,000 SF 50 54.35% 
C 100’ x 125’ 12,500 SF 42 45.65% 

 92 100.00% 
   

 The subject property was annexed by the City Council on February 4, 2008 by Ordinance No. 08-12 [Case No. A2004-
003].  On January 4, 2016, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 16-08 [Case No. Z2015-035] changing the zoning of 
the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to Planned Development District 80 (PD-80) for Single-Family 8.4 
(SF-8.4) District land uses.  On April 4, 2016, the City Council approved a master plat/open space plan [Case No. P2019-
011] and a preliminary plat [Case No. P2016-010] for the Saddle Star North Subdivision.  In accordance with Section 38-
8(f)(2) of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinance, the applicant -- on March 28, 2017 -- requested 
that the Planning and Zoning Commission approve an extension of the preliminary plat and master plat.  This was granted 
and extended these plats to August 15, 2018; however, due to inactivity these plats expired on August 15, 2018 in 
accordance with Section 38-8(f)(1) of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinance. 
 

 On November 3, 2020 the Parks and Recreation Board reviewed the preliminary plat and made the following 
recommendations concerning the proposed subdivision: 
 

16



(1) The developer shall pay pro-rata equipment fees of $39,744.00 (i.e. $432.00 x 92 lots), which will be due at the time 
of final plat.  

 
(2) The developer shall pay cash in lieu of land fees of $41,952.00 (i.e. $456.00 x 92 lots), which will be due at the time 

of final plat.   
 
 The purpose of the preliminary plat is to provide sufficient information to evaluate and review the general design of the 

development ensuring compliance with Planned Development District 80 (PD-80), the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan, the Unified Development Code (UDC), the Master Thoroughfare Plan, and the requirements of 
Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances.  The proposed preliminary plat appears to meet the intent 
of these requirements. 
 

 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the 
requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended 
for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 

 
 Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 

Conditions of Approval section below. 
 

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 
compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the preliminary plat for the Saddle Star North Addition, staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) and Rockwall County shall be 

addressed prior to submittal of civil engineering plans; 
 

(2) The development shall adhere to the recommendations of the Parks and Recreation Board; and 
 

(3) Any construction resulting from the approval of this plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On November 10, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the preliminary 
plat with the conditions of approval by a vote of 7-0. 
 

17



18



19



FM 552

JOH
N K

ING

WO
OD

ED
GR

EEN
WA

Y

HA
YS

CALM CREST

RIDGECROSS

PLEASANT VIEW

AMBER KNOLL

COLBY BLUFF

COUNTRY RIDGE

HUNTERS CREEK

NOAH CREST

SO
LA

RO

VIS
TA

 VI
EW

MOUNTCASTLE

WILDBRIAR

SEN
NA

 HI
LLS

JOH
N K

ING

P2020-044- SADDLE STAR NORTH
PRELIMINARY PLAT - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 260 520 780 1,040130
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I20



21



“ ”
 

22

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
MACYS  CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JULIANA CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RYANS CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSIE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANDREA DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADELINE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRANDENS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADELINE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSLYN CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15B

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN KING BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
120' WIDTH R.O.W. V. 5199, P. 132

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.M. 552

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH R.O.W. STATE OF TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIDDEN VALLEY ESTATES NO. 2 CABINET A, SLIDE 379

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. STRICKLAND SURVEY A-187

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.R. BAILEY SURVEY A-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-187

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.R. BAILEY SURVEY A-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-187

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL CITY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH R.O.W. DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAINTAINED BY HOA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
82,310 SF  1.88 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,445 SF  0.28 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAINTAINED BY HOA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
27,110 SF  0.62 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAINTAINED BY HOA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
212,305 SF  4.87 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAINTAINED BY HOA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
31,652 SF  0.72 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODPLAIN/D.E. (TO BE MAINTAINED BY HOA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLARO LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGECROSS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BREEZY HILL ESTATES NO. IIA & IIB CABINET H, SLIDE 371

AutoCAD SHX Text
BREEZY HILL ESTATES NO. X CABINET J, SLIDE 287

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUNTERS CREEK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLBY BLUFF DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL CITY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT V. 0, PG. 0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
530

AutoCAD SHX Text
530

AutoCAD SHX Text
520

AutoCAD SHX Text
510

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
510

AutoCAD SHX Text
520

AutoCAD SHX Text
520

AutoCAD SHX Text
510

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
490

AutoCAD SHX Text
480

AutoCAD SHX Text
480

AutoCAD SHX Text
490

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
510

AutoCAD SHX Text
520

AutoCAD SHX Text
490

AutoCAD SHX Text
80' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PK NAIL FND

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'x20' S.V.E.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'x20' S.V.E.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'x20' S.V.E.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'x20' S.V.E.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'x20' S.V.E.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'x20' S.V.E.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'x20' S.V.E.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'x20' S.V.E.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'x20' S.V.E.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'x20' S.V.E.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' S.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' S.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' S.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' S.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' S.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' S.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' S.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed Left Turn Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Trans.

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' Storage

AutoCAD SHX Text
R57.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R57.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R57.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R57.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R57.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R57.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R57.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R57.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R57.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
06827\DWG\6827 Preliminary Plat North.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING CONCEPTS & DESIGN, L.P. ENGINEERING/PROJECT MANAGEMENT/CONSTRUCTION SERVICES  TEXAS FIRM REG. NO. 001145 201 WINDCO CIRCLE, SUITE 200, WYLIE TEXAS 75098 (972) 941-8400    FAX (972) 941-8401

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: NOVEMBER 03, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITUATED IN THE T.R. BAILEY SURVEY, A-30 BAILEY SURVEY, A-30 CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASE NO. PP2020-044

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FM 552

AutoCAD SHX Text
DALTON RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SH 205

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. GOLIAD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAYS LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FM 1141

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE RAY HUBBARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N JOHN KING BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPER SADDLE STAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC 3076 HAYS LANE ROCKWALL, TX 75087

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYOR R.C. MYERS SURVEYING, LLC 488 ARROYO COURT SUNNYVALE, TX 75182 (214) 532-0636  FAX (972) 412-4875 EMAIL: rcmsurveying@gmail.com FIRM NO. 10192300 JOB NO. 510

AutoCAD SHX Text
92 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.56 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 COMMON AREA TRACTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SADDLE STAR ESTATES NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS, LLC 2200 ROSS AVE., STE. 4200W  DALLAS, TX 75201

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAT Case No. PP2020-044

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED FOR PRELIMINARY APPROVAL                        Planning and Zoning Commission                  Date APPROVED FOR PREPARATION OF FINAL PLAT                                                                                                                    Mayor, City of Rockwall         City Secretary         City Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text
                 SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE NOW, THEREFORE KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That I, Robert C. Myers, do hereby certify that this plat was prepared from an actual and accurate survey of the land, and that the corner monuments shown thereon were properly placed under my personal supervision. GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL THIS ____ DAY OF OCTOBER, 2020. ROBERT C. MYERS REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR STATE OF TEXAS NO. 3963

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT C. MYERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3963

AutoCAD SHX Text
Preliminary, this document shall not be recorded for any purpose and shall not be used or viewed or relied upon as a final survey document. This preliminary plat is released on February 2016 for review by the City and other parties for comments and progression to an approved preliminary plat.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Notes: 1. Basis of Bearings = State Plane Coordinate System, Texas North Central Zone 4202, North American Datum of 1983, Basis of Bearings = State Plane Coordinate System, Texas North Central Zone 4202, North American Datum of 1983, Adjustment Realization (CORS 2011). 2. A 5/8" iron rod with a yellow cap stamped “RPLS 3963” will be set at all lot corners and/or at reference points to lot A 5/8" iron rod with a yellow cap stamped “RPLS 3963” will be set at all lot corners and/or at reference points to lot RPLS 3963” will be set at all lot corners and/or at reference points to lot  will be set at all lot corners and/or at reference points to lot corners, wherever possible, after the completion of all utilities and subdivision construction.  Offsets to corners will be set  Offsets to corners will be set in areas impeded by retainer walls or other obstacles lying on the actual lot corner. 3. By graphical plotting, no part of the parcel described hereon lies within a Special Flood Hazard Area (SPHA) as By graphical plotting, no part of the parcel described hereon lies within a Special Flood Hazard Area (SPHA) as delineated on the Rockwall County, Texas and Incorporated Areas, Flood Insurance Rate Map, Map Number 48397C0030L, dated September 26, 2008. The Surveyor utilized the above referenced floodplain information for this determination and the Surveyor does not certify that revised floodplain information has or has not been published by FEMA or some other source. on occasion, greater floods can and will occur and flood heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. The above flood statement shall not create liability on the part of the surveyor. 4. All non-standard decorative street signs, poles/posts, hardware, attachments, foundations, etc. shall be owned, All non-standard decorative street signs, poles/posts, hardware, attachments, foundations, etc. shall be owned, maintained, repaired and replaced by the HOA. 5. It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing building permits until all streets, water, sewer and storm It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing building permits until all streets, water, sewer and storm drainage systems have been accepted by the City. The approval of a plat by the City does not constitute any representation, assurance or guarantee that any building within such plat shall be approved, authorized or permit therefore issued, nor shall such approval constitute any representation, assurance or guarantee by the City of the adequacy and availability for water for personal use and fire protection within such plat, as required under Ordinance 83-54. 6. The Open Space Lots to be maintained by the Homeowners Association (HOA). The Open Space Lots to be maintained by the Homeowners Association (HOA). 7. Drainage/Detention and floodplain on site to be maintained by the HOA.Drainage/Detention and floodplain on site to be maintained by the HOA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
92 DWELLING UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.06 UNITS PER ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING DISTRICT: PD-80

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE = 6.508 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRF B.L. S.S.E. D.E. HOA S.V.E. U.E. P.R.R.C.T. D.R.R.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON ROD FOUND  BUILDING SETBACK LINE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT DRAINAGE EASEMENT HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION SIDEWALK AND VISIBILITY EASEMENT UTILITY EASEMENT PLAT RECORDS ROCKWALL  COUNTY, TEXAS DEED RECORDS ROCKWALL  COUNTY, TEXAS INDICATES CHANGE IN STREET NAME 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND



510

510

510520530

520

500

490

480

49
0

50
0

510

52
0

500

500

510

520

490

500

18" R
CP

27" RCP

21
" R

CP

18" RCP

24
" R

CP

24" RCP

18
" R

C
P

18" RCP 18" RCP

18
" R

C
P

24
" R

C
P

24" RCP

18" RCP

2 - 10'x10' RCB

EX. 2 - 9'x8'
R

C
B

1850' OF 8" SAN. TO
SADDLESTAR NORTH
DEVELOPMENT

~

30" RCP

8" SAN.8" SAN.

8"
 S

AN
.

8"
 S

AN
.

8"
 S

AN
. 8"

 S
AN

.
8"

 S
AN

.

8" SAN.

8" SAN.

8" SAN.

8"
 S

AN
.

15
" S

AN
.

8" SAN.

8"
 S

AN
.

8"
 S

AN
.

8" SAN.

15
" S

AN
.

15
" S

AN
.

8" SAN.

8" SAN.

8" SAN.

8" SAN
.

8"
 S

AN
.

15" SAN.

8" SAN.

15" SAN.

15" SAN
.

15" SAN.

~FUTURE 15" SAN.

8" SAN.

8" WTR.

8"
 W

TR
.

8"
 W

TR
.

8"
 W

TR
.

8" WTR.
8" WTR.

8" WTR.

8" WTR.

8"
 W

TR
.

8"
 W

TR
.

8"
 W

TR
.

8"
 W

TR
.

8"
 W

TR
.

8"
 W

TR
.

8" W
TR

.

8" W
TR.

8"
 W

TR
.

8" WTR.

CONNECT TO
EX. 16" WATER
BY BORE

CONNECT TO
EX. 16" WATER
BY BORE

EX. 16" WTR.

EX
. 1

6"
 W

TR
.

EX
. 3

0"
 W

TR
. (

N
TM

W
D

)
EX

. 3
0"

 W
TR

. (
N

TM
W

D
)

EX
. 1

6"
 W

TR
.

100  YR.

FLO
O

DPLAIN

100  YR.

FLO
O

DPLAIN

FH

FH
FHFH

FH

FH

FH

FH

FH FH
FH

FH

FH
FH

FH

FH

FH

EX. 6" FM
EX. 36" STM

EX. 1
8" 

STM

EX
. 2

4"
 S

TM

EX. 36" STM

EX
. 6

" F
M

EX
. 1

0"
 F

M

EX
. 6

" F
M

EX
. 1

0"
 F

M

EX
. 1

0"
 S

AN
.

EX
. 1

0"
 S

AN
.

EX
. 3

0"
 W

TR
. (

N
TM

W
D

)

PROP. RIGHT
TURN LANE

R48.0'

R4
8.

0'

R
48.0'

R48.0'

R48.0'

R4
8.

0'

R48.0'

R4
8.

0'

R48.0'

25'
18' 18'

31'

50'

50'

31'

50'
31'

31'

50'

50'
31'

31'
50'

31'
50'

8" W
TR

.

8" WTR.
(STL. ENCASE.)

8" WTR.

(STL. ENCASE.)

8"
 W

TR
.

(S
TL

. E
NCASE.)

1850' OF 8" SAN. TO
SADDLESTAR NORTH
DEVELOPMENT

8" S
AN.

BREEZY HILL
LIFT STATION

~

BREEZY HILL LIFT STATION SITE

23

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
MACYS  CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
JULIANA CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RYANS CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSIE DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEYTON DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADELINE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRANDENS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADELINE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROSLYN CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15A

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15B

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN KING BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
120' WIDTH R.O.W. V. 5199, P. 132

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.M. 552

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH R.O.W. STATE OF TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIDDEN VALLEY ESTATES NO. 2 CABINET A, SLIDE 379

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. STRICKLAND SURVEY A-187

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.R. BAILEY SURVEY A-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-187

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.R. BAILEY SURVEY A-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-187

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL CITY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAINTAINED BY HOA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
82,310 SF  1.88 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,445 SF  0.28 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAINTAINED BY HOA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
27,110 SF  0.62 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAINTAINED BY HOA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
212,305 SF  4.87 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON AREA 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAINTAINED BY HOA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
31,652 SF  0.72 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODPLAIN/D.E. (TO BE MAINTAINED BY HOA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLARO LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGECROSS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BREEZY HILL ESTATES NO. IIA & IIB CABINET H, SLIDE 371

AutoCAD SHX Text
BREEZY HILL ESTATES NO. X CABINET J, SLIDE 287

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUNTERS CREEK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLBY BLUFF DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Hike & Bike Trail

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Landscape Buffer

AutoCAD SHX Text
120' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL CITY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
120' R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Landscape Buffer

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Hike & Bike Trail

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Landscape Buffer

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Landscape Buffer

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT V. 0, PG. 0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Entry Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text
Entry Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 10" FM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX LIFT STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN KING BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
06812\DWG\6812 PrelimEngr.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING CONCEPTS & DESIGN, L.P. ENGINEERING/PROJECT MANAGEMENT/CONSTRUCTION SERVICES  TEXAS FIRM REG. NO. 001145 201 WINDCO CIRCLE, SUITE 200, WYLIE TEXAS 75098 (972) 941-8400    FAX (972) 941-8401

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: OCTOBER 29, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITUATED IN THE T.R. BAILEY SURVEY, A-30 BAILEY SURVEY, A-30 CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASE NO. PP2020-044

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPER SADDLE STAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC 3076 HAYS LANE ROCKWALL, TX 75087

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYOR R.C. MYERS SURVEYING, LLC 488 ARROYO COURT SUNNYVALE, TX 75182 (214) 532-0636  FAX (972) 412-4875 EMAIL: rcmsurveying@gmail.com FIRM NO. 10192300 JOB NO. 510

AutoCAD SHX Text
92 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.56 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 COMMON AREA TRACTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SADDLE STAR ESTATES NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER SADDLE STAR SOUTH HOLDINGS, LLC 2200 ROSS AVE., STE. 4200W  DALLAS, TX 75201

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAT Case No. PP2020-044

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED FOR PRELIMINARY APPROVAL                        Planning and Zoning Commission                  Date APPROVED FOR PREPARATION OF FINAL PLAT                                                                                                                    Mayor, City of Rockwall         City Secretary         City Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text
92 DWELLING UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.06 UNITS PER ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING DISTRICT: PD-80

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE = 6.508 AC.



Parcel Map Check Report
Prepared by:
Survey Department
Engineering Concepts & Design, LP
201 Windco Circle. Suite 200
Date: 10/15/2020 6:01:27 PM

Parcel Name: Overall of Saddle Star North
Description:
Process segment order counterclockwise: False
Enable mapcheck across chord: False
North:7,040,379.0328'	East:2,595,082.5768'
 	  
Segment# 1: Line	  
Course: N 0° 37' 21.0" W	 Length: 1,591.147'
North: 7,041,970.0859'	 East: 2,595,065.2898'
 	  
Segment# 2: Line	  
Course: N 89° 11' 30.0" E	 Length: 440.166'
North: 7,041,976.2956'	 East: 2,595,505.4120'
 	  
Segment# 3: Line	  
Course: N 89° 16' 17.0" E	 Length: 783.855'
North: 7,041,986.2633'	 East: 2,596,289.2036'
 	  
Segment# 4: Line	  
Course: S 0° 31' 16.6" E	 Length: 1,583.758'
North: 7,040,402.5709'	 East: 2,596,303.6125'
 	  
Segment# 5: Line	  
Course: S 89° 21' 53.0" W	 Length: 668.302'
North: 7,040,395.1611'	 East: 2,595,635.3515'
 	  
Segment# 6: Line	  
Course: S 0° 38' 07.0" E	 Length: 9.999'
North: 7,040,385.1627'	 East: 2,595,635.4624'
 	  
Segment# 7: Line	  
Course: S 89° 21' 53.0" W	 Length: 552.919'
North: 7,040,379.0323'	 East: 2,595,082.5774'
 	  
Perimeter: 5,630.147'	Area: 1,940,502 Sq.Ft.
Error Closure: 0.0008	 Course: S 49° 37' 48.0" E
Error North : -0.00055	East: 0.00064
 	  
Precision 1: 7,037,682.50

24



MEMORANDUM
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: November 16, 2020

SUBJECT: P2020-046;PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR PHASE 2 OF THE GIDEON GROVE
SUBDIVISION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Legal Description
Survey
Preliminary Plat
Preliminary Drainage Plan
Preliminary Utility Plan
Preliminary Landscape Plan

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Humberto Johnson of the Skorburg Co. on behalf of the Gideon Grove
Addition, LTD for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for Phase 2 of the Gideon Grove
Subdivision consisting of 84 single-family residential lots on a 30.36-acre tract of land identified
as a portion of Tract 1-01 of the S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 13, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 84 (PD-84) for Single-Family 7
(SF-7) District land uses, generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection of E.
Quail Run Road and John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to [1] approve, [2] approve with condition, or [3] deny
the preliminary plat.

25



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: November 16, 2020 
 

APPLICANT: Humberto Johnson; Skorburg Co. 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2020-046; Preliminary Plat for Phase 2 of the Gideon Grove Subdivision 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Discuss and consider a request by Humberto Johnson of the Skorburg Co. on behalf of the Gideon Grove Addition, LTD for 
the approval of a Preliminary Plat for Phase 2 of the Gideon Grove Subdivision consisting of 84 single-family residential lots 
on a 30.36-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Tract 1-01 of the S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 13, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 84 (PD-84) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses, 
generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection of E. Quail Run Road and John King Boulevard, and take any 
action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The purpose of the applicant’s request is to preliminary plat Phase 2 of the Gideon Grove Subdivision.  This phase of the 

subdivision is comprised of 84 single-family residential lots on a 30.36-acre tract of land, of which 7.45-acres (i.e. 24.55%) 
will be reserved for open space.  This development will be constructed utilizing two (2) lot types that will consist of 53 
Type ‘A’ Lots (i.e. 60’ x 120’ or a minimum of 7,000 SF) and 31 Type ‘B’ Lots (i.e. 70’ x 120’ or a minimum of 8,400 SF).  
In addition to the preliminary plat, the applicant has also submitted preliminary drainage and utility plans showing how the 
development can be adequately served.  With this submittal, the applicant also submitted a preliminary landscape and 
treescape plan; however, these plans will not be finalized until the PD Site Plan.  The following is the proposed lot 
composition of Phase 2 of the Gideon Grove Subdivision:   

 
Lot Type Minimum Lot Size (FT) Minimum Lot Size (SF) Dwelling Units (#) Dwelling Units (%) 

A 60’ x 120’ 7,000 SF 53 63.10% 
B 70’ x 120’ 8,400 SF 31 36.90% 

  84 100% 
   

 The subject property was annexed by the City Council on April 16, 1998 by Ordinance No. 98-10.  On May 1, 2017, the 
City Council approved Ordinance No. 17-25 [Case No. Z2017-007] changing the zoning of the subject property from an 
Agricultural (AG) District to Planned Development District 84 (PD-84) District for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses.   
 

 On November 3, 2020, the Parks and Recreation Board reviewed the preliminary plat and made the following 
recommendations concerning the proposed subdivision: 
 
(1) The developer shall pay pro-rata equipment fees of $41,076.00 (i.e. $489.00 x 84 lots), which will be due at the time 

of final plat.  
 
(2) The developer shall pay cash-in-lieu of land fees of $43,344.00 (i.e. $516.00 x 84 lots), which will be due at the time 

of final plat.   
 
 The purpose of the preliminary plat is to provide sufficient information to evaluate and review the general design of the 

development ensuring compliance with Planned Development District 84 (PD-84), the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan, the Unified Development Code (UDC), the Master Thoroughfare Plan, and the requirements of 

26



Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances.  The proposed preliminary plat appears to meet the intent 
of these requirements. 
 

 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the 
requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended 
for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 

 
 Conditional approval of this plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 

Conditions of Approval section below. 
 

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 
compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the preliminary plat for Phase 2 of the Gideon Grove Subdivision, staff would propose 
the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) and Rockwall County shall be 

addressed prior to submittal of civil engineering plans; 
 

(2) The landscape and treescape plans shall be resubmitted and approved along with the PD Site Plan; 
 

(3) The development shall adhere to the recommendations of the Parks and Recreation Board; and 
 

(4) Any construction resulting from the approval of this plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On November 10, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the preliminary 
plat with the conditions of approval by a vote of 7-0. 
 
 

27



28



JOHN KING

QUAIL RUN

OL
D Q

UA
IL R

UN
BA

ILE
Y

GIDEON

RA
ND

AS

PHELPS LAKE

GR
OV

ER MIDDLETON

MIRANDA

KIRKWOOD

ROCKING H

JAN
ET

EV
ER

T

NO
RM

AN

CALLING

SARAH

CH
ESA

PE
AK

E

JOHN KING

QUAIL RUN

P2020-046- GIDEON GROVE PHASE 2 
PRELIMINARY PLAT - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 260 520 780 1,040130
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I29



30



31



LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

TRACT 1
CALLED 28.2 ACRES

R & R HANCE INVESTMENTS, L.P.
VOL. 5702, PG. 99

TRACT 2
CALLED 44.3 ACRES

SAVE AND EXCEPT 5 ACRES
R & R HANCE INVESTMENTS, L.P.

VOL. 5702, PG. 99

CITY OF ROCKWALL
VOL. 5443, PG. 188

O.P.R.R.C.T.

JOHN R. YINGLING AND WIFE
LYNELLE C. YINGLING

VOL. 366, PG. 211
O.P.R.R.C.T.

JOHN R. YINGLING
AND WIFE
LYNELLE C.
YINGLING

VOL. 817, PG. 76
O.P.R.R.C.T.

MICHAEL WURSTER AND
JENNIFER WURSTER

DOC. NO. 20200000003578
O.P.R.R.C.T.

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

FH

FH

FH

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM
STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

HERMAN UTLEY
CALLED 2.172 ACRES TRACT

VOLUME 4664, PAGE 273
D.R.R.C.T.

LOT 1, BLOCK A
D.R.TAYLOR ADDITION

D.S.E-317 PRRCT

CITY OF ROCKWALL
CALLED 8.446 ACRE TRACT

VOLUME 5951, PAGE 84
O.P.R.R.C.T.

GIDEON GROVE
PHASE 1

PACESETTER HOMES LLC
29.19 ACRES

JADE DRIVE

RUBY WAY

GEM DRIVE

R
U

B
Y

 W
A

Y

G
E

M
 D

R
IV

E

S
A

P
P

H
IR

E
 R

O
A

D

P
E

B
B

LE
 L

A
N

E

E Q
UAIL 

RUN R
OAD

QUAIL RUN ROAD

EAST QUAIL

JOHN KING BOULEVARD

CURVE TABLE

LINE TABLE

 
 

P2020-046

FORT WORTH  SAN ANTONIO  AUSTIN  HOUSTON  DALLAS

TEXAS BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, FIRM REGISTRATION #470

6500 WEST FWY, STE 700  FORT WORTH, TX 76116  817.870.3668

NOTES
1. DRAINAGE/DETENTION ON SITE TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA
2. OPEN SPACES TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA
3. 10' UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE ALONG ALL STREET FRONTAGE.
4. 20'X20' SIDEWALK AND VISIBILITY EASEMENT CLIPS ARE LOCATED

AT ALL INTERSECTING RESIDENTIAL TO RESIDENTIAL STREETS.
5. 30'X30' ROW CLIP AT ALL INTERSECTIONS WITH JOHN KING AND

QUAIL RUN ROAD.
6. LOTS REQUESTING A REDUCED FRONT  BUILDING LINE SETBACK

OF 15' ARE DENOTED WITH "    "
7. LOTS DENOTED WITH A "   " ARE CLASSIFIED AS A TYPE B LOTS
8. IF NECESSARY, WE PROPOSE THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL

STREET NAMES: VALE ROAD, CLOVE DRIVE, HEIRLOOM LANE,
KINGS COURT, LOVERS ROAD, ASHLAND DRIVE, GNEISS DRIVE,
DACITE LANE, MARBLE ROAD, PUMICE LANE, LUNA LANE, OLIVE
DRIVE, JUNIPER DRIVE, GRAND LANE

 PRELIMINARY PLAT
FOR

GIDEON GROVE
PHASE 2

CONTAINING LOTS 1-12, 1X BLK A; LOTS 1-4,1X, 3X
BLK B; LOTS 1-29, 1X, 18X, 23X, 27X BLK C; LOTS 1-26,

1X, 14X BLK D; LOTS 1-13, 1X, 6X BLK E
FOR A TOTAL OF 84 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND

11 OPEN SPACE LOTS

BEING 30.36 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE
S.R. BARNES SURVEY, ABSTRACT 13

LOCATED IN CITY OF ROCKWALL
 ROCKWALL  COUNTY, TEXAS.

DEVELOPER
SKORBURG COMPANY

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE, SUITE 710
DALLAS, TX 75225

PHONE: (214) 522-4945
EMAIL: JRJOHNSON@SKORBURGCOMPANY.COM

CONTACT: HUMBERTO JOHNSON, JR.

OWNER
GIDEON GROVE ADDITION 2 GP CORPORATION

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE, SUITE 710
DALLAS, TX 75225

PHONE: (214) 522-4945
EMAIL: JARNOLD@SKORBURGCOMPANY.COM

CONTACT: JOHN ARNOLD

32

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'V.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'V.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'V.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'V.S.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100 YR FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100 YR FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST TREE CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PRODUCED FROM MATERIAL THAT WAS STORED AND/OR TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY AND MAY HAVE BEEN INADVERTENTLY ALTERED.  RELY ONLY ON FINAL HARDCOPY MATERIALS BEARING THE CONSULTANT'S ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18X BLK 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLK A, LOT 1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLK C, LOT 27X



EX-SS

EX-SS

EX-SS

E
X

-S
S

E
X

-S
S

E
X

-S
S

EX-SS

EX-SS EX-SS

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

TRACT 1
CALLED 28.2 ACRES

R & R HANCE INVESTMENTS, L.P.
VOL. 5702, PG. 99

TRACT 2
CALLED 44.3 ACRES

SAVE AND EXCEPT 5 ACRES
R & R HANCE INVESTMENTS, L.P.

VOL. 5702, PG. 99

CITY OF ROCKWALL
VOL. 5443, PG. 188

JOHN R. YINGLING AND WIFE
LYNELLE C. YINGLING

VOL. 366, PG. 211
O.P.R.R.C.T.

JOHN R. YINGLING
AND WIFE
LYNELLE C.
YINGLING

VOL. 817, PG. 76
O.P.R.R.C.T.

MICHAEL WURSTER AND
JENNIFER WURSTER

DOC. NO. 20200000003578
O.P.R.R.C.T.

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

FH

FH

FH

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM
STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

EX-W

EX-W

EX-W

EX-W
EX-W EX-W EX-W EX-W

CITY OF ROCKWALL
CALLED 8.446 ACRE TRACT

VOLUME 5951, PAGE 84
O.P.R.R.C.T.

GIDEON GROVE
PHASE 1

PACESETTER HOMES LLC
29.19 ACRES

JADE DRIVE

RUBY WAY

GEM DRIVE

R
U

B
Y

 W
A

Y

G
E

M
 D

R
IV

E

S
A

P
P

H
IR

E
 R

O
A

D

P
E

B
B

LE
 L

A
N

E

E Q
UAIL 

RUN R
OAD

QUAIL RUN ROAD

EAST QUAIL

JOHN KING BOULEVARD

1.83
C

3.00
B

3.06
C4

1.53
C3

1.76
D

3.05
D2

0.77
D3

0.93
B4

3.27
B2

3.05
B3

3.56
E

2.00
F

0.92
A

1.49
C2

 
 

P2020-046

FORT WORTH  SAN ANTONIO  AUSTIN  HOUSTON  DALLAS

TEXAS BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, FIRM REGISTRATION #470

6500 WEST FWY, STE 700  FORT WORTH, TX 76116  817.870.3668

DEVELOPER
SKORBURG COMPANY

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE, SUITE 710
DALLAS, TX 75225

PHONE: (214) 522-4945
EMAIL: JRJOHNSON@SKORBURGCOMPANY.COM

CONTACT: HUMBERTO JOHNSON, JR.

NOTES
1. DRAINAGE/DETENTION ON SITE TO BE

MAINTAINED BY THE HOA
2. OPEN SPACES TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA
3. AREA INLETS ARE TO BE WYE INLETS

PRELIMINARY DRAINAGE PLAN
FOR

GIDEON GROVE
PHASE 2

CONTAINING LOTS 1-12, 1X BLK A; LOTS 1-4,1X, 3X
BLK B; LOTS 1-29, 1X, 18X, 23X, 27X BLK C; LOTS 1-26,

1X, 14X BLK D; LOTS 1-13, 1X, 6X BLK E
FOR A TOTAL OF 84 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND

11 OPEN SPACE LOTS

BEING 30.36 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE
S.R. BARNES SURVEY, ABSTRACT 13

LOCATED IN CITY OF ROCKWALL
ROCKWALL  COUNTY, TEXAS.

OWNER
GIDEON GROVE ADDITION 2 GP CORPORATION

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE, SUITE 710
DALLAS, TX 75225

PHONE: (214) 522-4945
EMAIL: JARNOLD@SKORBURGCOMPANY.COM

CONTACT: JOHN ARNOLD

33

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100 YR FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST 42" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
27X

AutoCAD SHX Text
3X

AutoCAD SHX Text
1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
6X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18X

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PRODUCED FROM MATERIAL THAT WAS STORED AND/OR TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY AND MAY HAVE BEEN INADVERTENTLY ALTERED.  RELY ONLY ON FINAL HARDCOPY MATERIALS BEARING THE CONSULTANT'S ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'



EX-SS

EX-SS

EX-SS

E
X

-S
S

E
X

-S
S

E
X

-S
S

EX-SS

EX-SS EX-SS

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

LP

TRACT 1
CALLED 28.2 ACRES

R & R HANCE INVESTMENTS, L.P.
VOL. 5702, PG. 99

TRACT 2
CALLED 44.3 ACRES

SAVE AND EXCEPT 5 ACRES
R & R HANCE INVESTMENTS, L.P.

VOL. 5702, PG. 99

CITY OF ROCKWALL

JOHN R. YINGLING AND WIFE
LYNELLE C. YINGLING

VOL. 366, PG. 211
O.P.R.R.C.T.

JOHN R. YINGLING
AND WIFE
LYNELLE C.
YINGLING

VOL. 817, PG. 76
O.P.R.R.C.T.

MICHAEL WURSTER AND
JENNIFER WURSTER

DOC. NO. 20200000003578
O.P.R.R.C.T.

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

FH

FH

FH

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM
STORM

STORM

STORM

STORM

EX-W

EX-W

EX-W

EX-W

EX-W EX-W EX-W EX-W

CITY OF ROCKWALL
CALLED 8.446 ACRE TRACT

VOLUME 5951, PAGE 84
O.P.R.R.C.T.

GIDEON GROVE
PHASE 1

PACESETTER HOMES LLC
29.19 ACRES

JADE DRIVE

RUBY WAY

GEM DRIVE

R
U

B
Y

 W
A

Y

G
E

M
 D

R
IV

E

S
A

P
P

H
IR

E
 R

O
A

D

P
E

B
B

LE
 L

A
N

E

E Q
UAIL 

RUN R
OAD

QUAIL RUN ROAD

EAST QUAIL

JOHN KING BOULEVARD

 
 

P2020-046

FORT WORTH  SAN ANTONIO  AUSTIN  HOUSTON  DALLAS

TEXAS BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, FIRM REGISTRATION #470

6500 WEST FWY, STE 700  FORT WORTH, TX 76116  817.870.3668

NOTES
1. DRAINAGE/DETENTION ON SITE TO BE

MAINTAINED BY THE HOA.
2. OPEN SPACES TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA.
3. ALL WATER & SEWER LINES ARE TO BE 8"

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

UTILITY PLAN
FOR

GIDEON GROVE
PHASE 2

CONTAINING LOTS 1-12, 1X BLK A; LOTS 1-4,1X, 3X
BLK B; LOTS 1-29, 1X, 18X, 23X, 27X BLK C; LOTS 1-26,

1X, 14X BLK D; LOTS 1-13, 1X, 6X BLK E
FOR A TOTAL OF 84 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND

11 OPEN SPACE LOTS

BEING 30.36 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE
S.R. BARNES SURVEY, ABSTRACT 13

LOCATED IN CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL
COUNTY, TEXAS.

LEGEND

DEVELOPER
SKORBURG COMPANY

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE, SUITE 710
DALLAS, TX 75225

PHONE: (214) 522-4945
EMAIL: JRJOHNSON@SKORBURGCOMPANY.COM

CONTACT: HUMBERTO JOHNSON, JR.

OWNER
GIDEON GROVE ADDITION 2 GP CORPORATION

8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE, SUITE 710
DALLAS, TX 75225

PHONE: (214) 522-4945
EMAIL: JARNOLD@SKORBURGCOMPANY.COM

CONTACT: JOHN ARNOLD

34

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100 YR FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST 42" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST 12" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST 12" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST 12" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST 10" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST 10" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST 16" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXST WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE OVER EXST SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXST WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK D

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK B

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27X

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK B

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK D

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK E

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23X

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4X

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4X

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27X

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
27X

AutoCAD SHX Text
3X

AutoCAD SHX Text
1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
6X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18X

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 8" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PRODUCED FROM MATERIAL THAT WAS STORED AND/OR TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY AND MAY HAVE BEEN INADVERTENTLY ALTERED.  RELY ONLY ON FINAL HARDCOPY MATERIALS BEARING THE CONSULTANT'S ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX-SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS



8'' SS

10'' SS

10'' SS

10'' SS

10'' SS

10'' SS

10'' SS

10'' SS

10'' SS
10'' SS

10'' SS
10'' SS

10'' SS
10'' SS

10'' S
S

10'' S
S

10'' S
S

10'' S
S

10'' S
S

10'' S
S

10'' S
S

12'' SS 12'' SS 12'' SS

12'' SS 12'' SS 12'' SS 12'' SS 12'' SS 12'' SS
12'' SS

52
5

521

522

523

52
4

52
5

52
6

527

52
3

52
4

52
5

52
6

52
7

52
8

52
9

53
0

52
1

52
2

519

520

521

522

523

524

525

52
6

527

52
8

529

530

530

533

534

535

536

538

538

539

540

54
1

542

54
3

54
4

54
5

546

54
7

54
8

548

54
9

537

538

539

540

541
542

543
544

545

525

526

527

528
529

530

531

532

533

534

535

536

537

538

N. JOHN KING BLVD.

(A VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY)

N
. JO

H
N

 K
IN

G
 BLVD

.
(A VARIABLE W

ID
TH

 RIG
H

T-O
F-W

AY)

TRACT 1
CALLED 28.2 ACRES

R & R HANCE INVESTMENTS, L.P.
VOL. 5702, PG. 99

TRACT 2
CALLED 44.3 ACRES

SAVE AND EXCEPT 5 ACRES
R & R HANCE INVESTMENTS, L.P.

VOL. 5702, PG. 99

30.060 ACRES
GIDEON GROVE ADDITION 2, LTD.

DOC. NO. 20200000007041
O.P.R.R.C.T.

CITY OF ROCKWALL
VOL. 5951, PG. 84

O.P.R.R.C.T.

N. JOHN KING BLVD.

(A VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY)

N
. JO

H
N

 K
IN

G
 BLVD

.
(A VARIABLE W

ID
TH

 RIG
H

T-O
F-W

AY)

12
0'

131'

(6) UC

(6) PC

(8) UC

(6) PC

(3) UC

(4) UC

(52) BFH
(51) NP

(41) BFH (78) IN

(5) LI

(7) LI

(35) NP

(61) EE

(42) LC

(41) LC

(61) EE

(3) PO

(4) TD

(3) PO

(4) TD

(1) PO

(5) QM
(4) TD

(2) PO

(2) QM

(3) TD

(3) PO

(1) TD

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

TURF

(78) EE

(43) NP

(47) LC

(38) SR

(34) IN

(37) NP

(30) EE

(31) SR

(26) BFH

(31) NP

(1) CT

(3) UP

(3) CM

(5) QS

(5) CT (3) EVE

(3) PC
(5) CT

(3) QS

(3) CM

(3) TD

(3) QS

(5) CT

(2) VC (6) HS

(26) RY

(11) RH

(3) QS

(3) UP

(3) QS

(3) PC

(6) TD

(3) QS

(3) UP

(3) QS

(5) TD

(4) QS

(5) TD

(5) CT

(3) EVE

(5) CT

(3) CM

(5) CT

(3) EVE

(5) CT

(3) CM

(5) CT

(3) EVE

(5) CT

(3) CM

(5) CT

(6) HS
(26) RY
(11) RH

(2) VC

TURF

TURF

TURF

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN (TYP)

45' TYP

LANDSCAPE BUFFER
10' MIN.

(92) NP

(40) NP

(61) LC

TURF

TURF TURF

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ROOT BARRIERS NEAR ALL
NEWLY-PLANTED TREES THAT ARE LOCATED WITHIN FIVE (5) FEET OF
PAVING OR CURBS.  ROOT BARRIERS SHALL BE "CENTURY" OR "DEEP-ROOT"
24" DEEP PANELS (OR EQUAL).  BARRIERS SHALL BE LOCATED IMMEDIATELY
ADJACENT TO HARDSCAPE.  INSTALL PANELS PER MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS.  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE
CONTRACTOR USE ROOT BARRIERS OF A TYPE THAT COMPLETELY
ENCIRCLE THE ROOTBALL.

ROOT BARRIERS MULCHES

STEEL EDGING AND MULCH
AREA, 3' DIA., AROUND
TREES IN TURF (TYP.)

LANDSCAPE CALCULATIONS

LANDSCAPE BUFFERS

JOHN KING BOULEVARD
FRONTAGE LENGTH: 2,028 LF
CANOPY TREES REQUIRED: 61 TREES (3 PER 100 LF OF FRONTAGE)
CANOPY TREES PROVIDED: 61 TREES
UNDERSTORY TREES REQUIRED: 82 TREES (4 PER 100 LF OF FRONTAGE)
UNDERSTORY TREES PROVIDED: 82 TREES
SHRUBS REQUIRED: CONTINUOUS HEDGE, 30"-48" IN HT
SHRUBS PROVIDED: PROVIDED AS REQUIRED

E QUAIL RUN ROAD (NORTH SIDE)
FRONTAGE LENGTH: 721 LF
CANOPY TREES REQUIRED: 15 TREES (1 PER 50 LF OF FRONTAGE)
CANOPY TREES PROVIDED: 16 TREES
SHRUBS REQUIRED: CONTINUOUS HEDGE, 30"-48" IN HT
SHRUBS PROVIDED: PROVIDED AS REQUIRED

E QUAIL RUN ROAD (SOUTH SIDE)
FRONTAGE LENGTH: 794 LF
CANOPY TREES REQUIRED: 16 TREES (1 PER 50 LF OF FRONTAGE)
CANOPY TREES PROVIDED: 17 TREES
SHRUBS REQUIRED: CONTINUOUS HEDGE, 30"-48" IN HT
SHRUBS PROVIDED: PROVIDED AS REQUIRED

OLD E QUAIL RUN ROAD
FRONTAGE LENGTH: 958 LF
CANOPY TREES REQUIRED: 39 TREES (1 PER 25 LF OF FRONTAGE)
CANOPY TREES PROVIDED: 35 PROPOSED TREES + 4 EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN
SHRUBS REQUIRED: CONTINUOUS HEDGE, 30"-48" IN HT
SHRUBS PROVIDED: PROVIDED AS REQUIRED

AFTER ALL PLANTING IS COMPLETE, CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL 3" THICK
LAYER OF 1-1/2" SHREDDED WOOD MULCH, NATURAL (UNDYED), OVER
LANDSCAPE FABRIC IN ALL PLANTING AREAS (EXCEPT FOR TURF AND
SEEDED AREAS).  CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT SAMPLES OF ALL MULCHES
TO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND OWNER FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION.  ABSOLUTELY NO EXPOSED GROUND SHALL BE LEFT
SHOWING ANYWHERE ON THE PROJECT AFTER MULCH HAS BEEN INSTALLED
(SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE "GENERAL
GRADING AND PLANTING NOTES" AND SPECIFICATIONS).

KB/RM
MNB

10/28/2020Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project Number

Jo
hn

 K
in

g 
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d 

an
d 

E 
Q

ua
il 

R
un

 R
oa

d
R

oc
kw

al
l, 

TX

G
id

eo
n 

G
ro

ve
 P

ha
se

 2

LP-1

11/03/2020

Date Comment

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

O
w

ne
r 82

14
 W

es
tc

he
st

er
 D

riv
e

D
al

la
s,

 T
X

Sk
or

bu
rg

 C
om

pa
ny

(800) 680-6630
15455 Dallas Pkwy., Ste 600

Addison, TX 75001
www.EvergreenDesignGroup.com

EVERGREEN
D E S I G N    G R O U P

K
EN

TH D. BA
S

EN TE

3 2 4 7

LANDSCAPE
PLAN

NORTH

Scale 1" = 80'

40' 160'80'0'

NOTE:  PRINTED DRAWING SIZE
MAY HAVE CHANGED FROM
ORIGINAL.  VERIFY SCALE USING
BAR SCALE ABOVE.

6' DECORATIVE METAL
FENCE W/ MASONRY

COLUMNS SEE DETAIL B

MONUMENT SIGN
SEE DETAIL A

6' DECORATIVE METAL FENCE
SEE DETAIL C

6' DECORATIVE METAL
FENCE W/ MASONRY

COLUMNS SEE DETAIL B

6' DECORATIVE METAL
FENCE W/ MASONRY

COLUMNS SEE DETAIL B

6' DECORATIVE METAL
FENCE W/ MASONRY

COLUMNS SEE DETAIL B

6' DECORATIVE
METAL FENCE
SEE DETAIL C

6' DECORATIVE
METAL FENCE
SEE DETAIL C

6' DECORATIVE
METAL FENCE
SEE DETAIL C

6' DECORATIVE METAL FENCE
SEE DETAIL C6' DECORATIVE METAL FENCE

SEE DETAIL C

6' DECORATIVE
METAL FENCE
SEE DETAIL C

6' DECORATIVE
METAL FENCE
SEE DETAIL C

6' DECORATIVE
METAL FENCE
SEE DETAIL C

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN (TYP.)

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN (TYP.)

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN (TYP.)

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN (TYP.)

PROPOSED 10'
SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 10'
SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 10'
SIDEWALK

CANOPY TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME CONT CAL SIZE

PC 18 PISTACIA CHINENSIS CHINESE PISTACHE CONT. 3" CAL MIN 10` - 12` HT. MIN.

PO 12 PLATANUS OCCIDENTALIS AMERICAN SYCAMORE CONT. 3" CAL MIN 10` - 12` HT. MIN.

QM 7 QUERCUS MACROCARPA BURR OAK CONT. 3" CAL MIN 10` - 12` HT. MIN.

QS 27 QUERCUS SHUMARDII SHUMARD RED OAK CONT. 3" CAL MIN 10` - 12` HT. MIN.

TD 35 TAXODIUM DISTICHUM BALD CYPRESS CONT. 3" CAL MIN 10` - 12` HT. MIN.

UC 21 ULMUS CRASSIFOLIA CEDAR ELM CONT. 3" CAL MIN 10` - 12` HT. MIN.

UP 9 ULMUS X `HOMESTEAD` HOMESTEAD ELM CONT. 3" CAL MIN 10` - 12` HT. MIN.

UNDERSTORY TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME CONT CAL SIZE

CM 15 CRATAEGUS MOLLIS DOWNY HAWTHORNE CONT. 2" CAL MIN 6`-8` HT

CT 51 CERCIS CANADENSIS TEXENSIS TEXAS REDBUD CONT. 3-5 CANES, 2" CAL OVERALL 6`-8` HT MIN

EVE 12 SOPHORA AFFINIS EVE`S NECKLACE CONT. 1.5"CAL 6-8` HT.

LI 12 LAGERSTROEMIA INDICA `WATERMELON RED` CRAPE MYRTLE CONT. 3-5 CANES, 2" CAL OVERALL 6`-8` HT MIN

VC 4 VITEX AGNUS-CASTUS CHASTE TREE CONT. 3-5 CANES, 2" CAL OVERALL 6`-8` HT MIN

SHRUBS CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME CONT SPACING SIZE

BFH 119 ILEX CORNUTA `BUFORDII` BURFURD HOLLY 5 GAL 42" OC 30" HT MIN

EE 229 ELAEAGNUS X EBBINGEI ELAEGANUS 5 GAL 48" OC 30" HT MIN

HS 12 HIBISCUS SYRIACUS ROSE OF SHARON 5 GAL 48" OC 30" HT MIN

IN 112 ILEX X `NELLIE R. STEVENS` NELLIE R. STEVENS HOLLY 5 GAL 48" OC 30" HT MIN

LC 231 LORAPETULUM CHINENSIS CHINESE FRINGE FLOWER 5 GAL 36" OC 30" HT MIN

NP 324 NERIUM OLEANDER `PETITE PINK` PETITE PINK OLEANDER 5 GAL 42" OC 30" HT MIN

RH 22 RAPHIOLEPSIS INDICA INDIAN HAWTHORNE 5 GAL 36" OC 18" HT MIN

RY 52 HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA RED YUCCA 5 GAL 30" OC 18" HT MIN

SR 69 SPIRAEA CANTONIENSIS BRIDAL VEIL SPIREA 5 GAL 48" OC 30" HT MIN

GROUND COVERS CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME CONT SIZE SPACING

TURF 282,187 SF CYNODON DACTYLON `TIF 419` BERMUDA GRASS SOD

PLANT SCHEDULE

PRELIMINARY PLAT NO.: P2020-046

VICINITY MAP

PROJECT
LOCATION

35



PLANT SPACING
SCALE: NTSC

4

X

2X

3

2

1

5

6

7

4

1

2

3

SHRUB, PERENNIAL, OR ORNAMENTAL GRASS.

MULCH, TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS.  PLACE NO
MORE THAN 1" OF MULCH WITHIN 6" OF PLANT
CENTER.

FINISH GRADE.

BACKFILL.  AMEND AND FERTILIZE ONLY AS
RECOMMENDED IN SOIL FERTILITY ANALYSIS.

ROOT BALL.

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL.

3" HIGH EARTHEN WATERING BASIN.

5

6

7

SHRUB AND PERENNIAL PLANTING
SCALE: NTSB

8 WEED FABRIC UNDER MULCH.

8

PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

FINISH GRADE.4

4

3

2

1

NOTES:
1) INSTALL EDGING SO THAT STAKES WILL BE ON INSIDE OF PLANTING BED.
2) BOTTOM OF EDGING SHALL BE BURIED A MINIMUM OF 1" BELOW FINISH GRADE.
3) TOP OF MULCH SHALL BE 1" LOWER THAN TOP OF EDGING.

MULCH, TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS.3

TAPERED STEEL STAKES.2

ROLLED-TOP STEEL EDGING PER PLANS.1

D SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

STEEL EDGING TREE PLANTING
SCALE: NOT TO SCALEA

PLANT CENTER (TYP.)

EQ
U

AL

EQUAL

EQ
UA

L

EDGE OF PLANTING AREA

EQUAL

NOTE:  ALL PLANTS SHALL BE PLANTED AT EQUAL TRIANGULAR SPACING (EXCEPT WHERE SHOWN ON PLANS AS
INFORMAL GROUPINGS).  REFER TO PLANT LEGEND FOR SPACING DISTANCE BETWEEN PLANTS.

1)  STEP 1: DETERMINE TOTAL PLANTS  FOR THE AREA WITH THE FOLLOWING FORMULA:
TOTAL AREA / AREA DIVIDER = TOTAL PLANTS

PLANT SPACING AREA DIVIDER PLANT SPACING AREA DIVIDER
6" 0.22 18" 1.95
8" 0.39 24" 3.46
10" 0.60 30" 5.41
12" 0.87 36" 7.79
15" 1.35

2)  STEP 2:  SUBTRACT THE ROW (S) OF PLANTS THAT WOULD OCCUR AT THE EDGE OF THE PLANTED AREA WITH
THE FOLLOWING FORMULA:  TOTAL PERIMETER LENGTH / PLANT SPACING = TOTAL PLANT SUBTRACTION

EXAMPLE:  PLANTS AT 18" O.C. IN 100 SF PLANTING AREA, 40 LF PERIMETER
STEP 1:  100 SF/1.95 = 51 PLANTS
STEP 2:  51 PLANTS - (40 LF / 1.95 = 21 PLANTS) = 30 PLANTS TOTAL

5

6

7

4

1

8

9

11

10

12

PREVAILING
WINDS

NOTES:
1. SCARIFY SIDES OF PLANTING PIT PRIOR TO SETTING TREE.
2. REMOVE EXCESS SOIL APPLIED ON TOP OF THE ROOTBALL THAT

COVERS THE ROOT FLARE.  THE PLANTING HOLE DEPTH SHALL BE
SUCH THAT THE ROOTBALL RESTS ON UNDISTURBED SOIL, AND THE
ROOT FLARE IS 2"-4" ABOVE FINISH GRADE.

3. FOR B&B TREES, CUT OFF BOTTOM 1/3 OF WIRE BASKET BEFORE
PLACING TREE IN HOLE, CUT OFF AND REMOVE REMAINDER OF
BASKET AFTER TREE IS SET IN HOLE,  REMOVE ALL NYLON TIES,
TWINE, ROPE, AND OTHER PACKING MATERIAL.  REMOVE AS MUCH
BURLAP FROM AROUND ROOTBALL AS IS PRACTICAL.

4. REMOVE ALL NURSERY STAKES AFTER PLANTING.
5. FOR TREES 36" BOX/2.5" CAL. AND LARGER, USE THREE STAKES OR

DEADMEN (AS APPROPRIATE), SPACED EVENLY AROUND TREE.
6. STAKING SHALL BE TIGHT ENOUGH TO PREVENT TRUNK FROM

BENDING, BUT LOOSE ENOUGH TO ALLOW SOME TRUNK MOVEMENT
IN WIND.

1

2

3

TREE CANOPY.

CINCH-TIES (24" BOX/2" CAL. TREES AND SMALLER) OR
12 GAUGE GALVANIZED WIRE WITH NYLON TREE
STRAPS AT TREE AND STAKE (36" BOX/2.5" CAL. TREES
AND LARGER).  SECURE TIES OR STRAPS TO TRUNK
JUST ABOVE LOWEST MAJOR BRANCHES.

GREEN STEEL T-POSTS.  EXTEND POSTS 12" MIN. INTO
UNDISTURBED SOIL.

24" X 3/4" P.V.C. MARKERS OVER WIRES.

PRESSURE-TREATED WOOD DEADMAN, TWO PER
TREE (MIN.).  BURY OUTSIDE OF PLANTING PIT AND
18" MIN. INTO UNDISTURBED SOIL.

MULCH, TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS.  DO NOT
PLACE MULCH WITHIN 6" OF TRUNK.

FINISH GRADE.

BACKFILL.  AMEND AND FERTILIZE ONLY AS
RECOMMENDED IN SOIL FERTILITY ANALYSIS.

ROOT BALL.

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL.

4" HIGH EARTHEN WATERING BASIN.

TRUNK FLARE.

CONIFEROUS
TREE

PREVAILING
WINDS

STAKING EXAMPLES (PLAN VIEW)

2

4

6

7

8

9

10

11

1

4

3X ROOTBALL DIA.

5

2

3

5

12

NON-CONIFEROUS
TREE

13

13 FINISH GRADE.

ROOT BARRIER - PLAN VIEW
SCALE: NOT TO SCALEE

GENERAL

A. QUALIFICATIONS OF LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR
1. ALL LANDSCAPE WORK SHOWN ON THESE PLANS SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A SINGLE FIRM

SPECIALIZING IN LANDSCAPE PLANTING.
2. A LIST OF SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETED PROJECTS OF THIS TYPE, SIZE AND NATURE MAY BE

REQUESTED BY THE OWNER FOR FURTHER QUALIFICATION MEASURES.
3. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL HOLD A VALID NURSERY AND FLORAL CERTIFICATE ISSUED BY

THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, AS WELL AS OPERATE UNDER A COMMERCIAL PESTICIDE
APPLICATOR LICENSE ISSUED BY EITHER THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE OR THE TEXAS
STRUCTURAL PEST CONTROL BOARD.

B. SCOPE OF WORK
1. WORK COVERED BY THESE SECTIONS INCLUDES THE FURNISHING AND PAYMENT OF ALL MATERIALS,

LABOR, SERVICES, EQUIPMENT, LICENSES, TAXES AND ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT ARE NECESSARY FOR
THE EXECUTION, INSTALLATION AND COMPLETION OF ALL WORK, SPECIFIED HEREIN AND / OR SHOWN
ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS, NOTES, AND DETAILS.

2. ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, CODES AND
REGULATIONS REQUIRED BY AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER SUCH WORK, INCLUDING ALL
INSPECTIONS AND PERMITS REQUIRED BY FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES IN SUPPLY,
TRANSPORTATION AND INSTALLATION OF MATERIALS.

3. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE LOCATION OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES
(WATER, SEWER, ELECTRICAL, TELEPHONE, GAS, CABLE, TELEVISION, ETC.) PRIOR TO THE START OF
ANY WORK.

PRODUCTS

A. ALL MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS SHALL BE NEW.
B. CONTAINER AND BALLED-AND-BURLAPPED PLANTS:

1. FURNISH NURSERY-GROWN PLANTS COMPLYING WITH ANSI Z60.1-2014.  PROVIDE WELL-SHAPED, FULLY
BRANCHED, HEALTHY, VIGOROUS STOCK FREE OF DISEASE, INSECTS, EGGS, LARVAE, AND DEFECTS
SUCH AS KNOTS, SUN SCALD, INJURIES, ABRASIONS, AND DISFIGUREMENT.  ALL PLANTS WITHIN A
SPECIES SHALL HAVE SIMILAR SIZE, AND SHALL BE OF A FORM TYPICAL FOR THE SPECIES.  ALL TREES
SHALL BE OBTAINED FROM SOURCES WITHIN 200 MILES OF THE PROJECT SITE, AND WITH SIMILAR
CLIMACTIC CONDITIONS.

2. ROOT SYSTEMS SHALL BE HEALTHY, DENSELY BRANCHED ROOT SYSTEMS, NON-POT-BOUND, FREE
FROM ENCIRCLING AND/OR GIRDLING ROOTS, AND FREE FROM ANY OTHER ROOT DEFECTS (SUCH AS
J-SHAPED ROOTS).

3. TREES MAY BE PLANTED FROM CONTAINERS OR BALLED-AND-BURLAPPED (B&B), UNLESS SPECIFIED
ON THE PLANTING LEGEND.  BARE-ROOT TREES ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE.

4. ANY PLANT DEEMED UNACCEPTABLE BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER SHALL BE
IMMEDIATELY REMOVED FROM THE SITE AND SHALL BE REPLACED WITH AN ACCEPTBLE PLANT OF LIKE
TYPE AND SIZE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S OWN EXPENSE.  ANY PLANTS APPEARING TO BE UNHEALTHY,
EVEN IF DETERMINED TO STILL BE ALIVE, SHALL NOT BE ACCEPTED.  THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND
OWNER SHALL BE THE SOLE JUDGES AS TO THE ACCEPTABILITY OF PLANT MATERIAL.

5. ALL TREES SHALL BE STANDARD IN FORM, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.  TREES WITH CENTRAL
LEADERS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED IF LEADER IS DAMAGED OR REMOVED.  PRUNE ALL DAMAGED TWIGS
AFTER PLANTING.

6. CALIPER MEASUREMENTS FOR STANDARD (SINGLE TRUNK) TREES SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:  SIX INCHES
ABOVE THE ROOT FLARE FOR TREES UP TO AND INCLUDING FOUR INCHES IN CALIPER, AND TWELVE
INCHES ABOVE THE ROOT FLARE FOR TREES EXCEEDING FOUR INCHES IN CALIPER.

7. MULTI-TRUNK TREES SHALL BE MEASURED BY THEIR OVERALL HEIGHT, MEASURED FROM THE TOP OF
THE ROOT BALL.  WHERE CALIPER MEASUREMENTS ARE USED, THE CALIPER SHALL BE CALCULATED
AS ONE-HALF OF THE SUM OF THE CALIPER OF THE THREE LARGEST TRUNKS.

8. ANY TREE OR SHRUB SHOWN TO HAVE EXCESS SOIL PLACED ON TOP OF THE ROOT BALL, SO THAT
THE ROOT FLARE HAS BEEN COMPLETELY COVERED, SHALL BE REJECTED.

C. SOD:  PROVIDE WELL-ROOTED SOD OF THE VARIETY NOTED ON THE PLANS.  SOD SHALL BE CUT FROM
HEALTHY, MATURE TURF WITH SOIL THICKNESS OF 3/4" TO 1".  EACH PALLET OF SOD SHALL BE
ACCOMPANIED BY A CERTIFICATE FROM SUPPLIER STATING THE COMPOSITION OF THE SOD.

D. TOPSOIL:  SANDY TO CLAY LOAM TOPSOIL, FREE OF STONES LARGER THAN ½ INCH, FOREIGN MATTER,
PLANTS, ROOTS, AND SEEDS.

E. COMPOST:  WELL-COMPOSTED, STABLE, AND WEED-FREE ORGANIC MATTER, pH RANGE OF 5.5 TO 8;
MOISTURE CONTENT 35 TO 55 PERCENT BY WEIGHT; 100 PERCENT PASSING THROUGH 3/4-INCH SIEVE;
SOLUBLE SALT CONTENT OF 5 TO 10 DECISIEMENS/M; NOT EXCEEDING 0.5 PERCENT INERT CONTAMINANTS
AND FREE OF SUBSTANCES TOXIC TO PLANTINGS.  NO MANURE OR ANIMAL-BASED PRODUCTS SHALL BE
USED.

F. FERTILIZER:  GRANULAR FERTILIZER CONSISTING OF NITROGEN, PHOSPHORUS, POTASSIUM, AND OTHER
NUTRIENTS IN PROPORTIONS, AMOUNTS, AND RELEASE RATES RECOMMENDED IN A SOIL REPORT FROM A
QUALIFIED SOIL-TESTING AGENCY (SEE BELOW).

G. MULCH:  SIZE AND TYPE AS INDICATED ON PLANS, FREE FROM DELETERIOUS MATERIALS AND SUITABLE AS A
TOP DRESSING OF TREES AND SHRUBS.

H. TREE STAKING AND GUYING
1. STAKES:  6' LONG GREEN METAL T-POSTS.
2. GUY AND TIE WIRE:  ASTM A 641, CLASS 1, GALVANIZED-STEEL WIRE, 2-STRAND, TWISTED, 0.106 INCH

DIAMETER.
3. STRAP CHAFING GUARD:  REINFORCED NYLON OR CANVAS AT LEAST 1-1/2 INCH WIDE, WITH

GROMMETS TO PROTECT TREE TRUNKS FROM DAMAGE.
I. STEEL EDGING:  PROFESSIONAL STEEL EDGING, 14 GAUGE THICK X 4 INCHES WIDE, FACTORY PAINTED DARK

GREEN.  ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS INCLUDE COL-MET OR APPROVED EQUAL.
J. PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDES:  ANY GRANULAR, NON-STAINING PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDE THAT IS LABELED

FOR THE SPECIFIC ORNAMENTALS OR TURF ON WHICH IT WILL BE UTILIZED.  PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDES
SHALL BE APPLIED PER THE MANUFACTURER'S LABELED RATES.

METHODS

A. SOIL PREPARATION
1. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THAT THE GRADE OF ALL

LANDSCAPE AREAS ARE WITHIN +/-0.1' OF FINISH GRADE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE
OWNER IMMEDIATELY SHOULD ANY DISCREPANCIES EXIST.

2. SOIL TESTING:
a. AFTER FINISH GRADES HAVE BEEN ESTABLISHED, CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE SOIL SAMPLES

FROM THE PROJECT'S LANDSCAPE AREAS TESTED BY AN ESTABLISHED SOIL TESTING
LABORATORY.  EACH SAMPLE SUBMITTED TO THE LAB SHALL CONTAIN NO LESS THAN ONE
QUART OF SOIL, TAKEN FROM BETWEEN THE SOIL SURFACE AND 6" DEPTH.  IF NO SAMPLE
LOCATIONS ARE INDICATED ON THE PLANS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE A MINIMUM OF THREE
SAMPLES FROM VARIOUS REPRESENTATIVE LOCATIONS FOR TESTING.

b. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE THE SOIL TESTING LABORATORY PROVIDE RESULTS FOR THE
FOLLOWING:  SOIL TEXTURAL CLASS, GENERAL SOIL FERTILITY, pH, ORGANIC MATTER CONTENT,
SALT (CEC), LIME, SODIUM ADSORPTION RATIO (SAR) AND BORON CONTENT.

c. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO SUBMIT THE PROJECT'S PLANT LIST TO THE LABORATORY ALONG
WITH THE SOIL SAMPLES.

d. THE SOIL REPORT PRODUCED BY THE LABORATORY SHALL CONTAIN RECOMMENDATIONS FOR
THE FOLLOWING (AS APPROPRIATE):  SEPARATE SOIL PREPARATION AND BACKFILL MIX
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR GENERAL ORNAMENTAL PLANTS, XERIC PLANTS, TURF, AND NATIVE
SEED, AS WELL AS PRE-PLANT FERTILIZER APPLICATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ANY
OTHER SOIL RELATED ISSUES.  THE REPORT SHALL ALSO PROVIDE A FERTILIZER PROGRAM FOR
THE ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD AND FOR LONG-TERM MAINTENANCE.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL SOIL AMENDMENTS AND FERTILIZERS PER THE SOILS REPORT
RECOMMENDATIONS.  ANY CHANGE IN COST DUE TO THE SOIL REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS, EITHER
INCREASE OR DECREASE, SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE OWNER WITH THE REPORT.

4. FOR BIDDING PURPOSES ONLY, THE SOIL PREPARATION SHALL CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:
a. TURF:  INCORPORATE THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS INTO THE TOP 8" OF SOIL BY MEANS OF

ROTOTILLING AFTER CROSS-RIPPING:
i. NITROGEN STABILIZED ORGANIC AMENDMENT - 4 CU. YDS. PER 1,000 S.F.
ii. PREPLANT TURF FERTILIZER (10-20-10 OR SIMILAR, SLOW RELEASE, ORGANIC) - 15 LBS PER 1,000

S.F.
iii. "CLAY BUSTER" OR EQUAL - USE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED RATE
b. TREES, SHRUBS, AND PERENNIALS:  INCORPORATE THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS INTO THE TOP

8" OF SOIL BY MEANS OF ROTOTILLING AFTER CROSS-RIPPING:
i. NITROGEN STABILIZED ORGANIC AMENDMENT - 4 CU. YDS. PER 1,000 S.F.
ii. 12-12-12 FERTILIZER (OR SIMILAR, ORGANIC, SLOW RELEASE) - 10 LBS. PER CU. YD.
iii. "CLAY BUSTER" OR EQUAL - USE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED RATE
iv. IRON SULPHATE - 2 LBS. PER CU. YD.

5. IN THE CONTEXT OF THESE PLANS, NOTES, AND SPECIFICATIONS, "FINISH GRADE" REFERS TO THE
FINAL ELEVATION OF THE SOIL SURFACE (NOT TOP OF MULCH) AS INDICATED ON THE GRADING PLANS.
a. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THAT THE ROUGH

GRADES OF ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS ARE WITHIN +/-0.1' OF FINISH GRADE.  SEE SPECIFICATIONS
FOR MORE DETAILED INSTRUCTION ON TURF AREA AND PLANTING BED PREPARATION.

b. CONSTRUCT AND MAINTAIN FINISH GRADES AS SHOWN ON GRADING PLANS, AND CONSTRUCT
AND MAINTAIN SLOPES AS RECOMMENDED BY THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.  ALL LANDSCAPE
AREAS SHALL HAVE POSITIVE DRAINAGE AWAY FROM STRUCTURES AT THE MINIMUM SLOPE
SPECIFIED IN THE REPORT AND ON THE GRADING PLANS, AND AREAS OF POTENTIAL PONDING
SHALL BE REGRADED TO BLEND IN WITH THE SURROUNDING GRADES AND ELIMINATE PONDING
POTENTIAL.

c. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT THE EXPORT OF ANY SOIL
WILL BE NEEDED, TAKING INTO ACCOUNT THE ROUGH GRADE PROVIDED, THE AMOUNT OF SOIL
AMENDMENTS TO BE ADDED (BASED ON A SOIL TEST, PER SPECIFICATIONS), AND THE FINISH
GRADES TO BE ESTABLISHED.

d. ENSURE THAT THE FINISH GRADE IN SHRUB AREAS IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO WALKS AND
OTHER WALKING SURFACES, AFTER INSTALLING SOIL AMENDMENTS, IS 3" BELOW THE ADJACENT
FINISH SURFACE, IN ORDER TO ALLOW FOR PROPER MULCH DEPTH.  TAPER THE SOIL SURFACE
TO MEET FINISH GRADE, AS SPECIFIED ON THE GRADING PLANS, AT APPROXIMATELY 18" AWAY
FROM THE WALKS.

e. ENSURE THAT THE FINISH GRADE IN TURF AREAS IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO WALKS AND
OTHER WALKING SURFACES, AFTER INSTALLING SOIL AMENDMENTS,  IS 1" BELOW THE FINISH
SURFACE OF THE WALKS.  TAPER THE SOIL SURFACE TO MEET FINISH GRADE, AS SPECIFIED ON
THE GRADING PLANS, AT APPROXIMATELY 18" AWAY FROM THE WALKS.

f. SHOULD ANY CONFLICTS AND/OR DISCREPANCIES ARISE BETWEEN THE GRADING PLANS,
GEOTECHNICAL REPORT, THESE NOTES AND PLANS, AND ACTUAL CONDITIONS, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY BRING SUCH ITEMS TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT, GENERAL CONTRACTOR, AND OWNER.

6. ONCE SOIL PREPARATION IS COMPLETE, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT THERE
ARE NO DEBRIS, TRASH, OR STONES LARGER THAN 1" REMAINING IN THE TOP 6" OF SOIL.

B. SUBMITTALS
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SUBMITTALS AND SAMPLES, IF REQUIRED, TO THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT, AND RECEIVE APPROVAL IN WRITING FOR SUCH SUBMITTALS BEFORE WORK COMMENCES.
2. SUBMITTALS SHALL INCLUDE PHOTOS OF PLANTS WITH A RULER OR MEASURING STICK FOR SCALE,

PHOTOS OR SAMPLES OF ANY REQUIRED MULCHES, AND SOIL TEST RESULTS AND PREPARATION
RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE TESTING LAB (INCLUDING COMPOST AND FERTILIZER RATES AND
TYPES, AND OTHER AMENDMENTS FOR TREE/SHRUB, TURF, AND SEED AREAS AS MAY BE
APPROPRIATE).

3. SUBMITTALS SHALL ALSO INCLUDE MANUFACTURER CUT SHEETS FOR PLANTING ACCESSORIES SUCH
AS TREE STAKES AND TIES, EDGING, AND LANDSCAPE FABRICS (IF ANY).

4. WHERE MULTIPLE ITEMS ARE SHOWN ON A PAGE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEARLY INDICATE THE
ITEM BEING CONSIDERED.

C. GENERAL PLANTING
1. REMOVE ALL NURSERY TAGS AND STAKES FROM PLANTS.
2. EXCEPT IN AREAS TO BE PLANTED WITH ORNAMENTAL GRASSES, APPLY PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDES

AT THE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED RATE.
3. TRENCHING NEAR EXISTING TREES:

a. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT DISTURB ROOTS 1-1/2" AND LARGER IN DIAMETER WITHIN THE CRITICAL
ROOT ZONE (CRZ) OF EXISTING TREES, AND SHALL EXERCISE ALL POSSIBLE CARE AND
PRECAUTIONS TO AVOID INJURY TO TREE ROOTS, TRUNKS, AND BRANCHES.  THE CRZ IS
DEFINED AS A CIRCULAR AREA EXTENDING OUTWARD FROM THE TREE TRUNK, WITH A RADIUS
EQUAL TO 1' FOR EVERY 1" OF TRUNK DIAMETER-AT-BREAST-HEIGHT (4.5' ABOVE THE AVERAGE
GRADE AT THE TRUNK).

b. ALL EXCAVATION WITHIN THE CRZ SHALL BE PERFORMED USING HAND TOOLS.  NO MACHINE
EXCAVATION OR TRENCHING OF ANY KIND SHALL BE ALLOWED WITHIN THE CRZ.

c. ALTER ALIGNMENT OF PIPE TO AVOID TREE ROOTS 1-1/2" AND LARGER IN DIAMETER.  WHERE
TREE ROOTS 1-1/2" AND LARGER IN DIAMETER ARE ENCOUNTERED IN THE FIELD, TUNNEL UNDER
SUCH ROOTS.  WRAP EXPOSED ROOTS WITH SEVERAL LAYERS OF BURLAP AND KEEP MOIST.
CLOSE ALL TRENCHES WITHIN THE CANOPY DRIP LINES WITHIN 24 HOURS.

d. ALL SEVERED ROOTS SHALL BE HAND PRUNED WITH SHARP TOOLS AND ALLOWED TO AIR-DRY.
DO NOT USE ANY SORT OF SEALERS OR WOUND PAINTS.

D. TREE PLANTING
1. TREE PLANTING HOLES SHALL BE EXCAVATED TO MINIMUM WIDTH OF TWO TIMES THE WIDTH OF THE

ROOTBALL, AND TO A DEPTH EQUAL TO THE DEPTH OF THE ROOTBALL LESS TWO TO FOUR INCHES.
2. SCARIFY THE SIDES AND BOTTOM OF THE PLANTING HOLE PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF THE TREE.

REMOVE ANY GLAZING THAT MAY HAVE BEEN CAUSED DURING THE EXCAVATION OF THE HOLE.
3. FOR CONTAINER AND BOX TREES, TO REMOVE ANY POTENTIALLY GIRDLING ROOTS AND OTHER ROOT

DEFECTS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SHAVE A 1" LAYER OFF OF THE SIDES AND BOTTOM OF THE
ROOTBALL OF ALL TREES JUST BEFORE PLACING INTO THE PLANTING PIT.  DO NOT "TEASE" ROOTS
OUT FROM THE ROOTBALL.

4. INSTALL THE TREE ON UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE SO THAT THE TOP OF THE ROOTBALL IS TWO TO
FOUR INCHES ABOVE THE SURROUNDING GRADE.

5. BACKFILL THE TREE HOLE UTILIZING THE EXISTING TOPSOIL FROM ON-SITE.  ROCKS LARGER THAN 1"
DIA. AND ALL OTHER DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SOIL PRIOR TO THE BACKFILL.  SHOULD
ADDITIONAL SOIL BE REQUIRED TO ACCOMPLISH THIS TASK, USE STORED TOPSOIL FROM ON-SITE OR
IMPORT ADDITIONAL TOPSOIL FROM OFF-SITE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.  IMPORTED
TOPSOIL SHALL BE OF SIMILAR TEXTURAL CLASS AND COMPOSITION IN THE ON-SITE SOIL.

6. TREES SHALL NOT BE STAKED UNLESS LOCAL CONDITIONS (SUCH AS HEAVY WINDS OR SLOPES)
REQUIRE STAKES TO KEEP TREES UPRIGHT.  SHOULD STAKING BE REQUIRED, THE TOTAL NUMBER OF
TREE STAKES (BEYOND THE MINIMUMS LISTED BELOW) WILL BE LEFT TO THE LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR'S DISCRETION.  SHOULD ANY TREES FALL OR LEAN, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR
SHALL STRAIGHTEN THE TREE, OR REPLACE IT SHOULD IT BECOME DAMAGED.  TREE STAKING SHALL
ADHERE TO THE FOLLOWING GUIDELINES:
a. 1"-2" TREES TWO STAKES PER TREE
b. 2-1/2"-4" TREES THREE STAKES PER TREE
c. TREES OVER 4" CALIPER GUY AS NEEDED
d. MULTI-TRUNK TREES THREE STAKES PER TREE MINIMUM, QUANTITY AND POSITIONS AS

NEEDED TO STABILIZE THE TREE
e. MULTI-TRUNK TREES THREE STAKES PER TREE MINIMUM, QUANTITY AND POSITIONS AS

NEEDED TO STABILIZE THE TREE
7. UPON COMPLETION OF PLANTING, CONSTRUCT AN EARTH WATERING BASIN AROUND THE TREE.

COVER THE INTERIOR OF THE TREE RING WITH THE WEED BARRIER CLOTH AND TOPDRESS WITH
MULCH (TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS).

E. SHRUB, PERENNIAL, AND GROUNDCOVER PLANTING
1. DIG THE PLANTING HOLES TWICE AS WIDE AND 2" LESS DEEP THAN EACH PLANT'S ROOTBALL.  INSTALL

THE PLANT IN THE HOLE.  BACKFILL AROUND THE PLANT WITH SOIL AMENDED PER SOIL TEST
RECOMMENDATIONS.

2. INSTALL THE WEED BARRIER CLOTH, OVERLAPPING IT AT THE ENDS.  UTILIZE STEEL STAPLES TO KEEP
THE WEED BARRIER CLOTH IN PLACE.

3. WHEN PLANTING IS COMPLETE, INSTALL MULCH (TYPE AND DEPTH PER PLANS) OVER ALL PLANTING
BEDS, COVERING THE ENTIRE PLANTING AREA.

F. SODDING
1. SOD VARIETY TO BE AS SPECIFIED ON THE LANDSCAPE PLAN.
2. LAY SOD WITHIN 24 HOURS FROM THE TIME OF STRIPPING.  DO NOT LAY IF THE GROUND IS FROZEN.
3. LAY THE SOD TO FORM A SOLID MASS WITH TIGHTLY FITTED JOINTS.  BUTT ENDS AND SIDES OF SOD

STRIPS - DO NOT OVERLAP.  STAGGER STRIPS TO OFFSET JOINTS IN ADJACENT COURSES.
4. ROLL THE SOD TO ENSURE GOOD CONTACT OF THE SOD'S ROOT SYSTEM WITH THE SOIL

UNDERNEATH.
5. WATER THE SOD THOROUGHLY WITH A FINE SPRAY IMMEDIATELY AFTER PLANTING TO OBTAIN AT

LEAST SIX INCHES OF PENETRATION INTO THE SOIL BELOW THE SOD.
G. MULCH

1. INSTALL MULCH TOPDRESSING, TYPE AND DEPTH PER MULCH NOTE, IN ALL PLANTING AREAS AND
TREE RINGS.

2. DO NOT INSTALL MULCH WITHIN 6" OF TREE ROOT FLARE AND WITHIN 24" OF HABITABLE STRUCTURES,
EXCEPT AS MAY BE NOTED ON THESE PLANS.  MULCH COVER WITHIN 6" OF CONCRETE WALKS AND
CURBS SHALL NOT PROTRUDE ABOVE THE FINISH SURFACE OF THE WALKS AND CURBS. MULCH
COVER WITHIN 12" OF WALLS SHALL BE AT LEAST 3" LOWER THAN THE TOP OF WALL.

H. CLEAN UP
1. DURING LANDSCAPE PREPARATION AND PLANTING, KEEP ALL PAVEMENT CLEAN AND ALL WORK AREAS

IN A NEAT, ORDERLY CONDITION.
2. DISPOSED LEGALLY OF ALL EXCAVATED MATERIALS OFF THE PROJECT SITE.

I. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE
1. UPON COMPLETION OF THE WORK, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE THE SITE CLEAN,

FREE OF DEBRIS AND TRASH, AND SUITABLE FOR USE AS INTENDED.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR
SHALL THEN REQUEST AN INSPECTION BY THE OWNER TO DETERMINE FINAL ACCEPTABILITY.

2. WHEN THE INSPECTED PLANTING WORK DOES NOT COMPLY WITH THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, THE
LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE AND/OR REPAIR THE REJECTED WORK TO THE OWNER'S
SATISFACTION WITHIN 24 HOURS.

3. THE LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PERIOD WILL NOT COMMENCE UNTIL THE LANDSCAPE WORK HAS
BEEN RE-INSPECTED BY THE OWNER AND FOUND TO BE ACCEPTABLE.  AT THAT TIME, A WRITTEN
NOTICE OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE WILL BE ISSUED BY THE OWNER, AND THE MAINTENANCE AND
GUARANTEE PERIODS WILL COMMENCE.

J. LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
1. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF ALL WORK SHOWN

ON THESE PLANS FOR 90 DAYS BEYOND FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF ALL LANDSCAPE WORK BY THE
OWNER.  LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SHALL INCLUDE WEEKLY SITE VISITS FOR THE FOLLOWING
ACTIONS (AS APPROPRIATE):  PROPER PRUNING, RESTAKING OF TREES, RESETTING OF PLANTS THAT
HAVE SETTLED, MOWING AND AERATION OF LAWNS, WEEDING, TREATING FOR INSECTS AND
DISEASES,REPLACEMENT OF MULCH, REMOVAL OF LITTER, REPAIRS TO THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM DUE
TO FAULTY PARTS AND/OR WORKMANSHIP, AND THE APPROPRIATE WATERING OF ALL PLANTINGS.
THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM IN PROPER WORKING
ORDER, WITH SCHEDULING ADJUSTMENTS BY SEASON TO MAXIMIZE WATER CONSERVATION.

2.  SHOULD SEEDED AND/OR SODDED AREAS NOT BE COVERED BY AN AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM,
THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR WATERING THESE AREAS AND OBTAINING
A FULL, HEALTHY STAND OF PLANTS AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

3. TO ACHIEVE FINAL ACCEPTANCE AT THE END OF THE MAINTENANCE PERIOD, ALL OF THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS MUST OCCUR:
a. THE LANDSCAPE SHALL SHOW ACTIVE, HEALTHY GROWTH (WITH EXCEPTIONS MADE FOR

SEASONAL DORMANCY).  ALL PLANTS NOT MEETING THIS CONDITION SHALL BE REJECTED AND
REPLACED BY HEALTHY PLANT MATERIAL PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.

b. ALL HARDSCAPE SHALL BE CLEANED PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.
c. SODDED AREAS MUST BE ACTIVELY GROWING  AND MUST REACH A MINIMUM HEIGHT OF 1 1/2

INCHES BEFORE FIRST MOWING.  BARE AREAS LARGER THAN TWELVE SQUARE INCHES MUST BE
RESODDED (AS APPROPRIATE) PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE.  ALL SODDED TURF SHALL BE
NEATLY MOWED.

K. WARRANTY PERIOD, PLANT GUARANTEE AND REPLACEMENTS
1. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ALL TREES, SHRUBS, PERENNIALS, SOD, AND

IRRIGATION SYSTEMS FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR FROM THE DATE OF THE OWNER'S FINAL
ACCEPTANCE (90 DAYS FOR ANNUAL PLANTS).  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE, AT HIS OWN
EXPENSE AND TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE OWNER, ANY PLANTS WHICH DIE IN THAT TIME, OR
REPAIR ANY PORTIONS OF THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM WHICH OPERATE IMPROPERLY.

2. AFTER THE INITIAL MAINTENANCE PERIOD AND DURING THE GUARANTEE PERIOD, THE LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR SHALL ONLY BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REPLACEMENT OF PLANTS WHEN PLANT DEATH
CANNOT BE ATTRIBUTED DIRECTLY TO OVERWATERING OR OTHER DAMAGE BY HUMAN ACTIONS.

L. PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF (2) COPIES OF RECORD DRAWINGS TO THE OWNER UPON COMPLETION OF WORK.  A
RECORD DRAWING IS A RECORD OF ALL CHANGES THAT OCCURRED IN THE FIELD AND THAT ARE
DOCUMENTED THROUGH CHANGE ORDERS, ADDENDA, OR CONTRACTOR/CONSULTANT DRAWING MARKUPS.

TYPICAL CURB AND GUTTER

TYPICAL PLANTING AREA

LINEAR ROOT BARRIER MATERIAL. SEE
PLANTING NOTES FOR TYPE AND
MANUFACTURER.  INSTALL PER
MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.

TREE CANOPY

TREE TRUNK

TYPICAL WALKWAY OR PAVING1

2

3

4

5

6

1

4

2

3

5

6

5'
5'

5'
5'

OPEN LANDSCAPE
TO 10'

PARKWAY
OR ISLAND

NOTES:
1) INSTALL ROOT BARRIERS NEAR ALL

NEWLY-PLANTED TREES THAT ARE LOCATED
WITHIN FIVE (5) FEET OF PAVING OR CURBS.

2) BARRIERS SHALL BE LOCATED IMMEDIATELY
ADJACENT TO HARDSCAPE.   UNDER NO
CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CONTRACTOR
USE ROOT BARRIERS OF A TYPE THAT
COMPLETELY ENCIRCLE THE ROOTBALL.

KB/RM
MNB

10/28/2020Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project Number

Jo
hn

 K
in

g 
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d 

an
d 

E 
Q

ua
il 

R
un

 R
oa

d
R

oc
kw

al
l, 

TX

G
id

eo
n 

G
ro

ve
 P

ha
se

 2

LP-2

11/03/2020

Date Comment

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

O
w

ne
r 82

14
 W

es
tc

he
st

er
 D

riv
e

D
al

la
s,

 T
X

Sk
or

bu
rg

 C
om

pa
ny

(800) 680-6630
15455 Dallas Pkwy., Ste 600

Addison, TX 75001
www.EvergreenDesignGroup.com

EVERGREEN
D E S I G N    G R O U P

K
EN

TH D. BA
S

EN TE

3 2 4 7

LANDSCAPE
DETAILS &

SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL GRADING AND PLANTING NOTES
1. BY SUBMITTING A PROPOSAL FOR THE LANDSCAPE PLANTING SCOPE OF WORK, THE CONTRACTOR CONFIRMS THAT HE

HAS READ, AND WILL COMPLY WITH, THE ASSOCIATED NOTES, SPECIFICATIONS, AND DETAILS WITH THIS PROJECT.
2. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING ALL EXISTING VEGETATION (EXCEPT WHERE NOTED TO

REMAIN).
3. IN THE CONTEXT OF THESE PLANS, NOTES, AND SPECIFICATIONS, "FINISH GRADE" REFERS TO THE FINAL ELEVATION OF

THE SOIL SURFACE (NOT TOP OF MULCH) AS INDICATED ON THE GRADING PLANS.
a. BEFORE STARTING WORK, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THAT THE ROUGH GRADES OF ALL

LANDSCAPE AREAS ARE WITHIN +/-0.1' OF FINISH GRADE.  SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR MORE DETAILED INSTRUCTION
ON TURF AREA AND PLANTING BED PREPARATION.

b. CONSTRUCT AND MAINTAIN FINISH GRADES AS SHOWN ON GRADING PLANS, AND CONSTRUCT AND MAINTAIN
SLOPES AS RECOMMENDED BY THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.  ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL HAVE POSITIVE
DRAINAGE AWAY FROM STRUCTURES AT THE MINIMUM SLOPE SPECIFIED IN THE REPORT AND ON THE GRADING
PLANS, AND AREAS OF POTENTIAL PONDING SHALL BE REGRADED TO BLEND IN WITH THE SURROUNDING GRADES
AND ELIMINATE PONDING POTENTIAL.

c. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT THE EXPORT OF ANY SOIL WILL BE NEEDED,
TAKING INTO ACCOUNT THE ROUGH GRADE PROVIDED, THE AMOUNT OF SOIL AMENDMENTS TO BE ADDED (BASED
ON A SOIL TEST, PER SPECIFICATIONS), AND THE FINISH GRADES TO BE ESTABLISHED.

d. ENSURE THAT THE FINISH GRADE IN SHRUB AREAS IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO WALKS AND OTHER WALKING
SURFACES, AFTER INSTALLING SOIL AMENDMENTS, IS 3" BELOW THE ADJACENT FINISH SURFACE, IN ORDER TO
ALLOW FOR PROPER MULCH DEPTH.  TAPER THE SOIL SURFACE TO MEET FINISH GRADE, AS SPECIFIED ON THE
GRADING PLANS, AT APPROXIMATELY 18" AWAY FROM THE WALKS.

e. ENSURE THAT THE FINISH GRADE IN TURF AREAS IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO WALKS AND OTHER WALKING
SURFACES, AFTER INSTALLING SOIL AMENDMENTS,  IS 1" BELOW THE FINISH SURFACE OF THE WALKS.  TAPER THE
SOIL SURFACE TO MEET FINISH GRADE, AS SPECIFIED ON THE GRADING PLANS, AT APPROXIMATELY 18" AWAY
FROM THE WALKS.

f. SHOULD ANY CONFLICTS AND/OR DISCREPANCIES ARISE BETWEEN THE GRADING PLANS, GEOTECHNICAL REPORT,
THESE NOTES AND PLANS, AND ACTUAL CONDITIONS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY BRING SUCH ITEMS
TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT, GENERAL CONTRACTOR, AND OWNER.

4. ALL PLANT LOCATIONS ARE DIAGRAMMATIC.  ACTUAL LOCATIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED WITH THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
OR DESIGNER PRIOR TO PLANTING.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE
PERMITTING AUTHORITY ARE MET (I.E., MINIMUM PLANT QUANTITIES, PLANTING METHODS, TREE PROTECTION METHODS,
ETC.).
a. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING PLANT QUANTITIES; PLANT QUANTITIES SHOWN

ON LEGENDS AND CALLOUTS ARE FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY.  IN THE EVENT OF A DISCREPANCY BETWEEN
THE PLAN AND THE PLANT LEGEND, THE PLANT QUANTITY AS SHOWN ON THE PLAN (FOR INDIVIDUAL SYMBOLS) OR
CALLOUT (FOR GROUNDCOVER  PATTERNS) SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE.

b. NO SUBSTITUTIONS OF PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE ALLOWED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  IF SOME OF THE PLANTS ARE NOT AVAILABLE, THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL
NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IN WRITING (VIA PROPER CHANNELS).

c. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL, AT A MINIMUM, PROVIDE REPRESENTATIVE PHOTOS OF ALL PLANTS PROPOSED FOR THE
PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALLOW  THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND THE OWNER/OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE TO INSPECT, AND APPROVE OR REJECT, ALL PLANTS DELIVERED TO THE JOBSITE.  REFER TO
SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBMITTALS.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE LANDSCAPE IN A HEALTHY CONDITION FOR 90 DAYS AFTER ACCEPTANCE BY THE
OWNER.  REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONDITIONS OF ACCEPTANCE FOR THE START OF THE MAINTENANCE PERIOD,
AND FOR  FINAL ACCEPTANCE AT THE END OF THE MAINTENANCE PERIOD.

6. SEE SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS FOR FURTHER REQUIREMENTS.

IRRIGATION CONCEPT
1. AN AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE INSTALLED AND OPERATIONAL BY

THE TIME OF FINAL INSPECTION.  THE ENTIRE IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE
INSTALLED BY A LICENSED AND QUALIFIED IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR.

2. THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM WILL OPERATE ON POTABLE WATER, AND THE SYSTEM
WILL HAVE APPROPRIATE BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICES INSTALLED TO
PREVENT CONTAMINATION OF THE POTABLE SOURCE.

3. ALL NON-TURF PLANTED AREAS SHALL BE DRIP IRRIGATED.  SODDED AND
SEEDED AREAS SHALL BE IRRIGATED WITH SPRAY OR ROTOR HEADS AT 100%
HEAD-TO-HEAD COVERAGE.

4. ALL PLANTS SHARING SIMILAR HYDROZONE CHARACTERISTICS SHALL BE PLACED
ON A VALVE DEDICATED TO PROVIDE THE NECESSARY WATER REQUIREMENTS
SPECIFIC TO THAT HYDROZONE.

5. THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED, TO THE MAXIMUM
EXTENT POSSIBLE, TO CONSERVE WATER BY USING THE FOLLOWING DEVICES
AND SYSTEMS:  MATCHED PRECIPITATION RATE TECHNOLOGY ON ROTOR AND
SPRAY HEADS (WHEREVER POSSIBLE), RAIN SENSORS, AND MULTI-PROGRAM
COMPUTERIZED IRRIGATION CONTROLLERS FEATURING SENSORY INPUT
CAPABILITIES.

PRELIMINARY PLAT NO.: P2020-046
36



KB/RM
MNB

10/28/2020Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project Number

Jo
hn

 K
in

g 
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d 

an
d 

E 
Q

ua
il 

R
un

 R
oa

d
R

oc
kw

al
l, 

TX

G
id

eo
n 

G
ro

ve
 P

ha
se

 2

LP-3

11/03/2020

Date Comment

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

O
w

ne
r 82

14
 W

es
tc

he
st

er
 D

riv
e

D
al

la
s,

 T
X

Sk
or

bu
rg

 C
om

pa
ny

(800) 680-6630
15455 Dallas Pkwy., Ste 600

Addison, TX 75001
www.EvergreenDesignGroup.com

EVERGREEN
D E S I G N    G R O U P

K
EN

TH D. BA
S

EN TE

3 2 4 7

LANDSCAPE
DETAILS

A MONUMENT SIGN DETAIL

C 6' DECORATIVE METAL FENCE

2" NOM.

6' - 0"

FOOTING PER
MANUFACTURER'S

& STRUCTURAL ENGINEER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS

5"
11

4" x 15
16" RAIL

POST 2"    x 16 GA.

5
8"      18GA PICKET

TYPICAL33
4"

8' O.C. NOM.

6' SQUARE BLACK TUBULAR STEEL
FENCE

FLUSH BOTTOM RAIL

B 6' DECORATIVE METAL FENCE WITH MASONRY COLUMN

GIDEON GROVE

PRELIMINARY PLAT NO.: P2020-046
37



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
MEMORANDUM  

  
 
TO:              Honorable Mayor and City Council         
 
CC:              Rick Crowley, City Manager 

        Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
         Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 
                      
FROM:        Travis E. Sales, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
 
DATE:         November 16, 2020   
       
SUBJECT:  Harbor Bay Marina Presentation with Mr. Jim Rosenburg  
  
 
For several months now and with a delay with the Covid Pandemic, Mr. Rosenburg, the City of Rockwall and the City of Dallas have been meeting 
and discussing the Harbor Bay Marina Concession agreement that expires in December 2021.  Mr. Rosenburg is currently requesting to move 
forward with a new agreement. 
 
Mr. Rosenburg will be presenting his concept and design plans for the Harbor Bay Marina Redevelopment and Expansion in hopes of getting 
feedback from Rockwall City Council.  Mr. Rosenburg has met with the City of Dallas and the City of Rockwall and has received initial feedback.  
Mr. Rosenburg is in the process of meeting with the Lakeside Village HOA to receive feedback.  His final step in gathering feedback is to present 
and get feedback from the Rockwall City Council.  At that point, all feedback will be compiled and plans adjusted if needed so the Parks and 
Recreation Department can take a new concession agreement to the Park Advisory Board and City Council. 
 
Appointment with Jim Rosenberg to hear presentation regarding a concept plan for Harbor Bay Marina, and take any action necessary.” 
 
 
 
 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



MEMORANDUM
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: November 16, 2020

SUBJECT: Z2020-043; SPECIFIC USE PERMIT FOR AN EXISTING MINI-
WAREHOUSE FACILITY

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
HOA Notification Map
Neighborhood Notification Email
Property Owner Notification Map
Property Owner Notification List
Public Notice
Property Owner Notifications
Ordinance No. 14-25
Information Provided to the P&Z on October 28, 2020
Applicant's Letter to the City Council
Applicants Letter
Property Owner Letter
Concept Plan
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Maxwell Fisher, AICP of Master
Plan on behalf of Wolverine Self-Storage Investments-Rockwall EDP, LLC for the approval of
a n ordinance amending an existing Specific Use Permit for the purpose of increasing the
number of storage units permitted by Ordinance No. 14-25 to account for the number of storage
units constructed on a 2.857-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block A, Platinum Storage
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, addressed
as 1245 SH-276, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed

60



The City Council is being asked to [1] approve, [2] approve with condition, or [3] deny the
Specific Use Permit (SUP). This case will require a super majority vote of those City Council
members present (e.g. six [6] out of the seven [7] members). 

61



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: November 16, 2020 
 

SUBJECT: Z2020-043; Specific Use Permit for an Existing Mini-Warehouse Facility 
 
 

On July 7, 2014, the City Council approved a Specific Use Permit (SUP) [S-121; Ordinance No. 14-25] allowing a 579-unit 
mini-warehouse facility on the subject property at 1245 SH-276.  This approval allowed the facility to be completely enclosed 
and permitted the outside storage of boats, recreational vehicles, and motor or self-propelled vehicles.  Up to this point, 
outside storage in conjunction with a mini-warehouse had not been approved by the City Council.  This approval also granted 
the applicant more units than what was permitted by the land use requirements for the mini-warehouse land use as stipulated 
by the Unified Development Code (UDC) [i.e. the ordinance permits 125-units per acre and the applicant was granted 207-
units per acre or 222-units more that what was permitted by the ordinances].  Upon receiving approval of the Specific Use 
Permit (SUP), the applicant submitted a site plan (SP2014-033) in December 2014, which was approved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission on January 13, 2015.  A final plat (P2015-013) was approved by the City Council on May 4, 2015.  A 
subsequent replat (P2015-041) was approved by the City Council -- with a variance allowing the subject property to be 
established without lot frontage -- on December 21, 2015.  Finally, a building permit was applied for on May 22, 2015 and 
approved on August 19, 2015 (BLD2015-0685).  The building itself was finaled on September 2, 2016 and a Certificate of 
Occupancy (CO) was issued on September 20, 2016 (CO2016-0063).  
 
More recently, on October 6, 2020, staff received a phone call from the applicant -- Maxwell Fisher, AICP of Masterplan -- 
stating that the existing mini-warehouse facility was in the process of being conveyed to a new ownership group and a few 
discrepancies were found between what was approved by the City Council as part of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) [S-121; 
Ordinance No. 14-25] and what was actually constructed.  Since these discrepancies were holding up the sale of the property, 
the applicant stated that he was going to submit a request to amend the Specific Use Permit (SUP) to account for what was 
actually built on the property.  This application was made on October 8, 2020.  As part of this submittal, the applicant 
submitted a letter of explanation outlining the following discrepancies: 
 
(1) Number of Units. The approved Specific Use Permit (SUP) allowed a maximum of 579-units.  The actual number of units 

constructed was 778-units.  The applicant states in his letter that 827-units were approved as part of the building plans; 
however, after reviewing these plans and counting the individual units, staff has identified 872-units on plans despite the 
cover sheet calling out 579-units. 
 

(2) Unit Density. The unit density permitted by the Unified Development Code (UDC) is 125-units per acre.  The unit density 
permitted as part of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) was 203-units per acre.  The unit density shown on the building plans 
was 305-units per acre.  The actual unit density constructed was 272-units per acre or 278.85% greater than what is 
permitted by the Unified Development Code (UDC). 

 
(3) Parking. The parking requirement for a mini-warehouse is a ratio that is driven by the number of units, and which is three 

(3) parking spaces plus one (1) parking space per 100-units.  In this case, the number of parking spaces required under 
the 579-units on the Specific Use Permit (SUP) was nine (9).  The number of parking spaces required based on the 778-
units actually constructed was 11.  The actual number of parking spaces constructed was nine (9) or two (2) spaces less 
than the requirement. 

 
 
 
 
 

62



Staff has also identified the following additional discrepancies: 
 
(1) Floor Area. The exhibit in the Specific Use Permit (SUP) showed a 118,800 SF building.  The cover sheet of the building 

plans shows that same building at a building area of 122,800 SF.  The actual building that was built is -- estimated by the 
applicant -- to be ~119,000 SF. 
 

(2) Outside Storage. The Specific Use Permit (SUP) showed 16 RV/Boat parking spaces along the northeast property line 
and 12 along the southeast property line for a total of 28 RV/Boat parking spaces.  Based on a 2020 aerial image (see 
image below), there appears to actually be 17 RV/Boat parking spaces along the northeast property line and 12 along the 
southeast property line for a total of 29 RV/Boat parking spaces. 

 
In addition, according to the applicant’s letter: The ‘579’ 
figure was inadvertently placed on the site plan and 
conveyed as part of the SUP application materials.  As 
such, the total count of 579 units cited as part of the 
SUP application was an oversight and 
underrepresented the total number of units planned for 
a facility of this type and size … Platinum Storage, the 
developer and currently a minority owner of the facility, 
always intended to accommodate 800 or more total 
storage units depending on the fluctuating sub-market 
demand for customers.  The floor plans submitted as 
part of the building plans support this intent. 
 
Taking this statement into consideration, staff is 
obligated to point out that the applicant’s request letter, 
the application for site plan, and all submitted exhibits 
for the Specific Use Permit (SUP), site plan and 
engineering plans all indicated that the project consisted 
of 579-units.  Staff should also point out that the 
building permit coversheet -- which is what is used for 
unit counts, square footages, and other site information 
-- indicated 579-units.  The only document that showed 
more units than the ‘579’ figure was the actual 
construction plans behind the cover page; however, no 
other unit count on the plans exists beyond the provided 
cover page.  For the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s reference staff has provided the following 
table that shows the units indicated with each submittal 
and the compliance to the requirements of the Unified 

Development Code (UDC): 
 

TABLE 1: CONFORMANCE OR APPROVED PLANS AND ACTUAL CONSTRUCTION 
 

  APPROVED PLANS   

UDC REQUIREMENT 
SPECIFIC USE 

PERMIT SITE PLAN ENGINEERING 
BUILDING PLANS 
(COVER SHEET) 

BUILDING PLANS 
(ACTUAL PLANS) CONSTRUCTED 

SITE AREA 5-ACRES 2.857-ACRES 2.857-ACRES 2.857-ACRES 2.857-ACRES 2.857-ACRES 2.857-ACRES 

BUILDING AREA N/A 118,800 SF 122,800 SF 122,800 SF 122,800 SF 120,900 SF 119,000 SF 

MAXIMUM # OF UNITS 625 @ 5-ACRES 579-UNITS 579-UNITS 579-UNITS 579-UNITS 872-UNITS (1) 778-UNITS 
MAX. UNIT 
DENSITY/ACRE 125 UNITS 203-U/AC 203-U/AC 203-U/AC 203-U/AC 305-U/AC 272-U/AC 

MAXIMUM HEIGHT 1 STORY 4 STORIES 4 STORIES 4 STORIES 4 STORIES 4 STORIES 4 STORIES 
PARKING 
REQUIREMENT 3+1/100-UNITS 9 SPACES 9 SPACES 9 SPACES 9 SPACES 9 SPACES (2) 9 SPACES (2) 

IMAGE 1: 2020 AERIAL IMAGE (GOOGLE) 

63



EXTERIOR WALLS BRICK 
BRICK, STONE 
AND STUCCO 

(3) 

BRICK, STONE 
AND STUCCO 

(3) 
BRICK, STONE 
AND STUCCO 

(3) 
BRICK, STONE 
AND STUCCO 

(3) 
BRICK, STONE 
AND STUCCO 

(3) 
BRICK, STONE 
AND STUCCO 

(3) 
LANDSCAPING CLUSTERED 

LANDSCAPING 
CLUSTER 

LANDSCAING 
CLUSTER 

LANDSCAING 
CLUSTER 

LANDSCAING 
CLUSTER 

LANDSCAING 
CLUSTER 

LANDSCAING 
CLUSTER 

LANDSCAING 
ACCESS GATES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

SCREENING FENCE 
MASONRY AND 

WROUGHT 
IRON 

MASONRY AND 
WROUGHT 

IRON 

MASONRY AND 
WROUGHT 

IRON 
MASONRY AND 

WROUGHT 
IRON 

MASONRY AND 
WROUGHT 

IRON 
MASONRY AND 

WROUGHT 
IRON 

MASONRY AND 
WROUGHT 

IRON 
MINIMUM ROOF PITCH 1:3 FLAT ROOF FLAT ROOF FLAT ROOF FLAT ROOF FLAT ROOF FLAT ROOF 

PAVING CONCRETE CONCRETE CONCRETE CONCRETE CONCRETE CONCRETE CONCRETE 
MAX. LIGHTING 
HEIGHT 20-FEET 20-FEET 20-FEET 20-FEET 20-FEET 20-FEET 20-FEET 

RESIDENTIAL UNIT 1,600 SF 1,200 SF 1,200 SF 1,200 SF 1,200 SF 0 SF 0 SF 

OUTSIDE STORAGE PROHIBITED 28-SPACES 28-SPACES 28-SPACES 28-SPACES 28-SPACES 29-SPACES 

NOTES: 
BLACK: IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE UDC REQUIREMENTS 
RED: REQUIREMENTS NOT CONFORMING TO THE UDC 
HIGHLIGHTED OR HIGLIGHTED: CHANGES FROM APPROVED SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) AND ACTUAL CONSTRUCTION 
(1): APPLICANT INDICATED 827 STAFF COUNTED 872-UNITS. 
(2): BASED ON THE NUMBER OF UNITS CONSTRUCTED THE REQUIREMENT WOULD HAVE BEEN FOR 11 PARKING SPACES. 
(3): MEETS OVERLAY DISTRICT BUT DOES NOT ADHERE TO THE LAND USE REQUIREMENTS. 
 
The following is the same chart looking at just the discrepancies as they exist on the approved Specific Use Permit (SUP), the 
actual building that was constructed, and what is currently being requested by the applicant: 
 
TABLE 2: APPROVED SUP, CONSTRUCTED BUILDING, AND PROPOSED REQUEST 
 

REQUIREMENT SPECIFIC USE PERMIT CONSTRUCTED REQUESTED 
SITE AREA 2.857-ACRES 2.857-ACRES 2.857-ACRES 

BUILDING AREA 118,800 SF 119,000 SF 119,000 SF 

MAXIMUM # OF UNITS 579-UNITS 778-UNITS 794-UNITS 

MAX. UNIT DENSITY/ACRE 203-U/AC 272-U/AC 278-U/AC 

PARKING REQUIREMENT 9 SPACES 9 SPACES (1) 9 SPACES (2) 

OUTSIDE STORAGE 28-SPACES 29-SPACES 29-SPACES (2) 
NOTES: 
BLACK: IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE UDC REQUIREMENTS 
RED: REQUIREMENTS NOT CONFORMING TO THE UDC 
HIGHLIGHTED OR HIGLIGHTED: CHANGES FROM APPROVED SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) AND ACTUAL CONSTRUCTION 
(1): BASED ON THE NUMBER OF UNITS CONSTRUCTED THE REQUIREMENT WOULD HAVE BEEN FOR 12 PARKING SPACES. 
(2): VARIANCE IS BEING REQUESTED 
 
In summation, the applicant is requesting that the City Council approve a new Specific Use Permit (SUP) that will [1] increase 
the unit count from 579-units to 794-units, [2] increase the maximum unit density from 203-units/acre to 278-units/acre, [3] 
change the approved building square footage from 118,800 SF to 119,000 SF (i.e. a new concept plan showing an as-built 
condition), [4] grant a variance to the parking requirement allowing the site to be two (2) parking spaces deficient, and [5] 
increase the number of outside storage parking spaces from 28 to 29.   
 
On October 17, 2020, staff mailed 23 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the subject property.  Staff 
also sent a notice to the Meadow Creek Estates Homeowners Association (HOA), which is the only HOA or Neighborhood 
Organizations within 1,500-feet of the subject property participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program.  Additionally, 
staff posted a sign on the subject property, and advertised the public hearings in the Rockwall Herald Banner as required by 
the Unified Development Code (UDC).  At the time this report was drafted, staff had received one (1) response from the 
original developer (and current minority owner) of the project stating support for the proposed change.   
 
On November 10, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend denial of the applicant’s 
request by a vote of 5-2, with Commissioners Chodun and Moeller dissenting.  According to Subsection 02.03(G), Protest of a 
Zoning Change, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), 

64



“(i)f such change [zoning change or Specific Use Permit (SUP)] is recommended for denial by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, such zoning change or Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall require a supermajority vote (i.e. three-fourths vote of 
those members present), with a minimum of four (4) votes in the affirmative required for approval.” 
 
Should the City Council have any questions staff will be available at the City Council meeting on November 16, 2020. 

65



66



67



T L TOWNSENDINTERSTATE 30 Z2020-043- SUP FOR 1245 SH-276
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I68



MELROSE

INT
ER

ST
AT

E 3
0

STATE HIGHWAY 276

INTERSTATE 30

SOMERSET

AL
PH

A

TROWBRIDGE

T L
TO

WN
SE

ND

MANNHEIM

BETA

IND
US

TR
IAL

CROMWELL
INT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

0

GOLIAD

MADISON

INTERSTATE 30

GOLIAD

T L TOWNSEND

T L TOWNSEND

T L TOWNSEND

YELLOW JA
CKET

KR
IST

Y

INTERSTATE 30

INTERSTATE 30

Meadow
Creek Estates

0 330 660 990 1,320165
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

RID
GE

GOLIAD

INTERSTATE 30

LA
KE

SH
OR

E

KYLE

AL
AM

O

RALPH HALL

YELLO
W JACKET

STATE HIGHWAY 276

BECKY

HICKORY CREEK

GLENWICK

STEWART

AL
PH

A

KRISTY

GREENCREST
FOXWOOD

LAK
EVI

EW

WHITE HILLS
VIGOR

DAMASCUS

INTER
STA

TE 3
0

RIDGE

Case Number:

Case Address:
Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Parcels

Subject Property 

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2020-043

1245 SH-276
Zoning 
SUP for Mini-Warehouse
Commercial (C) District

10/19/2020 69



1

Miller, Ryan

From: Gamez, Angelica
Sent: Wednesday, October 21, 2020 2:20 PM
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Lee, Henry
Subject: Neighborhood Notification Program
Attachments: Public Notice (10.20.2020).pdf; HOA Map Z2020-043.pdf

HOA/Neighborhood Association Representative: 
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notice to inform your organization 
that a zoning case has been filed with the City of Rockwall that is located within 1,500‐feet of the boundaries of your 
neighborhood.  As the contact listed for your organization, you are encouraged to share this information with the 
residents of your subdivision.  Please find the attached map detailing the property requesting to be rezoned in relation to 
your subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is the summary of the zoning case that was published in the Rockwall 
Herald Banner on Friday, October 23, 2020.  The Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, 
November 10, 2020 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, November 16, 2020 at 6:00 
PM.  Both hearings will take place at 6:00 PM at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, TX 75087.  
 
All interested parties are encouraged to submit public comments via email to Planning@rockwall.com  at least 30 minutes 
in advance of the meeting.  Please include your name, address, and the case number your comments are referring 
to.  These comments will be read into the record during each of the public hearings. Additional information on all current 
development cases can be found on the City’s website: 
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development‐cases. 
 
Z2020‐043 Specific Use Permit for Mini‐Storage 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Maxwell Fisher, AICP of Master Plan on behalf of Wolverine 
Self‐Storage Investments‐Rockwall EDP, LLC for the approval of an amendment to an existing Specific Use Permit for the 
purpose of increasing the number of storage units permitted by Ordinance No. 14‐25 to account for the number of 
storage units constructed on a 2.857‐acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block A, Platinum Storage Addition, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, addressed as 1245 SH‐276, and take any action 
necessary. 
 

Thank you,  

 
Angelica Gamez  
Planning & Zoning Coordinator 
City of Rockwall 
972.771.7745 Office  
972.772.6438 Direct 
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/  
 
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender 

70



1225

1250

1290

1245

1460

1114

1154

2010

2245

2235

1106

1102

1527

1590

1530

1130

1533

1539

1551

1557

1545

1563

1569

1575

1639

1581

1538

1645

1550

1544

1556

1636

1627

1633

1585

1621

1589

1562

1580

1603

1593

1609

1615

2000

1568

2255

1574

1586

1592

1608

1602

1644

1553

1559

1547

1565C

LI

TR
OW

BR
ID

GE

T L TOWNSEND

INTERSTATE 30

INTERSTATE 30
INTERSTATE 30

INTERSTATE 30
0 160 320 480 64080

Feet
I

City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

RID
GE

 RD

S GOLIAD ST

S J
OH

N K
ING

 BL
VD

E INTERSTATE 30

S A
LA

MO
 RD

STATE HIGHWAY 276W YELLO
W JACKET L

N

KYLE DR

HICKORY CREEK LN
GLENWICK DR

ALP
HA

 DR

RID
GE

 RD

E IN
TER

STA
TE 3

0

S GOLIAD ST

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2020-043

1245 SH-276
Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: SUP For Mini-Warehouse
Zoning: Commercial (C) District

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  10/19/2020

Legend
Parcels
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties 

71



POTOMAC ROCKWALL PARTNERSHIP LP 
10676 KING WILLIAM  

DALLAS, TX 75220 
 

 

COCKERILL CHRISTOPHER M AND JENNIFER 
COCKERILL SMITH AND 

EXEMPTION TRUST U/COCKERILL FAMILY 1981 
TRUST 

1114 E I30  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

POTOMAC ROCKWALL PARTNERSHIP LP 
1154 E I30  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

COSTCO WHOLESALE CORP 
PROPERTY TAX DEPT 1049 

1225 HWY 276  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

WOLVERINE SELF-STORAGE INVESTMENTS-
ROCKWALL EDP LLC 

ATTN: ANTHONY GOULD 
1245 HWY276DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

JACKSON AUTOMOTIVE REAL ESTATE INV LLC 
DBA TOYOTA OF ROCKWALL 

1250 E INTERSTATE 30  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

CTE PHASE I LP 
1290 I30  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SARO PARTNERS LLC 
1450 T L TOWNSEND  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

SARO PARTNERS LLC 
1460 S TOWNSEND DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

FARR TRAVIS AND MELLISA 
1539 TROWBRIDGE CIRCLE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

COURT CRAIG B & MONDA J 
1545 TROWBRIDGE CIRCLE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

FENG YI 
1551 TROWBRIDGECIR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

MOTA SAMUEL ALVES AND LEIGH-ANNE 
1557 TROWBRIDGE CIR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

SCHULMAN SUN 
1563 TROWBRIDGE CIR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

SUN RAY 
1569 TROWBRIDGECIR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

CTMGT ROCKWALL 38 LLC 
1800 VALLEY VIEW LN SUITE 300 

FARMERS BRANCH, TX 75234 
 

 

CITY OF HEATH 
200 LAURENCE DRIVE  

HEATH, TX 75032 
 

 

CTE PHASE I LP 
2266 LAFAYETTE LNDG  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

FENG YI 
2757 SCENIC DR  

PLANO, TX 75025 
 

 

COCKERILL CHRISTOPHER M AND JENNIFER 
COCKERILL SMITH AND 

EXEMPTION TRUST U/COCKERILL FAMILY 1981 
TRUST 

311 BILTMORE WAY  
LAFAYETTE, LA 70508 

 

 

SUN RAY 
3409 CALEO CT  

PLANO, TX 75025 
 

WOLVERINE SELF-STORAGE INVESTMENTS-
ROCKWALL EDP LLC 

ATTN: ANTHONY GOULD 
4057 VEGA LOOP  

SHINGLE SPRINGS, CA 95682 
 

 

COSTCO WHOLESALE CORP 
PROPERTY TAX DEPT 1049 

999 LAKE DR  
ISSAQUAH, WA 98027 

 

  

     

     

72



PUBLIC NOTICE  
 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 
 

Case No. Z2020-043: Specific Use Permit for Mini-Storage 
 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Maxwell Fisher, AICP of Master Plan on behalf of Wolverine Self-Storage Investments-
Rockwall EDP, LLC for the approval of an amendment to an existing Specific Use Permit for the purpose of increasing the number of storage units 
permitted by Ordinance No. 14-25 to account for the number of storage units constructed on a 2.857-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block A, 
Platinum Storage Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, addressed as 1245 SH-276, and take any 
action necessary. 
 

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, November 
10, 2020 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, November 16, 2020 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the 
City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 
 

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 

Ryan Miller 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

 

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   
 

Your comments must be received by Monday, November 16, 2020 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City 
Council. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

 

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 
 

PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 
 

Case No. Z2020-043: Specific Use Permit for Mini-Storage 
 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 
 

 

 

 

 

Name:  

Address:  

 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

 
PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

73

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


74



CITY OF ROCKWALL

ORDINANCE NO. 14 -25

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S -121

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE

ORDINANCE NO. 04 -381 OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS
PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO APPROVE A SPECIFIC USE
PERMIT ( SUP) TO ALLOW A MINI - WAREHOUSE FACILITY WITHIN A
COMMERCIAL ( C) DISTRICT AS SPECIFIED WITHIN ARTICLE IV, 
PERMISSIBLE USES, OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE, FOR A
2. 857 -ACRE TRACT OF LAND, BEING A PORTION OF A LARGER
5. 549 -ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS PART OF TRACT 2 OF
THE J. CADLE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 65, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL

CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE NOT TO
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($ 2,000. 00) FOR
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, a request has been made by Master Plan, on behalf of Rockwall SH -205 Venture, LLC
for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a mini - warehouse facility on a 2. 857 -acre
tract of land, zoned Commercial ( C) District, being a portion of a larger 5. 549 -acre tract land
identified as a part of Tract 2 of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 65, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, which is generally located south of the intersection of the IH -30 Frontage Road and
Townsend Drive, and more specifically described in Exhibit A' of this ordinance, which herein after
shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing bodyof
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code of the City of
Rockwall should be amended as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code [ Ordinance No. 04 -38] of the City of Rockwall, as
heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit
SUP) allowing for the construction of a mini - warehouse facility within a Commercial ( C) District as

stipulated by Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code on the Subject
Property; and

SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes
described in this Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance and set forth in Section 2. 1. 10, Wholesale, 
Distribution and Storage, of Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code

Z2014 -012: Platinum Self- Storage SUP Page 1 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 14 -25; SUP # S -121

75



Ordinance No. 04 -38] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting of this zoning
change, and as may be amended in the future, and shall be subject to the additional following
conditions and compliance standards: 

2. 1 Operational Conditions

The following conditions pertain to the operation of a mini - warehouse facility on the Subject
Property, and conformance to these operational conditions are required for continued
operations: 

1) Prior to the issuance of a building permit a site plan conforming to the requirements
stipulated by the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04 -38] shall be submitted and
approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission, and if necessary City Council. 

2) All construction and operations on this property shall generally conform to the Concept Plan
depicted in Exhibit Hof this ordinance. 

3) The building elevations submitted with the site plan shall strictly adhere to the Concept
Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit `C' ofthis ordinance, unless required to be modified to
conform to the recommendations of the Planning & Zoning Commission and /orCity Council. 

4) The maximum number of storage units provided shall not exceed 579 units for the facility. 

5) All transparent fences shall be wrought iron or similar, and when necessary incorporate
landscaping /living screening to screen the interior of the facility. Chain -link fencing shall be
prohibited. 

6) The height of the building shall not exceed four (4) stories or 60 -feet in total height. 

7) Outside storage shall be limited to the areas depicted on the Concept Plan in Exhibit' A', and

shall be entirely screened by a row of evergreen trees ( i. e. Leyland Cypress) to be planted
along the eastern property line. No outside storage of any kind shall be permitted outside of
the areas depicted on the Concept Plan. Outside storage shall be limited to the storage of
boats, recreational vehicles, and motor or self - propelled vehicles. 

8) Businesses shall not be allowed to operate within individual storage units. 

9) The commercial operation of rental trucks and trailers shall be prohibited. 

10) All signage shall be required to conform to the requirements stipulated by the Code of
Ordinances. Additionally, pole signage shall be prohibited on this site. 

11) All light poles shall be limited to a maximum height of 20 -feet and all light fixtures proposed

for the site shall comply with the requirements of Article VII, Environmental Performance, of
the Unified Development Code. 

Section 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning
described herein. 

22014 -012: Platinum Self- Storage SUP Page 2 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 14 -25; SUP # S -121

76



Section 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

Section 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine
not to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($ 2,000. 00) for each offence and each

and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

Section 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the
application of any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or
circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and the
publication of the caption of said ordinance as the law in such cases provides. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 

THIS THE 7T" DAY OF JULY, 2014. 

ATTEST: 

Kri y Ash erry, City Secre

TO FORM: 

City Attorney

15t Reading: June 16, 2014

2ntl Reading: July 7. 2014

ivida ayor

SEAL

22014 -012: Platinum Self- Storage SUP Page 3 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 14 -25; SUP # S -121

77



Exhibit A: Legal Description

BEING a 2.857 acre tract of land, being a portion of a 5. 549 acres tract of land recorded in instrument
No. 2013 - 480420, situated in the JOSEPTH CADLE SURVEY, ABST #65 and the N. M. BALLARD SURVEY

ABST. # 48, in the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and being a portion of a 65. 96 tract of land

recorded in Volume 4663, page 281 of the Official Public Records of Rockwall County, Texas and being

all and being more particularly described as follows: 

BEGINNING at 5/ 8 inch iron rod set for the northerly northwest corner of Lot 1, Block 1 of Rockwall

Centre Corners Addition according to the plat recorded in Cabinet G, Slide 299 of the Plat Records of

Rockwall County, Texas and being located in the southeasterly line of Lot 1, Block 1 of Toyota of

Rockwall according to the plat recorded in Cabinet G, Slide 153 -155 Plat Records of Rockwall County, 
Texas; 

THENCE along the southeasterly line of said Toyota of Rockwall Addition, NORTH 33 °54' 52" EAST a

distance of 460.20 feet to a 5/ 8 inch iron rod to be set in the southeasterly line of Lot 1, Block 1 of

Toyota of Rockwall according to the plat recorded in Cabinet G, Slide 153 -155 Plat Records of Rockwall

County, Texas and being the west corner of a 2. 692 acre tract being a portion of a 5. 549 acre tract of
land recoded in instrument No. 2013 - 480420 Rockwall SH205 Venture, LLC of the Official Public Records

of Rockwall County, Texas; 

THENCE departing the southeasterly line of said Lot 1, Block 1, SOUTH 56 °05' 08" EAST a distance of

339.05 feet to a 5/ 8 inch iron road to be set in the southwest line of said 65.96 acre tract of land being
the southeast corner of a 2. 692 acre tract being a portion of a 5. 549 acre tract of land recoded in

instrument No. 2013- 480420 Rockwall SH205 Venture, LLC of the Official Public Records of Rockwall

County, Texas; 

THENCE departing the southwest corner of said 2. 692 acre tract of land and traveling through said 65.96

acre tract of land the following course and distances: 

SOUTH 22036' 40" WEST a distance of 158.90 feet to a 5/ 8 inch iron rod set; 

SOUTH 00 °5744" WEST a distance of 54.05 feet to a 5/ 8 inch iron rod set in the north line of said Lot 1

of Rockwall Centre Corners Addition; 

THENCE along said north line, NORTH 89 °02' 16" WEST a distance of 476.20 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING; 

22014 -012: Platinum Self- Storage SUP Page 4 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 14 -25; SUP # 5 -121

78



Exhibit B: Concept Plan

210 - Hoz 'vii

N

P

N

p >

4 iBxi 4

y

9s aN

e 

4f} 
i. 

I

N -/ 
11

22014 - 012: Platinum Self- Storage SUP Page 5 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 14 -25; SUP # 5 -121

MOtl ON35N 1

NOIIpQtl SL3Xlp'J3N1N3JlltlM11JON' L N'.p'IB' L 1( 1l y.y2
t' t TSC°.0 8 °r _ •-• 

3JVNOlS-dl3S

Wl1N1=
10

l0. 
d t 9L: 3 2

yr
9: V ^ L-31UJ' IaPCi ONItl33Nl J̀ =3 II

Ig
0

ti o s =. a i

pEyy3z
pygbp

g84
pg q In1! MIv I

gig

r

rpm
N

P

N

p >

4 iBxi 4

y

9s aN

e 

4f} 
i. 

I

N -/ 
11

22014 - 012: Platinum Self- Storage SUP Page 5 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 14 -25; SUP # 5 -121

79



Exhibit C: Concept Building Elevations

s III

22014 -012: Platinum Self- Storage SUP Page 6 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 14 -25; SUP # S -121

80



2009 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE

2009 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE

2012 TEXAS ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS

2009 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE

2009 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE

2008 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE

BUILDING CODE DATA:

TDLR NUMBER: _______________________________

PROPOSED NEW FACILITY
FOR: PLATINUM SELF-STORAGE

TOWNSEND RD.
CITY OF ROCKWALL

ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

0
NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

GENERAL CONTRACTOR:

1
NOT TO SCALE 

NE PERSPECTIVE VIEW

PLATINUM SELF-STORAGE

1834 F.M. 551
FATE, TX 75189
PHONE: (469) 718-0451
CONTACT: SHAWN VALK

DATE: MAY, 2015

4700 kemble st.
fort worth, tx 76103
ph: 817-534-6579
fax: 817-386-5365
WWW.JLBUILDSYS.COM

EABPRJB5813898

CONSULTANTS:

STRUCTURAL

BLAKE WILSON ENGINEERING, PLLC

BLAKE WILSON, PE
637 W. HURST BLVD.
HURST, TX 76053
PHONE: (817) 268-2345

MEP

MEP GREEN DESIGNS, PLLC

DUNG DUC VU, P.E.
14047 EL CAMINO REAL, STE. 211
HOUSTON, TX 77058
PHONE: (817) 534-6579

DESIGN & ARCHITECTURAL

JL BUILDING SYSTEMS, LLC.

& PAUL DEELEY, ARCH.

CONTACT: JOSE LABASTIDA
4700 KEMBLE ST.
FORT WORTH, TX 76103
PHONE: (817) 534-6579

2009 INTERNATIONAL FUEL CODE

PLATINUM SELF-STORAGE

CONTACT: SHAWN
PH: (469) 222-1597

OWNER:

1

1

81



1
1" = 40'-0"

SITE PLAN

GRAPHIC SCALE

20' 40'0 80'

2
3/8" = 1'-0"

MONUMENT SIGN

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

PLAN VIEW

Drawn

Sheet

Job

Date

Scale

REVISIONNO.

14014

JLL

04-16-2015

As Noted

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 N
E

W
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y
:

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L
, 
T

E
X

A
S

 7
5
0
8
7

4
7
0
0
K

e
m
b
l
e
 S

t
.

F
o
r
t
 W

o
r
t
h
, 
T
X
 7

6
1
0
3

P
h
: 
8
1
7
-5

3
4
-6

5
7
9

F
A
X
: 
8
1
7
-3

8
6
-5

3
6
5

1 07-24-2015

2 08-14-2015

A1.0

FLOOR PLAN
1ST. LEVEL

0
NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

1

82

rmiller
Rectangle



1
1/8" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN - FIRST LEVEL

C

A

B

Drawn

Sheet

Job

Date

Scale

REVISIONNO.

14014

JLL

04-16-2015

As Noted

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 N
E

W
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y
:

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L
, 
T

E
X

A
S

 7
5
0
8
7

4
7
0
0
K

e
m
b
l
e
 S

t
.

F
o
r
t
 W

o
r
t
h
, 
T
X
 7

6
1
0
3

P
h
: 
8
1
7
-5

3
4
-6

5
7
9

F
A
X
: 
8
1
7
-3

8
6
-5

3
6
5

1 07-24-2015

2 08-14-2015

A1.1

FLOOR PLAN
1ST. LEVEL

1 11

11 1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

83

jwidmer
Text Box
50 units around perimeter

jwidmer
Text Box
9 units

jwidmer
Text Box
14 units

jwidmer
Text Box
9 units

jwidmer
Text Box
11 units

jwidmer
Text Box
9 units

jwidmer
Text Box
20 units

jwidmer
Text Box
8 units

jwidmer
Text Box
11 units

jwidmer
Text Box
141 units total 



1
1/8" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN - SECOND LEVEL

D D D

F F

D D D

F F

D D D

D

D

D

D

D

D

E

E

DDD

FF

DDD

FF

DDD

D

D

D

E

E

D

D

D

D

D

F

F

F

F

D

D

Drawn

Sheet

Job

Date

Scale

REVISIONNO.

14014

JLL

04-16-2015

As Noted

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 N
E

W
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y
:

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L
, 
T

E
X

A
S

 7
5
0
8
7

4
7
0
0
K

e
m
b
l
e
 S

t
.

F
o
r
t
 W

o
r
t
h
, 
T
X
 7

6
1
0
3

P
h
: 
8
1
7
-5

3
4
-6

5
7
9

F
A
X
: 
8
1
7
-3

8
6
-5

3
6
5

1 07-24-2015

2 08-14-2015

A1.2

FLOOR PLAN
2ND. LEVEL

1

1

84

jwidmer
Text Box
66 units around perimeter

jwidmer
Text Box
28 units

jwidmer
Text Box
28 units

jwidmer
Text Box
17 units

jwidmer
Text Box
20 units

jwidmer
Text Box
22 units

jwidmer
Text Box
26 units

jwidmer
Text Box
18 units

jwidmer
Text Box
21 units

jwidmer
Text Box
246 units total 



1
1/8" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN - THIRD LEVEL

D D D

F F

D D D D D D

F F

D

D

D

D

D

D

E

E

DDD

FF

DDD

FF

DDD

D

D

D

E

E

D

D

D

D

D

F

F

F

F

D

D

Drawn

Sheet

Job

Date

Scale

REVISIONNO.

14014

JLL

04-16-2015

As Noted

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 N
E

W
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y
:

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L
, 
T

E
X

A
S

 7
5
0
8
7

4
7
0
0
K

e
m
b
l
e
 S

t
.

F
o
r
t
 W

o
r
t
h
, 
T
X
 7

6
1
0
3

P
h
: 
8
1
7
-5

3
4
-6

5
7
9

F
A
X
: 
8
1
7
-3

8
6
-5

3
6
5

1 07-24-2015

2 08-14-2015

A1.3

FLOOR PLAN
3RD. LEVEL

1

1

85

jwidmer
Text Box
64 units around perimeter

jwidmer
Text Box
27 units

jwidmer
Text Box
28 units

jwidmer
Text Box
20 units

jwidmer
Text Box
22 units

jwidmer
Text Box
26 units

jwidmer
Text Box
18 units

jwidmer
Text Box
21 units

jwidmer
Text Box
17 units

jwidmer
Text Box
241 units total 



1
1/8" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN - FOURTH LEVEL

E

E

FF FF

E

E

FF FF

D

D

F

F

F

F

D

D

Drawn

Sheet

Job

Date

Scale

REVISIONNO.

14014

JLL

04-16-2015

As Noted

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 N
E

W
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y
:

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L
, 
T

E
X

A
S

 7
5
0
8
7

4
7
0
0
K

e
m
b
l
e
 S

t
.

F
o
r
t
 W

o
r
t
h
, 
T
X
 7

6
1
0
3

P
h
: 
8
1
7
-5

3
4
-6

5
7
9

F
A
X
: 
8
1
7
-3

8
6
-5

3
6
5

1 07-24-2015

2 08-14-2015

A1.4

FLOOR PLAN
4TH. LEVEL

1

1

86

jwidmer
Text Box
62 units around perimeter

jwidmer
Text Box
28 units

jwidmer
Text Box
28 units

jwidmer
Text Box
20 units

jwidmer
Text Box
22 units

jwidmer
Text Box
26 units

jwidmer
Text Box
18 units

jwidmer
Text Box
21 units

jwidmer
Text Box
17 units

jwidmer
Text Box
242 units total 



 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMO 

 
AGENDA DATE: 06/16/2014 
 
APPLICANT: Maxwell Fisher; Masterplan Consulting 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Z2014-012; Platinum Self-Storage (SUP) 

 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Masterplan Consulting, on behalf of 
Rockwall SH-205 Venture, LLC, for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a mini-
warehouse facility on a 2.857-acre tract of land, zoned Commercial (C) District, being a portion 
of a larger 5.549-acre tract of land identified as a part of Tract 2 of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract 
No. 65, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located south of the intersection of 
the IH-30 frontage road and Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary. 
 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 
 
According to the Permissible Use Charts located in Article 4, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) a mini-warehouse facility requires a Specific Use Permit (SUP) within 
a Commercial (C) District.  In conformance with this requirement the applicant, Masterplan 
Consulting, submitted an application on April 18, 2014 requesting an SUP on a 2.857-acre 
portion of a larger 5.549-acre tract of vacant land zoned Commercial (C) District.  The subject 
property is located behind Shenaniganz Entertainment Center and Toyota of Rockwall, and is 
south of the intersection of IH-30 and T. L. Townsend Drive. 
 

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS: 
 
The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 
 
North: Directly north of the subject property is the remainder of the 5.549-acre tract of land 

(i.e. 2.692-acre tract of land) followed by a three (3) acre tract of land containing a 
City of Rockwall water storage facility, Shenaniganz Entertainment Center (five [5] 
acres), and Toyota of Rockwall (11.26-acres).  Both Shenaniganz and Toyota of 
Rockwall are zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and the remainder of the properties 
are zoned Commercial (C) District. 

     
South: Directly south of the subject property is a 20.29-acre parcel of land, zoned 

Commercial (C) District, and developed with a Costco Wholesale Center.  Beyond 
this use is SH-276.  

 
East: Directly east of the subject property is a tributary of Buffalo Creek containing several 

acres of 100-year floodplain and a conservation and drainage easement.  East of this 
is the Townsend Village Subdivision, which contains 77 residential lots on 27.689-
acres of land and is zoned Planned Development District 10 (PD-10). 

 
West: Directly west of the subject property is the remainder of the Toyota of Rockwall 

property, which is zoned Light Industrial (LI) District.  Beyond this is Interstate 
Highway 30 (IH-30). 

87



 

CHARACTERISTICS OF REQUEST: 
 
The applicant has submitted a conceptual site plan, building elevations and landscape plans 
detailing the anticipated layout of the proposed mini-warehouse facility.  According to the 
conceptual site plan the proposed facility will be composed of one (1) building with a capacity of 
579 storage units and be situated on a 2.857-acre tract of land.  The subject property is located 
between three (3) large developments (i.e. CostCo Wholesale Center, Shenaniganz and Toyota 
of Rockwall) along the northern and western property lines and adjacent to floodplain containing 
dense vegetation protected by a conservation easement along the eastern property line.  The 
site is visibly shielded from all public rights-of-way and will not have frontage on to a public 
street.  The site is accessible by two cross access easements that [1] extend from T. L. 
Townsend Drive on to the City of Rockwall’s water storage facility’s’ property and [2] from SH-
276 onto CostCo Wholesale Center’s property.  If this Specific Use Permit (SUP) request is 
approved the applicant will be required to connect the two (2) cross access easements as 
generally shown on the concept site plan.  Additionally, if approved the City Council will in effect 
be granting a variance to the minimum lot frontage on a public right-of-way stipulated by the 
Commercial (C) District standards (§4.5.C.2, Article V, UDC) [see Conditions of Approval]. 
 
The facility being proposed by the applicant will have the appearance of a four (4) story office 
building and will not have any units facing to the exterior of the building.  The facility will be 
gated and further screened by a six (6) foot masonry fence that will completely enclose the 
proposed building, parking areas and outside storage areas.  As stated above visibility of the 
site is impaired by adjacent development and floodplain with dense vegetation.  Additionally, the 
building itself will be situated on a lower grade than the adjacent development, and all parking 
and outside storage areas will be further screened by the proposed masonry wall and adjacent 
landscaping. The applicant is preparing a line of site study and will be taking pictures of the 
property from a sky-crane to address the concerns the Planning and Zoning Commission raised 
in the work session meeting on April 27, 2014. 
 
Section 2.1.10 of Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) details 
the specific land use requirements for a Mini-Warehouse Facility.  The following is a summary of 
the applicant’s proposal and its compliance to these land use requirements: 
 
Code Requirement Proposed Plan Compliance 
The maximum site area shall not exceed 
five (5) acres. 

2.857-Acres In Compliance 

The maximum number of storage units shall 
not exceed 125 units per acre. 

A maximum of 579 units is permitted by 
the SUP Ordinance. 

Not In 
Conformance 

The maximum height shall not exceed one 
(1) story. 

The building is constructed to emulate an 
office building and is not comparable to the 

standard mini-warehouse design.  The 
design is permitted by the SUP Ordinance. 

Not In 
Conformance 

The minimum number of parking spaces 
required is two (2).  Parking requirement is 
three (3) spaces plus one (1) per 100 units. 

Nine (9) parking spaces are and nine (9) 
parking spaces are provided. 

In Conformance 

No direct access from FM740, SH205, 
SH66, SH276, FM3097, FM552, FM549 or 
John King Boulevard. 

The site does not have direct access from 
any roadway and is only accessible via 

Costco or the City’s Water Storage 
Facility. 

In Conformance 

Overhead doors shall not face adjacent 
streets. 

The buildings is not visible from any 
adjacent streets or roadways. 

In Conformance 

All exterior walls facing the front, side and 
rear property lines shall be 100% brick 
construction.  

All exterior walls will incorporate brick and 
stone. 

In Conformance 

88



 

The front, side and rear building setback 
areas shall incorporate clustered 
landscaping.  

The Concept Landscape Plan provided 
shows clustered landscaping along the 

front and sides of the facility; however, due 
to the visibility of the subject property the 
proposed facility is incompliance with the 

intent of this requirement. 

Landscaping Plan 
(Site Plan); 

Concept 
Landscape Plan (In 

Conformance) 

Gates shall be incorporated limiting access 
to the facility. 

Wrought iron gates are being proposed. In Conformance 

Screening fences shall be wrought iron or 
masonry. 

Landscape screening and wrought Iron 
fencing as well as an eight (8) foot 

masonry face are shown on the site plan. 
In Conformance 

Concrete shall be used for all paving. All future paving will be concrete. In Conformance 

Roof shall have a minimum roof pitch of 1:3 
and be constructed with metal standing 
seam. 

The building is constructed to emulate an 
office building and will incorporate a 

parapet wall and flat roof to achieve this 
look.  The design is permitted by the SUP 

Ordinance. 

Not In 
Conformance 

Lighting standards shall be limited to a 
maximum of 20-feet in height. 

Will be handled at the time of site plan 
submittal on the Photometric Plan. The 

SUP Ordinance include this requirement 
under the Operational Conditions. 

Photometric Plan 
(Site Plan) 

A single residential unit not exceeding 
1,600 SF in size is permitted. 

Single Residential Unit (1,200 SF) In Conformance 

Outside Storage shall be prohibited. 

The site will include limited outside storage 
of boats, recreation vehicles, vehicles 

and/or similar motor/self-propelled 
vehicles. 

Not In 
Conformance 

 

 

It is important to note that the requirements contained within Section 2.1.10 of the UDC (listed 
above) were prepared with the intent of regulating campus style facilities that incorporate 
several buildings, generally being one (1) story in height, and that have storage units that are 
accessible from the exterior of the building.  The facility being proposed by the applicant is more 
comparable or similar to an office or retail building.  As a result the proposed building is not in 
compliance with several of the standards that are intended to regulate a typical mini-warehouse 
building.  Specifically, the structure exceeds one (1) story in height and incorporates a flat roof 
with a parapet (more typical of an office or commercial development) as opposed to a pitched 
roof, which is required by the code.  In addition, the applicant is requesting to incorporate 
outside storage on the grounds that the site has limited visibility from adjacent properties and a 
six (6) foot masonry fence will be incorporated surrounding the site and parking areas.  Finally, 
the applicant is requesting a maximum of 579 units, which represents 207 units per acre as 
opposed to the permitted 125 units per acre.  If approved the SUP ordinance will limit the 
number of units to a maximum of 579 units.  With the exception of these items, the applicant’s 
proposal meets all the requirements stipulated by the UDC. 
 
In order to insure that the plan, submitted by the applicant, for the Specific Use Permit will 
conform to the future site plan submittal, staff has incorporated both the conceptual site plan 
and building elevations into the SUP ordinance, as well as, the operational conditions listed in 
the Recommendations section below. 
 

NOTIFICATION: 
 
On May 2, 2014, staff mailed 21 notices to property owners within 200 feet of the subject 
property.  Additionally, staff posted a sign adjacent to the closest roadway (i.e. Townsend Drive) 
as required by the Unified Development Code (UDC).  At the time this case memo was drafted 
staff had received one (1) notification in favor of the applicant’s request. 

 
 

89



 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
If the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council choose to approve the applicant’s 
request for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Mini-Warehouse Facility on the subject property 
then staff would recommend the following conditions of approval: 
 
1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the operational 

conditions contained in the approved SUP ordinance and summarized as follows: 
 
a) Prior to the issuance of a building permit a site plan conforming to the requirements 

stipulated by the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] shall be submitted 
and approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission, and if necessary City Council. 
 

b) All construction and operations on this property shall generally conform to the Concept 
Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 

 
c) The building elevations submitted with the site plan shall strictly adhere to the Concept 

Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, unless required to be 
modified to conform to the recommendations of the Planning & Zoning Commission 
and/or City Council. 

 
d) The maximum number of storage units provided shall not exceed 579 units for the 

facility. 
 

e) All transparent fences shall be wrought iron or similar, and when necessary incorporate 
landscaping/living screening to screen the interior of the facility.  Chain-link fencing shall 
be prohibited. 
 

f) The height of the building shall not exceed four (4) stories or 60-feet in total height. 
 

g) Outside storage shall be limited to the areas depicted on the Concept Plan in Exhibit ‘A’ 
and shall be screened from adjacent properties using a minimum of an eight (8) foot 
masonry fence.  No outside storage of any kind shall be permitted outside of the areas 
depicted on the Concept Plan.  Outside storage shall be limited to the storage of boats, 
recreational vehicles, and motor or self-propelled vehicles. 

 
h) Businesses shall not be allowed to operate within individual storage units. 

 
i) The commercial operation of rental trucks and trailers shall be prohibited. 
 
j) All signage shall be required to conform to the requirements stipulated by the Code of 

Ordinances.  Additionally, pole signage shall be prohibited on this site. 
 

k) All light poles shall be limited to a maximum height of 20-feet and all light fixture 
proposed for the site shall comply with the requirements of Article VII, Environmental 
Performance, of the Unified Development Code. 

 
2) In conformance with the requirements of Section 2.2 of Article XI, Zoning-Related 

Applications, of the UDC the applicant shall be required to submit a site plan prior to the 
issuance of a building permit; 

 
3) Unless specifically addressed within this case memo the site plan, landscape plan, building 

elevations and photometric plan shall comply with the land use requirements for the Mini-
Warehouse land use stipulated by Section 2.1.10, Wholesale, Distribution and Storage, of 
Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the UDC; 

90



 

 
4) Prior to the issuance of a building permit the applicant will be required to certify that the 

driveway existing on the City’s water storage facility property will meet current city standard 
for fire lane.  If the driveway does not meet the City’s current requirements for fire lane the 
applicant will be required to upgrade the driveway to ensure the subject property has proper 
fire protection; 

 
5) A final plat shall be required for the subject property prior to the issuance of a building 

permit.  Additionally, through the approval of the Specific Use Permit a variance to the 
minimum lot frontage on a public right-of-way stipulated by the Commercial (C) District shall 
be considered to be approved for the purpose of platting the property; 

 
6) The applicant shall submit a revised legal description and address all Planning, Engineering 

and Fire comments prior to the approval of the Specific Use Permit (SUP); 
 

7) The City Council reserves the right to review this SUP request [Case No. Z2014-012] one 
(1) year after the approval and adoption of the SUP ordinance; and 

 
8) Any construction or building necessary to complete this request must conform to the 

requirements set forth by the UDC, the 2009 International Building Code, the Rockwall 
Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other 
applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal 
government. 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 
 
On June 10, 2014 the Planning and Zoning Commission made a motion to approve the 
applicant’s request for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a mini-warehouse facility per staff’s 
recommendations with the caveat that all outside storage of boats, recreational vehicles and/or 
motor vehicles be limited to eight (8) feet in total height.  The motion passed by a vote of 6-0, 
with Commissioner Minth absent.   

91



Site: 

~~ 
Maslerplan 

Explanation of Request 

South and east of IH30, south and west of Townsend Road 

The 2.8-acre SUP site is part of an undeveloped 5.5-acre parcel located north of Costco and southeast of 

the Toyota dealership. The site is removed from public rights-of-way; and as such, it has limited visibility 

and circuitous access, making retail development infeasible. The site also sits lower than the properties 

to the north so this grade differential and the existing building infrastructure further limit view from 

nearby public rights-of-way. Access to the site would be provided via access easements across the 

Costco site and across the property northeast to Townsend Road. 

Specific Use Permit: 

The request is for approval of a specific use permit to construct a 4-story, 118,800-square foot mini­

warehouse. The facility would include a 1,200-square foot caretaker's quarters as well as a 900-square 

foot office. Nearly all the units would be accessed from interior corridors. 

Although this is a storage facility, the exterior elevations will include complimentary masonry materials 

along with glazing akin to an office development. It will look and feel like an office without the office 

traffic. The elevations also include wall and roof articulation for additional visual appeal. 

This would be an upscale facility offering a temperature controlled wine cellar, safety deposit boxes for 

jewelry and other valuable items, and a small ancillary component of boat and RV storage. Although the 

site is removed from public streets and its visibility is limited, there would be a minimum 8-foot tall 

masonry screen wall surrounding the entire perimeter. Robust landscaping is planned around the 

perimeter to enhance site aesthetics from adjacent properties, in compliance with city landscaping 

standards. 

Exceptions: 

The proposal includes waiver of the storage unit density parameter of 125 units per acre. This facility 

would include up to 579 units on 2.8 acres, yielding a density of 207 units per acre. In order for this type 

of facility to have the visibility necessary to be successful, it must be 4 stories tall and have a density that 

supports, and is commensurate with the invested infrastructure. If the entire 5.5 acres were developed 

with a conventional one-story storage facility, it could yield up to 687 storage units. 

•JOO Jack~on St. Su1I» £i40, Daioas, X 75202 .,. 11.:I 2 l l -,, I •l I•>- la' ~ 1 I - ~X -11 ~ .,. 111a,1,·1 pl;11K1•11'11ltanh ..:1•111 

92

rmiller
Highlight



) 

Likewise, the proposal also includes an exception to the one-story building height parameter for mini­

warehouses. We believe the one-story height parameter is intended to regulate the height of 

conventional storage facilities with exterior accessed units. The additional height is required to 

accommodate this particular style of storage facility that relies on visibility from the highway. 

Furthermore, this type of storage facility, as opposed to a conventional one, would be superior from a 

visual standpoint. Other factors that mitigate the height of the building include the aforementioned 

grade differential as well as its shear distance to major streets. 

We request an exception of the pitched roof requirement. We believe this requirement is geared toward 

a conventional one-story facility whereas a flat roof with parapet better suits the taller, office looking 

facility. Likewise, a pitched roof would be better suited in a traditional residential setting. 

The proposal also includes an ancillary component of outside RV /boat storage limited to the area shown 

on the preliminary site plan. There is demand for storage of recreational vehicles. The convenient 

location will allow those in the community a convenient storage option, which deters homeowners from 

storing recreational vehicles illegally at home or on the street in conventional neighborhoods where 

they can have functional and aesthetic impacts. 

We see this as a great site to allow limited RV /boat storage. View of the storage area would be 

obstructed by the building, the 8-foot perimeter walls and the site's distance and grade differential from 

its surroundings. It gives another storage option with no little to any impact on the area. 

'100 Jackson St Su1tP. 6·10 D,ill~s. TX 7r,707 ... td 21 I -hi •>1 •1- la\~ 11 - P\ - , 11 ,.. •ll<hh:rpl.ui..:,,1h1il1;"1" -:t•m 

93



2 A vote was taken and the motion passed 6- 0. 

4 111. DISCUSSION ITEMS

6 2. Appointment with Architectural Review Board representative to receive the Board' s

recommendations and comments for items on the agenda requiring architectural review. 
8

Kristi Mase spoke on behalf of the ARB. Board member Mase stated that the Board reviewed

10 SP2014- 006, a site plan for Peak Pedi — a medical office building. The Board recommended that
the applicant add a header and seal to detail the front windows as well as extend the roof eaves

12 on either side in order to meet the horizontal articulation standards. 

14 3. Z2014- 010

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by the Fenton Motor Group, LLC, on
16 behalf of the LaFon Family, for the revocation of SUP No. 111 [ Ordinance No. 13- 36], which

grants a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) for a new car dealership on a 1. 06 -acre tract of land identified
18 as Tract 12 of the John Lockhart Survey, Abstract No. 134 and a 10. 51 - acre parcel of land

identified as Lot 1, Block A of the Lafon Addition, being a total 11. 568 -acres, zoned Commercial
20 ( C) District and Light industrial ( Li) District, situated within the IH -30 Overlay ( IH - 30 OV) District, 

generally located east of John King Boulevard and south of IH -30, and take any action necessary. 
22

Chairman Renfro indicated that case # Z2014-010 has been withdrawn by the applicant. 
24

4. Z2014- 011

26 Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Dewayne Cain, on behalf of the Cain
Family Revocable Trust, for the approval of a zoning change from a Single Family 10 ( SF -10) 

28 District to Planned Development District 53 ( PD -53) for Residential -Office ( RO) District uses and
to amend the boundaries of Planned Development District 53 ( PD -53) [ Ordinance No. 02- 33] for a

30 0. 651 - acre parcel of land identified as Lot 3, Block A, Lee Rhoades Subdivision, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, addressed as 1002 Ridge Road, and take any action necessary. 

32

Sanford described the location of the property and briefly discussed the case. 
34

Commissioner Minth expressed concern about access drives to the property. Williams indicated
36 that the property already has access off of Ridge Road. 

38 Dewayne Cain

Rockwall, Texas

40

Mr. Cain explained that he is requesting to extend the zoning for PD -53 to his property. He also
42 wants to improve the look of the property. 

44 Commissioner Nielsen expressed concerned about traffic in this area. Mr. Cain explained that PD - 

53 allows for office use. Sanford stated that some limited retail uses are permitted within a

46 Residential -Office District, but many of those uses would require a Specific Use Permit. 

48 5. Z2014- 012

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Master Plan, on behalf of Rockwall
50 SH -205 Venture, LLC, for the approval of a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) to allow a mini -warehouse

facility on a 2. 857 -acre tract of land, zoned Commercial ( C) District, being a portion of a larger
52 5.549 -acre tract of land identified as a part of Tract 2 of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 65, City

of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located south of the intersection of the IH -30
54 frontage road and Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary. 

56 Gonzales described the request to the Commission. 

58 Commissioner McCutcheon clarified the access to the property. Gonzales explained the access
to the property. 

60

P82 Minutes: 04. 29. 2014 2

94

rmiller
Highlight



2 Commissioner Nielsen asked about a nearby neighborhood. Discussion took place regarding
screening and other development in the area. 

4

Dallas Cothran

6 900 Jackson St

Dallas, Texas

8

Mr. Cothran explained the request. 
10

Commissioner Nielsen expressed concern regarding the proposed facility being 4 -stories. 
12 Discussion took place regarding signage for the development. 

14 Commissioner Jackson asked if the facility will rent U -haul type trucks and trailers. Mr. Cothran
stated that they will not rent those types of trucks. Commissioner Jackson clarified that the

16 screening wall is a masonry wall. Mr. Cothran confirmed that it is a masonry wall. Commissioner
Jackson also asked for the height of several surrounding properties. She also wanted to know if

18 it is important to the developer to permit the storage of vehicles, RVs, and boats. Mr. Cothran
expressed that he thinks it is important, but they would likely require that the vehicles be

20 operable. 

22 Commissioner Minth asked for a visual from all sides of the building in order for the Commission
to visualize the business from the different sides. Commissioner Minth stated that she is

24 concerned with signage in the windows of the building. 

26 6. Z2014- 013

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Dean Cathey, on behalf of ASCDT
28 Investments, LLC, for the approval of a zoning change from a Zero Lot Line ( ZL- 5) District to a

Planned Development District for single- family attached uses for a 1. 25 -acre subdivision of land
30 identified as Lots 4, 5, 6 & 7 of the Integrity Addition Phase 2, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 

Texas, addressed as 617, 619, 621 & 623 Boydstun Avenue, and take any action necessary. 
32

Gonzales explained the zoning request. 
34

7. SP2014- 006

36 Discuss and consider a request by Peak Pedi, LLC for the approval of a site plan for a medical
office on a one ( 1) acre tract of land identified at Tract 1- 2 of the J. M. Allen Survey, Abstract 2, 

38 City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial ( LI) District, situated within the
SH -276 Overlay ( SH -276) District, located on the north side of SH -276 west of Innovation Drive, 

40 and take any action necessary. 

42 Sanford discussed the case and described the location of the property. 

44 8. SP2014- 007

Discuss and consider a request by Stephen Seitz Architects, Inc., on behalf of the owner of the
46 property, for the approval of a site plan for a professional office building on a 0. 75 -acre tract of

land identified as Lot E, Block 117 & Lot D, Block 117 of B. F. Boydston Addition, City of
48 Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned General Retail ( GR) District, located at the northeast

corner of the intersection of SH -205 [ S. Goliad Street] and St. Mary' s Street, and take any action
50 necessary. 

52 Sanford briefed the Commission on the case. 

54 Commissioner Nielsen asked the purpose behind disallowing stucco within the first 8 feet above
grade. Gonzales stated it is an aesthetic issue. 

56

Steve Seitz

58 22231 Ridge Road

Rockwall, Texas

60

P& Z Minutes: 04.29. 2014 3

95

rmiller
Highlight



2 parking requirements stipulated in Article VI, Parking and Loading Standards, of the Unified
Development Code [ Ordinance 04-38], 

4

5) A six (6) foot, wood fence constructed to a residential standard is required adjacent to all single
6 family residential adjacencies ( i. e. the northern and western property lines) for the purpose of

screening the parking area, 
8

6) Prior to the Subject Property being utilized for any use other than a single family residential
10 dwelling a site plan must be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Director of Planning or his

designee, and

12

7) Any construction resulting from the approval of this zoning change shall conform to the
14 requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code

IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and
16 with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and

federal government. 

18

Chairman Renfro opened the public hearing at 6: O6pm. 
20

Dewayne Cain

22 305 Stonebridge

Rockwall, Texas

24

Mr. Cain indicated his desire to rezone his property in order to keep it consistent with the adjacent
26 properties and so that he can remove the existing structure and replace it with a new structure. 

28 Commissioner Nielsen expressed his concern with the drive off of Ridge Road and asked about
future tenants at the property. Mr. Cain stated that at this time his does not know the future

30 tenants. Mr. Cain stated that the only entrance can be going south on Ridge Road. He hopes to
gain an exit onto Summit Ridge. Miller indicated that this issue would be addressed during the

32 site plan process. 

34 Additional discussion took place regarding access off of Ridge Road. 

36 As no one else wished to speak on this item, Chairman Renfro closed the public hearing at
6: 10pm. 

38

Commissioner Jackson made a motion to approve Z2014- 011, a request by Dewayne Cain, on
40 behalf of the Cain Family Revocable Trust, for the approval of a zoning change from a Single

Family 10 ( SF -10) District to Planned Development District 53 ( PD -53) for Residential - Office ( RO) 
42 District uses and to amend the boundaries of Planned Development District 53 ( PD -53) [ Ordinance

No. 02- 33] for a 0. 651 -acre parcel of land identified as Lot 3, Block A, Lee Rhoades Subdivision, 
44 City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, addressed as 1002 Ridge Road, with staff

recommendations. 

46

Commissioner McCutcheon seconded the motion. 
48

A vote was taken and the motion passed 7- 0. 

50

2. Z2014- 012

52 Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Master Plan, on behalf of Rockwall
SH -205 Venture, LLC, for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow a mini -warehouse

54 facility on a 2. 857 -acre tract of land, zoned Commercial ( C) District, being a portion of a larger
5. 549 -acre tract of land identified as a part of Tract 2 of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 65, City

56 of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located south of the intersection of the IH -30
frontage road and Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary. 

58

Miller stated that the applicant has requested to postpone the public hearing to the May 27`" 
60 Planning & Zoning meeting. No action was taken on the item. 

P& Z Minutes: 05. 13. 2014 3

96

rmiller
Highlight



2 MINUTES

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION WORK SESSION
4 City Hall, 385 South Goliad, Rockwall, Texas

Council Chambers
6 May 27, 2014

8
6: 00 P. M. 

10 I. CALL TO ORDER

12 The meeting was called to order by Vice -Chairman John McCutcheon at 6: 00 p. m. with the
following members present: Wendi Conley, Connie Jackson, Jonathan Lyons, and Matthew

14 Nielsen. Craig Renfro and Kristen Minth were not present. 

16 The following staff members from the Planning Department were present: Robert LaCroix, Ryan
Miller, David Gonzales, and JoDee Sanford. Additionally, Engineering Department staff members, 

18 Tim Tumulty, Amy Williams, and Kathleen Moreno, were in attendance. 

20 II. CONSENT AGENDA

22 1. Approval of Minutes for the April 8, 2014 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 

24 2. P2014- 012

Discuss and consider a request by Terrence Rowe of Double T. Ventures, LLC for the approval of
26 a replat for Lot 1, Block A, Double T. Ventures Addition being one ( 1) lot currently identified as a

portion of Lot 24, Amick Addition, zoned Planned Development District 50 ( PD -50), located at 807
28 N. Goliad Street, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and take any action necessary. 

30 Commissioner Jackson made a motion to approve the consent agenda. 

32 Commissioner Nielsen seconded the motion. 

34 A vote was take and the motion passed by a vote of 5- 0. 

36 III. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

38 3. Z2014- 012

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Master Plan, on behalf of Rockwall
40 SH -205 Venture, LLC, for the approval of a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) to allow a mini -warehouse

facility on a 2. 857 -acre tract of land, zoned Commercial ( C) District, being a portion of a larger
42 5. 549 -acre tract of land identified as a part of Tract 2 of the J. Cade Survey, Abstract No. 65, City

of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located south of the intersection of the IH - 30
44 frontage road and Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary. [ Request to Postpone to the

June 10, 2014 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting] 
46

Vice -Chairman McCutcheon announced that the applicant has requested to postpone the public
48 hearing until the June 10, 2014 meeting. No other action was taken. 

50 IV. ACTION ITEMS

52 4. Appointment with Dick Skorburg of the Skorburg Company to consider a request to submit a new
zoning application for Planned Development District 74 ( PD -74) in accordance with Section 8. 3, 

54 Council Approval or Denial, of Article II, Authority and Administrative Procedures, of the Unified
Development Code, and take any action necessary. 

56

On April 21, 2014, the City Council denied a request to amend Planned Development District 74
58 ( PD -74) [ Case No. Z2014- 007], and since the request was denied without an indication of prejudice

the action was considered to be a denial with prejudice (§ 8. 3. B, Article II). This motion restricts

P& Z Minutes: 05.27. 2014 1

97

rmiller
Highlight



2

4

6

8

MINUTES
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING

City Hall, 385 South Goliad, Rockwall, Texas
Council Chambers

June 10, 2014

6: 00 P. M. 

I. CALL TO ORDER

10

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Craig Renfro at 6: 00 p. m. with the following
12 members present: Wendi Conley, Connie Jackson, Jonathan Lyons, John McCutcheon and

Matthew Nielsen. Kristen Minth was not present. 
14

The following staff members from the Planning Department were present: Robert LaCroix, Ryan
16 Miller, David Gonzales, and JoDee Sanford. Additionally, Engineering Department staff members, 

Tim Tumulty, Amy Williams, and Kathleen Moreno, were in attendance. 
18

II. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

20

1. Approval of Minutes for the April 29, 2014 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
22

Commissioner Jackson made a motion to approve the minutes. 
24

Commissioner McCutcheon seconded the motion. 
26

A vote was taken and the motion passed 5- 0, with Commissioner Lyons abstaining. 
28

2. Approval of Minutes for the May 13, 2014 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
30

Commissioner Jackson made a motion to approve the minutes. 
32

Commissioner Lyons seconded the motion. 

34

A vote was taken and the motion passed 6- 0. 
36

3. Approval of Minutes for the May 27, 2014 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
38

Commissioner Lyons made a motion to approve the minutes. 
40

Commissioner McCutcheon seconded the motion. 
42

A vote was taken and the motion passed 5- 0, with Chairman Renfro abstaining. 
44

111. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

46

4. Z2014- 012

48 Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Master Plan, on behalf of Rockwall
SH -205 Venture, LLC, for the approval of a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) to allow a mini -warehouse

50 facility on a 2. 857 -acre tract of land, zoned Commercial ( C) District, being a portion of a larger
5. 549 -acre tract of land identified as a part of Tract 2 of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 65, City

52 of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located south of the intersection of the IH -30
frontage road and Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary. 

54

Miller stated that according to the Permissible Use Charts located in Article 4, Permissible Uses, 
56 of the Unified Development Code ( UDC) a mini -warehouse facility requires a Specific Use Permit

SUP) within a Commercial ( C) District. In conformance with this requirement the applicant, 
58 Masterplan Consulting, submitted an application on April 18, 2014 requesting an SUP on a 2. 857 - 

acre portion of a larger 5. 549 -acre tract of vacant land zoned Commercial (C) District. The subject

P& Z Minutes: 06. 10. 2014

98

rmiller
Highlight

rmiller
Highlight



2 property is located behind Shenaniganz Entertainment Center and Toyota of Rockwall, and is
south of the intersection of II -1- 30 and T. L. Townsend Drive. 

4

The applicant has submitted a conceptual site plan, building elevations and landscape plans
6 detailing the anticipated layout of the proposed mini -warehouse facility. According to the

conceptual site plan the proposed facility will be composed of one ( 1) building with a capacity of
8 579 storage units and be situated on a 2. 857 -acre tract of land. The subject property is located

between three ( 3) large developments ( i. e. CostCo Wholesale Center, Shenaniganz and Toyota of
10 Rockwall) along the northern and western property lines and adjacent to floodplain containing

dense vegetation protected by a conservation easement along the eastern property line. The site
12 is visibly shielded from all public rights-of-way and will not have frontage on to a public street. 

The site is accessible by two cross access easements that [ 1] extend from T. L. Townsend Drive
14 onto the City of Rockwall' s water storage facility property and [2] from SH -276 onto CostCo

Wholesale Center' s property. If this Specific Use Permit (SUP) request is approved the applicant
16 will be required to connect the two (2) cross access easements as generally shown on the

concept site plan. Additionally, if approved the City Council will in effect be granting a variance to
18 the minimum lot frontage on a public right- of-way stipulated by the Commercial ( C) District

standards (§ 4. 5. C. 2, Article V, UDC). 

20

The facility being proposed by the applicant will have the appearance of a four (4) story office
22 building and will not have any units facing to the exterior of the building. The facility will be gated

and further screened by a six (6) foot masonry fence that will completely enclose the proposed
24 building, parking areas and outside storage areas. As stated above visibility of the site is

impaired by adjacent development and floodplain with dense vegetation. Additionally, the
26 building itself will be situated on a lower grade than the adjacent development, and all parking and

outside storage areas will be further screened by the proposed masonry wall and adjacent
28 landscaping. The applicant is preparing a line of site study and will be taking pictures of the

property from a sky -crane to address the concerns the Planning and Zoning Commission raised in
30 the work session meeting on April 27, 2014. 

32 Section 2. 1. 10 of Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code ( UDC) details the
specific land use requirements for a Mini -Warehouse Facility. 

34

It is important to note that the requirements contained within Section 2. 1. 10 of the UDC ( listed

36 above) were prepared with the intent of regulating campus style facilities that incorporate several
buildings, generally being one ( 1) story in height, and that have storage units that are accessible

38 from the exterior of the building. The facility being proposed by the applicant is more comparable
or similar to an office or retail building. As a result the proposed building is not in compliance

40 with several of the standards that are intended to regulate a typical mini -warehouse building. 
Specifically, the structure exceeds one ( 1) story in height and incorporates a flat roof with a

42 parapet ( more typical of an office or commercial development) as opposed to a pitched roof, 

which is required by the code. In addition, the applicant is requesting to incorporate outside
44 storage on the grounds that the site has limited visibility from adjacent properties and a six (6) 

foot masonry fence will be incorporated surrounding the site and parking areas. Finally, the
46 applicant is requesting a maximum of 579 units, which represents 207 units per acre as opposed

to the permitted 125 units per acre. If approved the SUP ordinance will limit the number of units to
48 a maximum of 579 units. With the exception of these items, the applicant' s proposal meets all the

requirements stipulated by the UDC. 
50

In order to insure that the plan, submitted by the applicant, for the Specific Use Permit will
52 conform to the future site plan submittal, staff has incorporated both the conceptual site plan and

building elevations into the SUP ordinance, as well as, the operational conditions listed in the
54 Recommendations section. 

56 On May 2, 2014, staff mailed 21 notices to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property. 
Additionally, staff posted a sign adjacent to the closest roadway ( i. e. Townsend Drive) as required

58 by the Unified Development Code ( UDC). At the time this case memo was drafted, staff had
received one ( 1) notification in favor of the applicant' s request. 

60

P& Z Minutes: 06. 10. 2014 2
99

rmiller
Highlight



2 If the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council choose to approve the applicant' s request
for a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) for a Mini -Warehouse Facility on the subject property then staff

4 would recommend the following conditions of approval: 

6 1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the operational conditions
contained in the approved SUP ordinance and summarized as follows: 

8

a) Prior to the issuance of a building permit a site plan conforming to the requirements stipulated
10 by the Unified Development Code [ Ordinance No. 04- 38] shall be submitted and approved by the

Planning & Zoning Commission, and if necessary City Council. 
12 b) All construction and operations on this property shall generally conform to the Concept Plan

depicted in Exhibit ' B' of this ordinance. 
14 c) The building elevations submitted with the site plan shall strictly adhere to the Concept

Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ' C' of this ordinance, unless required to be modified to
16 conform to the recommendations of the Planning & Zoning Commission and/ or City Council. 

d) The maximum number of storage units provided shall not exceed 579 units for the facility. 
18 e) All transparent fences shall be wrought iron or similar, and when necessary incorporate

landscaping/ living screening to screen the interior of the facility. Chain- link fencing shall be
20 prohibited. 

f) The height of the building shall not exceed four (4) stories or 60 -feet in total height. 
22 g) Outside storage shall be limited to the areas depicted on the Concept Plan in Exhibit ' A' and

shall be screened from adjacent properties using a minimum of an eight ( 8) foot masonry fence. 
24 No outside storage of any kind shall be permitted outside of the areas depicted on the Concept

Plan. Outside storage shall be limited to the storage of boats, recreational vehicles, and motor or
26 self- propelled vehicles. 

h) Businesses shall not be allowed to operate within individual storage units. 
28 i) The commercial operation of rental trucks and trailers shall be prohibited. 

j) All signage shall be required to conform to the requirements stipulated by the Code of
30 Ordinances. Additionally, pole signage shall be prohibited on this site. 

k) All light poles shall be limited to a maximum height of 20 -feet and all light fixture proposed for
32 the site shall comply with the requirements of Article VII, Environmental Performance, of the

Unified Development Code. 

34

2) In conformance with the requirements of Section 2. 2 of Article XI, Zoning -Related Applications, 
36 of the UDC the applicant shall be required to submit a site plan prior to the issuance of a building

permit; 

38

3) Unless specifically addressed within this case memo the site plan, landscape plan, building
40 elevations and photometric plan shall comply with the land use requirements for the Mini - 

Warehouse land use stipulated by Section 2. 1. 10, Wholesale, Distribution and Storage, of Article
42 IV, Permissible Uses, of the UDC; 

44 4) Prior to the issuance of a building permit the applicant will be required to certify that the
driveway existing on the City' s water storage facility property will meet current city standard for

46 fire lane. If the driveway does not meet the City' s current requirements for fire lane the applicant
will be required to upgrade the driveway to ensure the subject property has proper fire protection; 

48

5) A final plat shall be required for the subject property prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
50 Additionally, through the approval of the Specific Use Permit a variance to the minimum lot

frontage on a public right-of-way stipulated by the Commercial ( C) District shall be considered to
52 be approved for the purpose of platting the property; 

54 6) The City Council reserves the right to review this SUP request [ Case No. Z2014-012] one ( 1) 
year after the approval and adoption of the SUP ordinance; and

56

7) Any construction or building necessary to complete this request must conform to the
58 requirements set forth bythe UDC, the 2009 International Building Code, the Rockwall Municipal

Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable
60 regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and federal government. 

P& Z Minutes: 06. 10. 2014 3

100

rmiller
Highlight



2 Commissioner Nielsen stated that typically outside storage is generally not allowed with mini - 
warehouse facilities regardless of the size of the development. 

4

Chairman Renfro opened the public hearing at 6: 10pm. 
6

Dallas Cothran

8 900 Jackson Street

Dallas, Texas

10

Mr. Cothran gave a brief presentation over the proposed development. He stated that this is a
12 difficult site to develop which makes it a good site for this type of development. Additionally, the

project is a significant investment. 

14

Commissioner Nielsen stated that he appreciated the applicant' s presentation. He additionally
16 stated his concern with the outside storage even with the masonry wall. He is also concerned

with lit signage for the facility. Mr. Cothran stated that they are allowed a monument sign, so the
18 signage on the building facing the interstate is critical. He explained that the outside storage is

appropriate for this particular development through the SUP process, because this is large site
20 and the storage is at the back of the property adjacent to Toyota' s property. 

22 Additional discussion took place regarding the outside storage. 

24 Commissioner Lyons asked if the facility will have roof -top units. Mr. Cothran stated that they will
have roof -top units that will be screen with a parapet. Miller explained that any roof -top

26 equipment would be required to be screened from view. 

28 Commissioner McCutcheon asked for clarification on the parking for the facility. Mr. Cothran
pointed out the parking for the facility. 

30

As no one else wished to speak on this item, Chairman Renfro closed the public hearing at
32 6: 32pm. 

34 Commissioner Nielsen stated that he is still concerned with the outside storage for the facility
even with the masonry wall many vehicles will be taller than the wall. He additionally expressed

36 concern with the lack of a pitched roof. 

38 Commissioner Nielsen made a motion to approve Z2014-012, a request by Master Plan, on behalf
of Rockwall SH -205 Venture, LLC, for the approval of a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) to allow a mini - 

40 warehouse facility on a 2. 857 -acre tract of land, zoned Commercial ( C) District, being a portion of
a larger 5. 549 -acre tract of land identified as a part of Tract 2 of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 

42 65, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located south of the intersection of the IH - 
30 frontage road and Townsend Drive, with staff recommendations and without the outside

44 storage component. 

46 Commissioner Jackson expressed that there may be other storage facilities in the area that are
storing vehicles without approval. She also would rather have people store items in these types

48 of facilities rather than keeping them in neighborhoods. 

50 LaCroix explained that outside storage of vehicles larger than the masonry wall could be
disallowed if the Commission would prefer. 

52

Commissioner Nielsen does not believe that this will not deter those individuals that choose to
54 store vehicles illegally. 

56 General discussion took place regarding the outside storage component of the SUP. 

58 Commissioner McCutcheon seconded the motion. 

60 A vote was taken and the motion failed 1- 5, with Conley, Jackson, Lyons, Renfro, and McCutcheon
against. 

62

P& Z Minutes: 06. 10. 2014 4
101

rmiller
Highlight



2 Commissioner Jackson made a motion to approve Z2014- 012, a request by Master Plan, on behalf
of Rockwall SH -205 Venture, LLC, for the approval of a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) to allow a mini - 

4 warehouse facility on a 2. 857 -acre tract of land, zoned Commercial ( C) District, being a portion of
a larger 5. 549 -acre tract of land identified as a part of Tract 2 of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 

6 65, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located south of the intersection of the IH - 
30 frontage road and Townsend Drive, with staff recommendations and limiting outside storage to

8 property that is 8 feet or less in height. 

10 Commissioner Lyons seconded the vote. 

12 A vote was taken and the motion passed 6- 0. 

14 5. Z2014- 015

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Dennis D. Alsup for the approval of a
16 Specific Use Permit ( SUP) for an accessory building that does not conform to the size

requirements as specified by Section 2. 1. 2, Residential and Lodging Use Conditions, of Article IV, 
18 Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code for a property in a Single -Family 10 ( SF -10) 

District on a 0. 74 -acre parcel of land identified as a portion of Block 4, Garner Addition, zoned
20 Single -Family 10 ( SF -10) District, situated within the North Goliad Overlay ( NGC OV) District, 

located at 921 Alamo Road, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and take any action
22 necessary. 

24 Chairman Renfro announced that this case has been postponed until the June 24, 2014 meeting. 

26 6. Z2014-016

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Scott W. Blackwood for the approval
28 of a zoning change from Agricultural ( AG) District to a Planned Development District for limited

commercial/ retail land uses on a 12. 493 -acre tract of land identified as Tract 17- 14 of the W. W. 
30 Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, located west of the

intersection of SH -205 [ S. Goliad Street] and S. FM -549, and take any action necessary. 
32

Miller explained that on January 21, 2014, the subject property was annexed under Case No. 
34 42013- 001 ( Ordinance No. 14- 04) and issued an Agricultural ( AG) District zoning designation. The

intent of the applicant' s request is to change the zoning designation of the subject property from
36 an Agricultural ( AG) District to a Planned Development District for limited commercial/ retail land

uses to facilitate the sale of the property. According to a letter provided by the owner of the
38 property the reason the Planned Development District is being requested is to limit the potential

uses and provide transition between the commercial property to the north and the residential
40 property to the south. Currently, the 12.493 -acre tract of land is being utilized for residential land

uses and has an existing single family home situated on it. 
42

The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 
44

North: Directly north of the subject property is a 7. 32 -acre tract of land zoned Commercial ( C) 
46 District that has a residential structure being utilized as an office building. To the

northeast of the subject property is a residential home situated on a 6. 0 -acre tract of
48 land. Beyond these uses are S. Goliad Street [ SH -205] and S. FM -549. 

50 South: Directly south of the subject property is a residential home situated on a 12. 5 -acre tract
of land. Beyond this is a 134. 33 -acre tract of vacant land that is a portion of a larger

52 254.082 -acre tract of land. Both properties are zoned Agricultural (AG) District. 

54 East: Directly east of the subject property is remainder of the 134.33 -acre tract of vacant land
that is a portion of a larger 254. 082 -acre tract of land zoned Agricultural ( AG) District. 

56 Beyond this property is S. Goliad Street [ SH -205]. 

58 West: Directly west of the subject property is S. FM -549 followed by the Oaks of Buffalo Way, 
which is a 109. 57 -acre development containing 58 single-family homes that are zoned

60 Single Family Estate 1. 5 ( SFE -1. 5) District. 

P& Z Minutes: 06. 10. 2014 5

102

rmiller
Highlight



87 IX. APPOINTMENTS

88

89 1. Appointment with the Planning and Zoning Chairman to discuss and
90 answer any questions regarding cases on the agenda and related issues
91 and take any action necessary. 

92 Mr. Craig Renfro, Chairman of the Planning & Zoning Commission, came forth and
93 briefed the council on recommendations of the Commission relative to planning - related
94 items on tonight' s meeting agenda. The council took no action related to this agenda
95 item. 

96

97 2. Appointment with Michael Turner to discuss and consider proposed

98 changes to the city' s Recreational Vehicle ( RV) ordinance regulations, 
99 and take any action necessary. 

100 Michael Turner

101 925 Mont Cascades

102 Rockwall, TX 75087

103

104 Mr. Turner came forth and explained that he has concerns related to the city' s ordinance
105 regulating parking of boats in neighborhoods for loading and unloading purposes. He
106 explained that he would like some clarity in the ordinance regulations related to the
107 definition of " loading and unloading." He explained that he feels harassed by neighbors
108 who constantly call the city to complain about his boat or utility trailer being parked for
109 " loading and unloading" in front of his home. After brief comments, the council took no
110 action related to this agenda item. 

111

112 X. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

113

114 1. Z2014 -012 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider approval of an
115 ordinance for a request by Master Plan, on behalf of Rockwall SH -205
116 Venture, LLC, for the approval of a Specific Use Permit ( SUP) to allow a

117 mini - warehouse facility on a 2. 857 -acre tract of land, zoned Commercial
118 ( C) District, being a portion of a larger 5. 549 -acre tract of land identified
119 as a part of Tract 2 of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 65, City of
120 Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located south of the
121 intersection of the IH -30 frontage road and Townsend Drive, and take any
122 action necessary. ( 1st Reading) 

123 Planning Director Robert LaCroix provided background information related to this item, 
124 indicating notices were mailed out to twenty -one adjacent property owners located within
125 two hundred feet of the property with one notice being returned in favor. He explained
126 the Planning & Zoning commission did recommend approval of this facility with the
127 caveat that any and all storage would be limited to a maximum height of eight feet and
128 would be fully screened behind the 8' masonry wall. 
129

130 Mayor Sweet opened the public hearing and called the applicant forth. 
131

132 Maxwell Fisher

133 Master Plan

134

Monday, June 16, 2014 City Council Minutes
Page 3

103

rmiller
Highlight



135 Mr. Fisher came forth and provided a presentation to council, detailing the
136 characteristics of this proposed mini - warehouse facility. He explained that the product
137 his company builds is not like traditional storage facilities. Instead, the buildings look
138 more like very nice office buildings. He showed renderings I drawings as well as

139 pictures of facilities like this proposed one that have been built in other cities. 

140

141 Councilmember White made a motion to approve Z2014 -012. Councilmember Milder

142 seconded the motion. Mayor Pro Tern Pruitt asked for clarification regarding if the
143 motion does or does not include the stipulation of requiring an eight foot fence. 
144 Councilmember White amended his motion to clarify approval of the item, indicating a
145 requirement that the applicant must install an 8' masonry fence in addition to planting
146 Leland Cypress trees to screen anything above the 8' screening fence. Councilmember
147 Milder seconded the amended motion. 

148

149 Councilmember Daniels asked if the facility would have twenty -four hour access for
150 renters. Mr. Fisher indicated that access will be from 6: 00 a. m. until 9: 00 p. m., but there
151 will be 24/ 7 surveillance. 

152

153 The ordinance was read as follows: 

154

155 CITY OF ROCKWALL

156 ORDINANCE NO. 14 -XX

157 SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S -XXX

158

159 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 

160 TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ ORDINANCE

161 NO. 04 -38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY

162 AMENDED, SO AS TO APPROVE A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT ( SUP) TO

163 ALLOW A MINI - WAREHOUSE FACILITY WITHIN A COMMERCIAL ( C) 

164 DISTRICT AS SPECIFIED WITHIN ARTICLE IV, PERMISSIBLE USES, OF

165 THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE, FOR A 2. 857 -ACRE TRACT OF

166 LAND, BEING A PORTION OF A LARGER 5. 549 -ACRE TRACT OF LAND

167 IDENTIFIED AS PART OF TRACT 2 OF THE J. CADLE SURVEY, 

168 ABSTRACT NO. 65, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; 

169 PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY

170 OR FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS

171 ($ 2, 000. 00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY

172 CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN

173 EFFECTIVE DATE. 

174

175 The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
176

177 2. Z2014 -015 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider approval of an
178 ordinance for a request by Dennis D. Alsup for the approval of a Specific
179 Use Permit ( SUP) for an accessory building that does not conform to the
180 size requirements as specified by Section 2. 1. 2, Residential and Lodging
181 Use Conditions, of Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified
182 Development Code for a property in a Single - Family 10 ( SF -10) District
183 on a 0. 74 -acre parcel of land identified as a portion of Block 4, Garner

84 Addition, zoned Single - Family 10 ( SF -10) District, situated within the
85 North Goliad Overlay ( NGC OV) District, located at 921 Alamo Road, City

Monday, June 16, 2014 City Council Minutes
Page 4

104

rmiller
Highlight

rmiller
Highlight



96

97 Mayor Sweet read a proclamation into the record to recognize Soroptimist and their

98 community outreach efforts. 
99

100 IX. OPEN FORUM

101

102 Mayor Sweet explained how Open Forum is conducted and asked if anyone in the

103 audience would like to come forth and speak during this time. 
104

105 Ruth Peck —108 Lakedale Drive, Rockwall, Texas

106 Ms. Peck came forth to discuss Rockwall Music Fest for Labor Day and introduce
107 Michael Manley as the new conductor. She thanked the Council for their continued
108 support. 

109

110 X. CONSENT AGENDA

111

112 1. Consider approval of the minutes from the June 12 -14 annual city council
113 retreat, and take any action necessary. 

114 2. Consider approval of the minutes from the June 16, 2014 regular city
115 council meeting, and take any action necessary. 

116 3. Consider authorizing the City Manager to engage Fox, Byrd & Company
117 P. C. as the firm to conduct the City' s audit for the fiscal year ending
118 September 30, 2014 and take any action necessary. 

119 4. Consider approval of an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances in
120 Chapter 38. Subdivisions to create a new Article, Article V. related to

121 grading, excavation, earthwork and erosion control for developments, and
122 taking any action necessary. ( 1st reading) 

123 5. Consider approval of Change Order No. 1 to City Contract CIP2013 -004, 
124 Central Water and Sewer Improvements with Barson Utilities, Inc. in the

125 amount of $ 107, 766.25 for additional pavement repairs and related

126 appurtenances with funding from 2008 revenue bonds and take any
127 action necessary. 

128 6. Consider approval of a resolution allowing a temporary partial closure of
129 northbound shoulder of SH 205 from the YMCA facility to Memorial Drive
130 to facilitate the Dirty Rocks Triathlon on Sunday, July 20, 2014 from 7: 00
131 AM to 12: 00 PM, and take any action necessary. 

132 7. Consider approval of an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances in
133 Chapter 22. Miscellaneous Offenses, Article II. Offenses Regarding
134 Minors, Division 5. Sex Offender Residency to modify provisions
135 specifying victims' age, to add a section regarding notice to residents of
136 registered sex offenders, and take any action necessary. ( 1st reading) 

137 8. P2014 -007 - Consider a request by the Cabana' s at Chandler' s Landing
138 Homeowner' s Association on behalf of the residents of the Cabana' s at

139 Chandler' s Landing for the approval of a replat of Lots 1 - 10, Block A, The
140 Cabanas at Chandler's Landing, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 
141 Texas, for a 1. 13 -acre portion of a parcel of land identified as the

1

1142
Cabanas at Chandler' s Landing, zoned Planned Development District 8

Monday, July 07, 2014 City Council Agenda
Page 3

105

rmiller
Highlight



143 PD -8) for multi - family or condominium uses as established in Ordinance
144 73 -48 & 84 -04, generally located south of Yacht Club Drive and west of
145 Harbor View Drive, and take any action necessary. 
146 9. P2014 -013 - Consider a request by Tommy Pulliam of Pulliam
147 Construction Management Inc. on behalf of Rayburn Electric
148 Cooperation, Inc. for the approval of a final plat for Lots 1 - 3, Block A, 
149 Rayburn Country Addition being 11. 407 -acres of land situated in the W. 
150 H. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 26, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 
151 Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial ( HC) District and Agricultural ( AG) 
152 District, located on the south side of Sids Road west of S. Goliad Street
153 SH -205], and take any action necessary. 
154 10. P2014 -014 - Consider a request by Rich Houston on behalf of R. Fifty
155 Green Homes, LLC for the approval of a final plat for Lots 1 - 6, Block A, 
156 Solar Village Addition, containing six ( 6) single family lots on a 2. 055 -acre
157 tract of land situated within the Rueben Ballard Survey, Abstract No. 29, 
158 Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single Family 7 ( SF -7) District, 
159 located directly west of the intersection of Williams Street ( SH -66) and
160 Caruth Lane, and take any action necessary. 
161 11. Consider approval of the bid award for the FM 3097 Utility Relocation
162 Project contract to War Horse Enterprises, Inc. in the amount of
163 135, 872. 72 to be funded from 2008 revenue bonds, and take any action
164 necessary. 

165 12. Z2014 -012 - Consider approval of an ordinance for a request by Master
166 Plan, on behalf of Rockwall SH -205 Venture, LLC, for the approval of a
167 Specific Use Permit ( SUP) to allow a mini - warehouse facility on a 2. 857 - 
168 acre tract of land, zoned Commercial ( C) District, being a portion of a
169 larger 5. 549 -acre tract of land identified as a part of Tract 2 of the J. 
170 Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 65, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
171 generally located south of the intersection of the IH -30 frontage road and
172 Townsend Drive, and take any action necessary. ( 2nd Reading) 
173 13. Consider approval of an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances in
174 Chapter 12, Article III, Section 12 to add Sections 12 -66 to 12 -68, 
175 regulating peddler activities to occupants of vehicles on public roadways
176 in the city and solicitation in public areas, and take any action necessary. 
177 1st reading) 

178 14. Consider approval of an ordinance ( re) establishing prohibition regarding
179 temporary habitation in a public place in Chapter 22. Miscellaneous
180 Offenses, Article 1. In General, Section 22 -4, and take any action
181 necessary. ( 1st reading) 
182 Mayor Pro Tern Pruitt pulled items #4, # 5 and # 13. 
183

184 Councilmember Lewis made a motion to approve the remaining Consent Agenda items. 
185 Councilmember White seconded the motion. The ordinances for # 7, # 12 and # 14 were
186 read as follows: 
187 CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS
188 ORDINANCE NO. 14- 

Monday, July 07, 2014 City Council Agenda
Page 4

106

rmiller
Highlight

rmiller
Highlight



189 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
190 ROCKWALL, TEXAS AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES IN
191 CHAPTER 22. MISCELLANEOUS OFFENSES, ARTICLE II. 
192 OFFENSES REGARDING MINORS, DIVISION 5. SEX OFFENDER
193 RESIDENCY, SECTIONS 22 -136 AND 22 -137 TO MODIFY
194 PROVISIONS SPECIFYING VICTIMS AGE; ADDING A SECTION
195 REGARDING NOTICE TO RESIDENTS OF REGISTERED SEX
196 OFFENDERS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND SAVINGS
197 CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

a., 
199 CITY OF ROCKWALL
200 ORDINANCE NO. 14- 
201 SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. 5- 
202 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
203 TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ ORDINANCE
204 NO. 04 -38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY
205 AMENDED, SO AS TO APPROVE A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT ( SUP) TO
206 ALLOW A MINI - WAREHOUSE FACILITY WITHIN A COMMERCIAL ( C) 
207 DISTRICT AS SPECIFIED WITHIN ARTICLE IV, PERMISSIBLE USES, OF
208 THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE, FOR A 2. 857 -ACRE TRACT OF
209 LAND, BEING A PORTION OF A LARGER 5. 549 -ACRE TRACT OF LAND
210 IDENTIFIED AS PART OF TRACT 2 OF THE J. CADLE SURVEY, 
211 ABSTRACT NO. 65, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; 
212 PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY
213 OR FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS
214 2, 000. 00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
215 CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN
216 EFFECTIVE DATE. 
217

218 CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS

219 ORDINANCE NO. 14- 

220 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
221 TEXAS ESTABLISHING A PROHIBITION REGARDING TEMPORARY
222 HABITATION IN PUBLIC PLACES IN CHAPTER 22. MISCELLANEOUS
223 OFFENSES. ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL, SECTION 22 -4; PROVIDING FOR
224 SEVERABILITY AND SAVINGS CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
225 EFFECTIVE DATE. 

226 After the ordinances were read, the motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
227

228 Mayor Pro Tern Pruitt made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Item # 4 contingent
229 upon the proposed ordinance not having an effect on homeowners as it pertains to their
230 yards. Councilmember White seconded the motion, which passed unanimously of
231 council ( 7 ayes to 0 nays). 

232

233 Mayor Pro Tern Pruitt pulled item # 5 to ask further questions regarding the width of the
234 extension and the delay in repairs. City Engineer Tim Tumulty gave brief history and
235 explanation of the project. Mayor Pro Tern Pruitt made a motion to approve Consent
236 Agenda Item # 5. Councilmember Daniels seconded the motion, which passed
237 unanimously of council (7 ayes to 0 nays). 
238

239 Mayor Pro Tern Pruitt made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Item # 13 contingent
240 upon the language of previsions only as it relates to people in private parking lots. 

Monday, July 07, 2014 City Council Agenda
Page 5

107

rmiller
Highlight

rmiller
Highlight



 

November 13, 2020 

 

Honorable Jim Pruitt, Mayor, and Rockwall City Council 
Rockwall City Hall 
385 South Goliad 
Rockwall, Texas 75087 
 
Attn: Ryan Miller, AICP 
rmiller@rockwall.com 
 

Dear Mayor Pruitt and Rockwall City Councilmembers, 

 

I previously introduced myself in a November 4th, 2020 letter to the planning and zoning commissioners 
as the representative from the current ownership group of the self-storage facility at 1245 TX-276, 
Rockwall, TX 75032 (the “Property”), which is currently managed by CubeSmart.  The November 4th 

letter is attached to hopefully efficiently afford you the opportunity to familiarize yourself with some of 
the previously shared details. 

At the November 10th planning and zoning meeting, there was a lengthy discussion regarding our 
request to amend the SUP to reflect the actual details of the property.  Throughout the discussion some 
noteworthy points were made: 

 We are not the entity that filed the original SUP application, the building permit application, or 
the certificate of occupancy application. 

 We acquired the property after it was constructed relying on the certificate of occupancy that 
was issued for the property (a copy of that certificate of occupancy accompanies this letter). 

 When advised of the discrepancy in the number of units, we promptly filed an amendment to 
the SUP to address the discrepancy. 

 The current configuration of the Property does not present parking or traffic challenges to the 
community; in fact we provided data that shows parking usage is about 25% of capacity and 
about 20% with two additional spaces we have proposed. Our customers visit the facility about 
every 23 days, which is substantially less than most real estate product types.  We maintain 
there is no public impact in granting our request and no one on the P&Z commission 
suggested otherwise. 

 The current configuration of the Property is beneficial to the community and is 88% occupied; 
 While the SUP issued to the developer group (not the current ownership group) has a lower unit 

count printed on it than was constructed and exists today, we are not requesting a change to 
the exterior of the building. 

 Over the past three years we consolidated over 100 units to meet market demands for product 
type.   We unwittingly have already corrected the original 300 excess units by about 33% and 
these reductions had to be approved by our banker as they reduce our potential achieved rent.  

108



Additional reductions will be very challenging physically and would likely not be approved by our 
banker and could put us in potential default of our loan.  

 While planning and zoning commissioners were not asked to opine on whether this facility 
would be a good land use if it were presented today, the discussion indicated that there would 
likely be support for such a facility under the current specifications if it were presented currently 
as a new project.  

 If this project had 579 units it might literally be the lowest density modern climate controlled 
multistory facility in the country; 

 It was clear that P&Z was upset with the developer and did not want to set a precedent for SUP 
amendments. We are not the developer, we did not make application for the building permit or 
certificate of occupancy, we played no role whatsoever in the interaction between the 
developer and the City that have lead us here.  We have consulted with several real estate  
attorneys with 34+ years of experience and they have stated they have never seen/heard of a 
situation like this in their career.  Thus the “risk” that this will happened again and the 
precedent has been set is virtually nill;  

Additional discussion centered around creating a precedent of developers being able to develop 
whatever they want to and disregarding the SUP process should the planning and zoning commissioners’ 
approve our request.  Respectfully and as was stated at the November 10th meeting, we do not agree 
with this premise.  As designed there are checks and balances within the city’s development process 
that are designed to address this concern and one commissioner noted, there were breakdowns within 
the city’s process during development in several departments.  

There was a comment made that granting this request will somehow embolden a rogue developer to 
build extra houses on a tract or extra apartment units in a complex is absurd in our view given the 
number of checks and balances involved in the City development approval process.  

Further, since this is a request to expand the number of units and not a question whether this is an 
appropriate use which was decided in 2015, we trust this request satisfies the standards by which an 
SUP is judged.  Again, there did not appear to be a concern expressed by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission that the additional number of uses was a land use concern. 

As you digest the request before you, we respectfully request that you please note the consequences of 
denial: 

 Eviction of 150-200 Rockwall citizens as tenants, which will require substantial logistical and 
financial efforts on the tenants’ behalf; 

 Reduction in sales taxes that support government and the community – less units results in less 
sales; 

 Reduction in property taxes that support the government and the community – less units will 
impact property value; 

 Substantially increase in rates to the remaining existing tenants – a result of lower supply as well 
as less revenue generated at the property; 

 Potentially putting us in default with a Texas Bank on a loan that is set to renew in 2 months for 
breach of financial covenants and zoning covenants. 

109



Over the course of nearly four years as owners of the property, we have tried our best to be beneficial 
to the community and we are hopeful this does not drastically change as a result as what appears to be 
some clerical errors during the development approval process.  We incurred substantial operating losses 
during our lease up period and will likely achieve a profit for the first time in 2020.   If we sell the 
property to the current interested party we will experience a small loss on our equity and the significant 
costs associated with this issue has impaired our equity even further.  

I hope the complexity of the situation is appreciated and that upon learning of the SUP/approved 
application discrepancies/errors, we immediately notified the city.  We are also hopeful this 
demonstrates our good faith to the City as a responsible corporate citizen that comes to you in good 
faith. 

I plan to attend the November 16th meeting and offer any assistance or additional information you 
require.  Absent any unforeseen air travel issues, I look forward to meeting all of you.  I appreciate that 
Ryan Miller offered to share this note with you on my behalf. If you have any questions in the interim or 
would like other information prepared for the meeting please let Ryan know or reach out to me directly 
if you wish.   

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Benjamin Carr 

Benjamin.x.Carr@gmail.com 

(215) 932-4198 

 

 

Enclosure:  November 4th Letter to Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

 

 

110



 

                                                                            

 

From Start to Satisfaction   900 Jackson St. Suite 640, Dallas, TX 75202 ► tel 214.761.9197 fax 214.748.7114  ► masterplanconsultants.com 

 

Explanation of Request 

South and east of IH30, south and west of Townsend Road 

 

Site:  

 

The 2.857-acre SUP site, located north of Costco and southeast of the Toyota dealership, is developed 

with a 4-story, 119,000-square foot climate controlled self storage facility operated by Cube Smart.  The 

facility also includes 29 outside vehicle storage spaces for lease.  

 

Specific Use Permit: 

 

The City of Rockwall adopted Specific Use Permit 121 (S-121, Ordinance 14-25) on July 7, 2014, 

authorizing development of the 4-story 118,800-square foot self storage facility.  The City of Rockwall 

issued the building permit in August of 2015 and after construction and inspection, a certified of 

occupancy in September of 2016. The property is in the process of undergoing a change of ownership. 

During review of site development data, a few discrepancies were found between S-121, the permitted 

building plans, and the actual facility. The request is to modify the SUP to align with actual development 

to address non-conformities that present real estate or transactional issues. The items requested to be 

addressed include:  

 

Maximum storage unit count: The concept plan exhibit tied to S-121 cites a maximum storage unit 

count of 579 units. A total of 579 units is also referenced on the site plan carried forward and included in 

the approved building plans; however, the floor plans in the same approved building plan set shows 827 

units. The facility was constructed with over 800 units initially, but the number of interior units has been 

decreased to 778 currently. This flexibility is needed to adapt and meet customer needs of certain unit 

sizes. The change in sizes impacts the total number of units.  

 

The “579” figure was inadvertently placed on the site plan and conveyed as part of the SUP application 

materials. As such, the total count of 579 units cited as part of the SUP application was an oversight and 

underrepresented the total number of units planned for a facility of this type and size. Self-storage 

facilities that are multi-story, and predominately climate-controlled generally have a disproportionate 

number of smaller units of 5’ x 5’ or 5’ x 10’ as opposed to a greater number of larger units found with 

one-story conventional facilities with drive up access. The subject facility’s mixture caters to domestic 

needs where smaller units accommodate a limited amount of stored goods that customers can 

comfortably transport in an elevator to an upper story.  Platinum Storage, the developer and currently a 

minority owner of the facility, always intended to accommodate 800 or more total storage units 

depending on the fluctuating sub-market demand from customers.  The floor plans submitted as part of 

the building plans supports this intent. Furthermore, there are several multi-story self storage facilities 

111



 

From Start to Satisfaction   900 Jackson St. Suite 640, Dallas, TX 75202 ► tel 214.761.9197 fax 214.748.7114  ► masterplanconsultants.com 

 

in DFW that have unit counts between 700 to 1,000 units or more. The chart at the bottom of the next 

section provides a few examples of comparable facilities. 

 

Maximum unit density: The City of Rockwall, unlike most municipalities, limits the unit density of self 

storage facilities with a cap of 125 units per acre. S-121 allowing a maximum of 579 units on 2.857 acres, 

yields a density of 202 units per acre. The approved building plans allowing 827 units, yields a density of 

289 units per acre.  The proposal of 794 units would yield a density of 278 units per acre. As may be 

recalled, the property is buried behind and at a lower elevation than adjacent retail buildings. Thus, for 

this type of facility to have the visibility necessary to be successful, it had to be constructed at four 

stories in height, and a density that supports and that is commensurate with the invested infrastructure. 

The maximum density in the development code of only 125 storage units per acre would merely 

accommodate the first generational one story non-climate controlled facilities. It is common for three- 

and four-story self storage facilities to yield densities around 200 units per acre or more.  The City of 

Rockwall’s density parameter would never accommodate a modern multi story class A climate 

controlled facility unless the land for which it sits coincidentally were large enough to minimize the 

density. The number of units and density of this facility is not uncommon. Here are some of the many 

modern class A facilities in DFW that have comparable characteristics of scale and high density: 

 

 

Maximum floor area: The concept plan exhibit tied to S-121 cites a maximum floor area of 118,800 

square feet.  The approved building plans cite a maximum floor area of 124,480 square feet. The most 

recent survey of the property reflects a building floor area of 119,000 square feet. The proposed SUP 

amendment would modify the maximum floor area to align with the approved building plans from 

118,800 to 119,000 square feet. The discrepancy in total floor area is minor and inconsequential 

particularly considering the scale of the development and the lack of occupancy and intensity of a self 

storage development. The difference in floor area is imperceptible and poses no harm or detriment to 

the health, safety and welfare. 

 

Parking compliance: The off-street parking requirement is based on the number of storage units. The 

City of Rockwall requires a base of three parking spaces and one parking space for each 100 storage 

units. The SUP amendment would include adjusting the required parking from nine to 11 to align with 

the adjustment to the total number of storage units. There are currently nine parking spaces on-site.  

FACILITY ADDRESS CITY FLOOR AREA NO. OF 
UNITS 

DENSITY 
UNITS/PER 

ACRE 

Storage 365 3400 Post Oak 
Boulevard 

Fort Worth 151,000 966 241 

CubeSmart 6831 W. Northwest 
Highway 

Dallas 80,000 528 704 

Storage 365 3940 Plano Parkway Plano 119,600 885 640 

Storage 365 2696 Burney Road Arlington 152,400 1,059 185 

Storage 365 Abrams Richardson 149,000 1,041 400 

Public Storage 2104 Hedgcoxe Plano 103,000 805 206 

112



 

                                                                            

 

From Start to Satisfaction   900 Jackson St. Suite 640, Dallas, TX 75202 ► tel 214.761.9197 fax 214.748.7114  ► masterplanconsultants.com 

 

The enclosed updated Concept Plan reflects striping two additional parallel spaces on existing concrete 

near the office to provide a total of 11 spaces to satisfy the parking requirement. Self storage facilities 

generate minimal traffic of 2 to 4 visitors per hour. Moreover, most visitors are customers who would 

park in an unloading/loading area adjacent to the building as opposed to a conventional parking space.  

Conventional parking spaces are typically used by one employee, the occasional prospective customer 

visiting the office, or an occasional service or delivery truck. As such, most of the 11 parking spaces (or 

currently nine spaces) go underutilized. Nonetheless, the proposal includes adjusting the supply to 

comply with the city’s parking requirements. 

 

Outside vehicle storage spaces:  SUP-121 grants 28 outside vehicle storage spaces for recreational 

vehicles, boats, and other large vehicles. There is capacity for one additional storage space at the far 

northern corner near the dumpster. The request includes authorization to allow the one additional 

storage space for a total of 29 outside vehicle spaces. The entire vehicle storage area is completely 

enclosed and screened from adjacent properties. The one additional space has no impact to adjacent 

properties.  Below is a summary of the discrepancies in chart form: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Masterplan requests amendment of SUP - 121 to align the development site data in the Specific Use 

Permit ordinance with the permitted and actual development. The developer always intended to have 

approximately 800 units, not unlike many comparable facilities in DFW. We ask the city to approve the 

amendment to resolve these matters. The facility is the only one of its kind in the sub-market and it 

caters to customers who prefer to use a climate control facility in a retail area vs. a conventional one 

story drive up facility in an industrial area. The facility is at 89% capacity, indicating there is strong 

demand and no oversupply. The previously presented size and scale of the building is generally 

consistent with actual development. Also, the total number of units and density of self storage, as 

opposed to apartments or office, has minimal if any realized impact on the area given the very limited 

traffic generation and lack of consistent human occupancy of these facilities. The site accommodated 

one additional vehicle storage space at the north/northwest corner of the site.  

 

DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARD 

SPECIFIC USE 
PERMIT 

(SF) 

APPROVED 
BUILDING 
PLANS/CO 

ACTUAL PROPOSED 

Floor area 118,800 124,480 119,000 119,000 

Total units 579 827 778 794 

Unit density 203 289 273 278 

Parking required 
(3 + 1/100 units) 

9 12 11 11 

Outside vehicle 
spaces 

28 28 29 29 

Parking provided 9 9 9 11 

113



 

 

November 4, 2020 

 

Hon. Eric Chodun and Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission 
Rockwall City Hall 
385 South Goliad 
Rockwall, Texas  75087 
 
Attn: Ryan Miller, AICP 
rmiller@rockwall.com 
 
 RE: Z2020-043, Approval of an amendment to an existing Specific Use Permit (“SUP”) 
 
Dear Chairman Chodun and Planning and Zoning Commission, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to allow us to request a modification to the Specific Use Permit 
referenced above.  As the representative from the current ownership group of the self-storage facility at 
1245 TX-276, Rockwall, TX 75032 (the “Property”), which is currently managed by CubeSmart, I would 
like to both introduce myself and relay a few thoughts/concerns after having watched the October 27, 
2020 meeting.  Having watched that video, we understand the issues raised by P&Z and respectfully 
request your consideration for our request given the circumstances presented in this letter. 

In January of 2017, our seven-person group of friends and family formed Wolverine Self-Storage 
Investments (“Wolverine”).  We pooled our funds and purchased the Property, which included the self-
storage facility, from the developer, this is the only property that we purchased.  At the October 27, 
2020 P&Z meeting, it did not seem that this important fact was made clear - that Wolverine is a separate 
entity from the previous owner – the developer.  Wolverine was not involved in the original SUP zoning 
or the construction of the building. 

Over the almost four years we have owned the Property, we have used CubeSmart as the professional 
manager and we have strived to serve the Rockwall community at the highest level, which includes 
keeping the property looking sharp, offering the highest level of customer service and trying to be a 
positive influence through interaction with the chamber of commerce along with other activities. We 
have brought occupancy from less than 10% to 89% and we have over 650 tenants.  This is a world-class, 
four-story, climate-controlled, state of the art storage facility not to be confused with a typical drive up 
product.  If you have never visited the facility, I welcome you to do so and I think you will be impressed.   

Prior to closing on the January 2017 acquisition, Wolverine relied on several due diligence items to 
ensure the property was worthy of continued and prospective operations including the September 2016 
Certificate of Occupancy issued by the City that indicated to us that the City approved construction and 
operation of the Property.  

We regret that we were not made aware of the difference in unit count from the  SUP in our purchase 
diligence and would have insisted that the unit count upon issuance of Certificate of Occupancy agree 

114



 

 

with the SUP before the purchase had we known. We learned of the discrepancy for the first time just a 
few weeks ago and began the process to try and correct the problem. 

As noted at the October 27th P&Z meeting, the Property had over 874 self-storage units at the time we 
purchased it, and over the past few years we have consolidated to 774 self-storage units – a reduction in 
excess of 100 units.  The unit reduction is a result of our focused approach on providing the product mix 
that the community demands and when possible, we have combined smaller units into larger ones.  At 
this juncture, we do not foresee any further unit combinations for two reasons:  1)  the existing offering 
appears to match the community’s need as we are 89% occupied and 2)  further unit combinations 
become very challenging physically as the unit layout does not support such combination without 
substantial physical alteration (if possible) and capital investment.  

I noted that the unit density was the primary topic that was discussed at the October 27th P&Z meeting. I 
want to stress that we have not experienced any issues with traffic or with the nine parking spaces 
throughout our ownership period.  The nature of operation of a self-storage property is such that 
customer visits are generally infrequent and for very short periods of time. I have attached a summary 
of data from the gate security system below for the first week of September 2020 which identifies every 
customer that enters the property who all have 24-hour secure access.  This data shows we average 
about 28 visits per day during the peak 12-hour period that means we have about 2.4 visits per hour.  
Thus, we are using less than 30% of the current parking spaces.  Our customers on average are visiting 
the property just 1.3 times per month or about every 23 days. It is our view that there will be no 
negative public impact if you were to grant our request.  

We are of course very concerned about the impacts of denying the current request  such as the need to 
reduce the number of units currently being rented and the lost revenue to both the City and our 
ownership which we understand should not be issues placed on the P&Z.  We hope, though, that our 
reliance on the Certificate of Occupancy when we bought the facility from the developer is taken into 
consideration with this application and our attempt to correct the discrepancies.   

We recognize the City of Rockwall must make decisions that benefit the community and align with 
parameters that govern activities of all sorts and in no way does the Wolverine group wish to upset or 
negatively impact anyone.  Please consider the unique circumstances of this scenario when 
contemplating our request.  We regret that you are having to address this matter and sincerely 
apologize that we come to you asking for help.   

I plan to attend the November 10th meeting and offer any assistance or additional information you 
require.  Absent any unforeseen air travel issues, I look forward to meeting all of you.  I appreciate that 
Ryan Miller offered to share this note with you on my behalf. If you have any questions in the interim or 
would like other information prepared for the meeting please let Ryan know or reach out to me directly 
if you wish.   

Sincerely, 

 

 

Benjamin Carr 

115



 

 

 

Contact Information: 

 

Benjamin.x.Carr@gmail.com 

(215) 932-4198 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rockwall Customer Visits 

Day 12 hr day
Date Day count per hour

9/1/2020 Tuesday 25 2.08
9/2/2020 Wednesday 24 2.00
9/3/2020 Thursday 25 2.08
9/4/2020 Friday 34 2.83
9/5/2020 Saturday 32 2.67
9/6/2020 Sunday 22 1.83
9/7/2020 Monday 36 3.00

Actual Total for the Week 198

Average Per Day 28.3
# Of Visits Each 12 hours 2.4
Average Per Month 849
Current Customers Count 651
Visits Per Month 1.3
Days Between Visits 23

116



10' BUILDING SETBACK

15
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

10' BUILDING SETBACK
10

' B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E
TB

A
C

K

C
u

m
u

lu
s 

D
e

si
g

n
F

ir
m

 #
1
4
8
1
0

2
0
8
0
 N

. 
H

ig
h
w

a
y 

3
6
0
, 
S

u
ite

 2
4
0

G
ra

n
d
 P

ra
ir
ie

, 
T

e
xa

s 
7
5
0
5
0

T
e
l. 

2
1
4
.2

3
5
.0

3
6
7

E R
ALPH H

ALL 

30

30

TL TO
W

NSEND DR

W
 Y

ELL
OW

 JA
CKET 

276

205

205

205

117



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-XX 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-2XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY 
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) 
FOR AN EXISTING MINI-WAREHOUSE FACILITY ON A 2.857-
ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 4, BLOCK A, 
PLATINUM STORAGE ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Maxwell Fisher, AICP of Master Plan on behalf 
of Wolverine Self-Storage Investments-Rockwall EDP for the approval of a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) for an Existing Mini-Warehouse Facility for the purpose of amending S-121 [Ordinance No. 
14-25] to account for as-built conditions on a 2.857-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block 
A, Platinum Storage Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) 
District ], addressed as 1245 SH-276, and being more specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ and 
depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of  this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject 
Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1. That the approval of this ordinance shall supersede all requirements stipulated in 
Ordinance No. 14-25; and, 
 
SECTION 2. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) for an Existing Mini-Warehouse Facility in accordance with Article 04, 
Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject 
Property; and, 
 

SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be subject to the requirements set forth in Subsection 
02.03(J)(1), Mini-Warehouse, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, and the development standards 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

118



contained in Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and the 
following conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 

The following conditions pertain to the operation of a Mini-Warehouse Facility on the Subject 
Property and conformance to these conditions is required for continued operation: 

 

1) All construction and operations on this property shall generally conform to the Concept Plan 
contained in Exhibit ‘B’ and the Building Elevations contained in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 

 

2) The maximum number of storage units permitted on the subject property shall be 794-units. 
 

3) All transparent fences shall be wrought iron, and when necessary shall incorporate 
landscaping/living screening to screen the interior of the facility.  Chain-link fencing is 
prohibited. 

 

4) The height of the building shall not exceed four (4) stories or 60-feet in total height. 
 

5) Outside storage shall be limited to the areas depicted on the Concept Plan in Exhibit ‘A’, and 
shall be entirely screened by a row of evergreen trees (i.e. Leyland Cypress) to be planted 
along the eastern property line.  No outside storage of any kind shall be permitted outside of 
the areas depicted on the Concept Plan.  Outside storage shall be limited to the storage of 
boats, recreational vehicles, and motor or self-propelled vehicles. 

 

6) Businesses shall not be allowed to operate within individual storage units. 
 

7) The commercial operation of rental trucks and trailers shall be prohibited. 
 

8) All signage shall be required to conform to the requirements stipulated by the Municipal Code 
of Ordinances.  In addition, pole signage shall be prohibited on this site. 

 

9) All poles shall be limited to a maximum height of 20-feet and all light fixtures proposed for the 
site shall comply with the requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC). 
 

2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy (CO), should the business owner operating under 

the guidelines of this ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth 
herein and outlined in the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) 
initiate proceedings to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 
02.02(F), Revocation, of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

119



SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 7TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2020. 
 
 
     

 
 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  November 16, 2020 
 

2nd Reading: December 7, 2020 
 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

120



 
Address: 1245 SH-276 
Legal Description: Lot 4, Block A, Platinum Storage Addition 
 

 
  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

121



BEING a 2.857-acre tract of land, being a portion of a 5.549 acres tract of land recorded in 
instrument No. 2013-480420, situated in the JOSEPTH CADLE SURVEY, ABST#65 and the N.M. 
BALLARD SURVEY ABST. #48, in the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and being a 
portion of a 65.96 tract of land recorded in Volume 4663, page 281 of the Official Public Records 
of Rockwall County, Texas and being all and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at 5/8-inch iron rod set for the northerly northwest corner of Lot 1, Block 1 of Rockwall 
Centre Corners Addition according to the plat recorded in Cabinet G, Slide 299 of the Plat Records 
of Rockwall County, Texas and being located in the southeasterly line of Lot 1, Block 1 of Toyota 
of Rockwall according to the plat recorded in Cabinet G, Slide 153-155 Plat Records of Rockwall 
County, Texas; 
 
THENCE along the southeasterly line of said Toyota of Rockwall Addition, NORTH 33°54’52” 
EAST a distance of 460.20-feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod to be set in the southeasterly line of Lot 1, 
Block 1 of Toyota of Rockwall according to the plat recorded in Cabinet G, Slide 153-155 of the 
Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas and being the west corner of a 2.692 acre tract being a 
portion of a 5.549-acre tract of land recoded in Instrument No. 2013-480420 Rockwall SH205 
Venture, LLC of the Official Public Records of Rockwall County, Texas; 
 
THENCE departing the southeasterly line of said Lot 1, Block 1, SOUTH 56°05’08” EAST a 
distance of 339.05-feet to a 5/8-inch iron road to be set in the southwest line of said 65.96-acre 
tract of land being the southeast corner of a 2.692-acre tract being a portion of a 5.549-acre tract 
of land recoded in Instrument No. 2013-480420 Rockwall SH205 Venture, LLC of the Official 
Public Records of Rockwall County, Texas; 
 
THENCE departing the southwest corner of said 2.692-acre tract of land and traveling through 
said 65.96-acre tract of land the following course and distances: 
 
SOUTH 22°36’40” WEST a distance of 158.90 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod set; 
 
SOUTH 00°57’44” WEST a distance of 54.05 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod set in the north line of 
said Lot 1 of Rockwall Centre Corners Addition; 
 
THENCE along said north line, NORTH 89°02’16” WEST a distance of 476.20 feet to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING; 
  D

R
A

FT
  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

122



 

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

123



 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

124



MEMORANDUM
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: November 16, 2020

SUBJECT: Z2020-044; SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR A RESIDENTIAL INFILL
FOR 102 THISTLE PLACE

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
HOA Notification Map
Neighborhood Notification Email
Property Owner Notification Map
Property Owner Notification List
Public Notice
Building Elevations
Residential Plot Plan
Floor Plan
Housing Analysis
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Casey Cox of Costal Plains Estates
for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an
Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-family home on a 0.21-acre
parcel of land identified as Lot 24, Block A, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 7, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family
residential land uses, addressed as 102 Thistle Place, and take any action necessary (1st
Reading).

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to [1] approve, [2] approve with condition, or [3] deny the
Specific Use Permit (SUP).

125



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

DATE: November 16, 2020 

APPLICANT: Casey Cox 

CASE NUMBER: Z2020-044; Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Residential Infill for 102 Thistle Place 

SUMMARY 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Casey Cox of Costal Plains Estates for the approval of a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-family home on a 
0.21-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 24, Block A, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 7, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 102 Thistle Place, and take 
any action necessary. 

BACKGROUND 

The subject property was annexed into the City of Rockwall on October 29, 1973 by Ordinance No. 73-43. At the time of 
annexation, the property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  On November 12, 1973, the subject property was rezoned from 
an Agricultural (AG) District to Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land uses by Ordinance No. 73-48.  The 
subject property was platted as Lot 4, Block A, as part of the Chandlers Landing Phase 7, Installment 2 final plat, which was 
approved by the City Council on June 7, 1976. On September 16, 2013, the City Council approved a replat [P2013-026] that 
combined the subject property and Lot 5, Block A to create one (1) residential lot (i.e. Lot 23, Block A, Chandler’s Landing, 
Phase 7, Installment 2). On September 16, 2014, the City Council approved a replat subdividing Lot 23, Block A, Chandler’s 
Landing, Phase 7, Installment 2 into two (2) residential lots (i.e. Lots 24 & 25, Block A, Chandler’s Landing Phase 7, Installment 
2). The subject property has remained vacant since its annexation into the City of Rockwall. 

PURPOSE 

The applicant, is requesting the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for the purpose of constructing a single-family home 
on the subject property in accordance with Subsection 02.03(B)(11), Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established 
Subdivision, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC). 

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 

The subject property is located at 102 Thistle Place.  The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 

North: Directly north of the subject property is a 0.1928-acre vacant parcel of land (i.e. Lot 3, Block A, Chandler’s Landing, 
Phase 7, Installment 2). Beyond this are two (2) single family homes (i.e. 121 & 123 Yacht Club Drive) zoned 
Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land uses. North of this is Yacht Club Drive, which is 
classified as a Minor Collector on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan.  

South: Directly south of the subject property is a single-family home (i.e. 104 Thistle Place) zoned Planned Development 
District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land uses. Beyond this is Henry M. Chandler Drive, which is classified as a Minor 
Collector on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 
Beyond this is a 3.53-acre tract of land indicated as the Spyglass Hill, Phase One Subdivision, which is zoned for 
multi-family land uses.  

126



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

East: Directly east of the subject property are two (2) tracts of land (i.e. Tract 134 & 134-16 of the E. Teal Survey, Abstract 
No. 207) owned by the Chandler’s Landing Homeowners Association (HOA), and which total 4.263-acres. These 
tracts serve as a plaza and open space for the Chandler’s Landing Subdivision. Beyond this is the corporate limits 
of the City of Rockwall. 

 
West: Directly west of the subject property is Thistle Place, which is classified as a R2 (i.e. residential, two [2] lane, 

undivided roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive 
Plan. Beyond this are two (2) single-family homes (i.e. 103 Thistle Place & 6003 Volunteer Place), which are zoned 
Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for Single-Family land uses. West of this is Henry M. Chandler Drive, which 
is classified as a Minor Collector on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 
CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST AND CONFORMANCE TO THE CITY’S CODES 
 
Article 13, Definitions, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) defines Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established 
Subdivision as “(t)he new development of a single-family home or duplex on an existing vacant or undeveloped parcel of land 
or the redevelopment of a developed parcel of land for a new single-family home or duplex within an established subdivision 
that is mostly or entirely built-out.”  An established subdivision is further defined in Subsection 02.03(B) (11) of Article 04, 
Permissible Uses, of the UDC as “…a subdivision that consists of five (5) or more lots, that is 90% developed, and that has 
been in existence for more than ten (10) years.”  In this case, the subject property is located within the Chandler’s Landing, 
Phase 7, Installment 2 Subdivision, which has been in existence June 7, 1976, consists of 34 lots, and is 91.18% developed.  
The Permissible Use Charts contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the UDC, requires a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 
Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established Subdivision in all single-family zoning districts, the Two-Family (2F) District, 
the Downtown (DT) District, and the Residential-Office (RO) District.  This property, being in a Planned Development District for 
single-family land uses, requires a Specific Use Permit (SUP). 
 
In addition, Subsection 02.03(B)(11) of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the UDC states that, “…the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council shall consider the proposed size, location, and architecture of the home compared to the existing 
housing … [and] (a)ll housing proposed under this section [i.e. Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established Subdivision] 
shall be constructed to be architecturally and visually similar or complimentary to the existing housing …”  The following is a 
summary of observations concerning the housing on Thistle Place, Gretel Place, and Volunteer Place compared to the house 
proposed by the applicant: 
 

Housing Design and 
Characteristics 

Existing Housing on Thistle Place, Gretel Place, & 
Volunteer Place and the Subject Property 

Proposed Housing 

Building Height One (1) & Two (2) Story Two (2) Story  
Building Orientation All of the homes are oriented toward the street they 

are built along. 
The front elevation of the home will face onto Thistle 
Place. 

Year Built 1979-2012 N/A 
Building SF on Property 1,586 SF – 4,949 SF  3,974 SF (2,952 SF of Air-Conditioned Space) 
Building Architecture Single Family Homes Comparable Architecture to the surrounding Single-

Family Homes 
Building Setbacks:   

Front Estimated Between 20-Feet and 35-Feet 25-Feet 
Side Estimated between zero (0) and greater than ten (10) 

feet. 
X>7-Feet 

Rear The rear yard setbacks appear to be greater than ten 
(10) feet. 

X>20-Feet  

Building Materials Brick and Siding (Secondary)  Stone, Siding, and Stucco 
Paint and Color Red, White, Grey, Blonde, and Brown Undefined by the Applicant 
Roofs Composite Shingles  Composite Shingle 
Driveways/Garages Driveways all front the same street the single-family 

home faces. Front-facing, J-swing, and no garages.  
The garage will be attached and located 
approximately one (1) foot in front of the front façade. 

 

According to Section 04, Residential Parking, of Article 06, Parking and Loading, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(i)n 
single-family or duplex districts, parking garages must be located at least 20-feet behind the front façade for front entry garages 
…” In this case, the applicant is proposing to put the garage one (1) foot in front of the front façade of the single-family home, 

127



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 3 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

and if approved the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be waiving this requirement. Staff should note that 
single-family home directly south of the subject property also has a garage in front of the front façade of the single-family home, 
and that this garage orientation is not uncharacteristic of the neighborhood. With the exception of the garage orientation, the 
proposed single-family home meets all of the density and dimensional requirements as stipulated by the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) and Planned Development District 8 (PD-8). For the purpose of comparing the proposed home to the existing 
single-family housing located adjacent to or in the vicinity of the subject property, staff has provided photos of the properties 
along Thistle Place, Gretel Place, and Volunteer Place and the proposed building elevations in the attached packet. The approval 
of this request is a discretionary decision for the City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and a finding that the proposed house will not have a negative impact on the existing subdivision. 

NOTIFICATIONS 

On October 17, 2020, staff mailed 159 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the subject property.  Staff 
also notified the Chandler’s Landing, and Spyglass Phase 1, 2, & 3 Homeowner’s Associations (HOAs), which are HOA’s within 
1,500-feet of the subject property participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program.  Additionally, staff posted a sign on 
the subject property, and advertised the public hearings in the Rockwall Herald Banner as required by the Unified Development 
Code (UDC).  At the time this report was drafted, staff had received no notices in regard to the applicant’s request. 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

If the City Council chooses to approve the applicant’s request for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to construct a single-family home 
as a Residential Infill within an Established Subdivision, then staff would propose the following conditions of approval: 

(1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the operational conditions contained in the Specific Use
Permit (SUP) ordinance and which are detailed as follows:

(a) Development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of
the draft ordinance.

(b) Construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Building Elevations
depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of the draft ordinance; and,

(c) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted by the City, the Specific
Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by the property owner shall be required.

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall conform to the requirements set forth
by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of
Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered
and/or enforced by the state and federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

On November 10, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted to recommend approval of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) 
by a vote of 7-0. 

128



129



CO
MM

OD
OR

E

THISTLE
HENRY M CHANDLER

VOLUNTEER

HENRY M CHANDLER

Z2020-044- SUP FOR 102 THISTLE PLACE
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 30 60 90 12015
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I130



BUCKINGHAM

RI
DG

E

RIDGE

WHISPER ROCK

COUNTRY CLUB

LAKEWAY

HA
RB

OR
 LA

ND
IN

G

WELLINGTON

CH
AR

LO
TT

E

LAKEWAY

PO
RT

VIE
W

MONT BLANC

YACHT CLUB

AURORA

HENRY M CHANDLER

GENESTA

MONT BLANC

RI
DG

E

CHAPEL

VOLUNTEER

CO
LU

MB
IA

COLUMBIA

RANGER

SCEPTRE

THISTLE

PR
OM

ON
TO

RY

BENTON

HARBORVIEW

HUNTINGTON

GRETEL

HA
RB

OR
VIE

W

BENTON
WOODS

VERSAILLES

SO
UT

HW
IN

DRAINBOW

URBINE

CO
MM

OD
OR

EHENRY M CHANDLER

WHITE

OXFORD

CAMBRIA
SOVEREIGN

COLUMBIA

CA
MBR

IDG
E

Chandler's
Landing

Spyglass,
PH 1

Benton
Woods

Spyglass,
PH 2 & 3

0 260 520 780 1,040130
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

RID
GEYACHT CLUB

WHITE

LAKEWAY

VOLUNTEER

COUNTRY CLUB

WELLINGTON

SCEPTRE

HARBORVIEW

OXFORD

RANGER

BENTON WOODS
COURAGEOUS

CHAPEL

Case Number:

Case Address:

Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2020-044

102 Thistle Place

Zoning
SUP for Residential Infill
Planned Development District 8
(PD-8)

10/19/2020 131



1

Miller, Ryan

From: Gamez, Angelica
Sent: Wednesday, October 21, 2020 2:20 PM
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Lee, Henry
Subject: Neighborhood Notification Program
Attachments: Public Notice (10.20.2020).pdf; HOA Map Z2020-044.pdf

HOA/Neighborhood Association Representative: 
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notice to inform your organization 
that a zoning case has been filed with the City of Rockwall that is located within 1,500‐feet of the boundaries of your 
neighborhood.  As the contact listed for your organization, you are encouraged to share this information with the 
residents of your subdivision.  Please find the attached map detailing the property requesting to be rezoned in relation to 
your subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is the summary of the zoning case that was published in the Rockwall 
Herald Banner on Friday, October 23, 2020.  The Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, 
November 10, 2020 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, November 16, 2020 at 6:00 
PM.  Both hearings will take place at 6:00 PM at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, TX 75087.  
 
All interested parties are encouraged to submit public comments via email to Planning@rockwall.com  at least 30 minutes 
in advance of the meeting.  Please include your name, address, and the case number your comments are referring 
to.  These comments will be read into the record during each of the public hearings. Additional information on all current 
development cases can be found on the City’s website: 
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development‐cases. 
 
Z2020‐044 Specific Use Permit for Residential Infill  
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Casey Cox of Costal Plains Estates for the approval of a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single‐family home on 
a 0.21‐acre parcel of land identified as Lot 24, Block A, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 7, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD‐8) for single‐family residential  land uses, addressed as 102 Thistle Place, and
take any action necessary.  
 

Thank you,  

 
Angelica Gamez  
Planning & Zoning Coordinator 
City of Rockwall 
972.771.7745 Office  
972.772.6438 Direct 
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/  
 
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender 

132



7

101

132

155

7

5912

202

123

101

108

110

202

211

208

103

106

203

204

104

207206

201

121

112

6102

105

5915

105

103

205

209
109

111

6002

6106 6004

6007

6108

102

107

201

6101

6003

5913

5906

6005

5908

5904

5907

6107 6103

6104

5902

6105

5911
114

6109

204

5921

113

5903

203

5924

5922

5928

5909

5929

5930

5926

5918

5927

5917

5920

5919

5913
5915

5911

5916

5925

5914

201

135

156

132133

147

146

158

143
144

134

166

142

145

155

165

157

5909

124

126
127

5907

250

249
149

148

150

237

260

262
261

161

160
159

136

162

137

164
264

163

230
131 231

263

202
201

259

130

103
203

275

236

228
129

122
221

222

172

101

123

115

170

116117
118

270

268
167

120
219

220

216

128

274

273
374

215

217

102

218 114
113

171
372

272

271

121

213
214

111
211

112
110

310
212

138
139339

239
238

204
305
306
106

140
141

107
108

154
371

240

354
254

153
353151

351

PD-8

YACHT CLUB

VOLUNTEER

LAKEWAY

RI
DG

E

HENRY M CHANDLER

SC
EP

TR
E

CA
MB

RI
DG

E

CO
MM

OD
OR

E

GRETEL

THISTLE

WELLINGTON

HENRY M CHANDLER

RIDGE

SCEPTR
E0 130 260 390 52065

Feet
I

City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

RID
GE

 RD

YACHT CLUB DR

WHITE RD

LAKEWAY DR

VOLUNTEER PL

RACHEAL DR

BENTON WOODS DR

SCEPTRE DR

HARBORVIEW DR

OXFORD DR

RANGER DR

MONT BLANC DR

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2020-044

102 Thistle Place

Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: SUP for Residential Infill
Zoning: Planned Development District 8

(PD-8)

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  10/19/2020

Legend
Parcels
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties

133



CHANDLERS LANDING COMMUNITY 
ASSOCIATION 

1 COMMODORE PLAZA  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

PRICE JASON ALAN 
10041 W DUBLIN DR  
FORNEY, TX 75126 

 

 

NIGH INVESTMENTS LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY 

101 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

ARNOLD MICHAEL J & KATHY RENEE 
101 SCEPTRE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HAYS DANNY W AND JOAN A 
102 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

TOMPKINS JAMES MICHAEL & LAURIE CARLENE 
GARVIN 

102 THISTLEPL  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

RODRIGUEZ GUILLERMO AND DEBORAH 
1029 SILVERTHORN CT  
MESQUITE, TX 75150 

 

 

SHIVERS MARGARET ANN 
103 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SELL KIMBERLEE Z 
103 SCEPTRE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

FISHER TED Y 
103 THISTLE PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

PATTERSON WILLIAM L JR AND DWAYLA L 
REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 

104 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

JONES ANGELA DENISE 
104 THISTLE PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

SELZER DEANNA 
105 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MCMAHON PATRICK AND CHERYL 
105 SCEPTRE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RAY LAURA MATTESON 
105 THISTLE PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

YNIGUEZ THOMAS WAYNE & 
MANDY E YNIGUEZ 

106 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

SOMERS CHARLES LEWIS JR AND MICHELLE 
IRENE 

107 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

KEITH BENJAMIN AND 
SHERYL KEITH 

108 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

SEALS CLEVELAND L & CARROL LYNN 
109 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SEALS CLEVELAND L & CARROL LYNN 
110 CODY CIR N  

SULPHUR SPRINGS, TX 75482 
 

 

PARNES ALEXANDRA 
110 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

COOK JEAN QUILL 
1102 HERITAGE  

GARLAND, TX 75043 
 

 

GARDNER DAVID L REV LIV TR 
1105 51ST ST W  

BRADENTON, FL 34209 
 

 

ROMER ENTERPRISES LLC 
111 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

GARDNER DAVID L REV LIV TR 
112 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

FOSTER ROBERT L AND RUTH E 
113 HENRY M CHANDLER DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

N & S PROPERTIES LLC 
114 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

HPA US1 LLC 
120 RIVERSIDE PLZ STE 2000  

CHICAGO, IL 60606 
 

 

ELLISTON DANIEL MARK 
121 YACHT CLUB DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

RAGLE VICKIE 
122 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

134



HAYS DANNY W AND JOAN A 
123 HENRY M CHANDLER DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HPA US1 LLC 
123 YACHT CLUBDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CGN SPYGLASS LLC 
124 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

ESTRERA AARON S ETUX 
125 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

STEWART BEVERLY AND JAMES 
125 SHEPHERDS GLEN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

KEITH BENJAMIN AND 
SHERYL KEITH 

126 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

JONES JONATHAN 
127 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MCCLOY STEPHANIE JOAN 
128 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ROCKWALL HOMES LLC 
C/O SAUNDRA HOLLAND 

129 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

HAYS DANNY W & JOAN 
130 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RODRIGUEZ GUILLERMO AND DEBORAH 
131 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

NELSON FAMILY LIVING TRUST 
JERRY C NELSON AND MARIBETH NELSON- 

TRUSTEES 
132 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

WRIGHT RHONDA 
133 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CROUCH FAMILY LIVING TRUST 
JERROLD F AND KATHLEEN A CROUCH TRUSTEES 

134 HENRY M. CHANDLER DR.  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

CGN SPYGLASS LLC 
135 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

CGN SPYGLASS LLC 
138 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CGN SPYGLASS LLC 
139 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ENGEL MARIA 
140 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RIVERA ENRIQUE JR AND 
SAHARA AGUIRRE 

1403 BIRMINGHAM DR  
ARLINGTON, TX 76012 

 

 

WALKER SHERRIE G LIFE ESTATE 
CYNTHIA SEELY & STEVEN WALKER 

141 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

STEWART BEVERLY AND JAMES 
142 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

NIGH INVESTMENTS LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY 

1420 PICKWICK LANE  
DENTON, TX 76209 

 

 

CGN SPYGLASS LLC 
143 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

WEBSTER MARY ANN 
14621 LAKECREST DR  
ADDISON, TX 75001 

 

PARNES ALEXANDRA 
15 KESTREL CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

BALLARD AMANDA L & 
MATTHEW WEST BALLARD 

155 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

SOMERS CHARLES LEWIS JR AND MICHELLE 
IRENE 

18208 PRESTON RD SUITE D9-408 
DALLAS, TX 75252 

 

SIDDIQI NAVEED AND TAMARA ABDULWAHAB 
194 BURNS ST  

FOREST HILLS, NY 11375 
 

 

COOK JEAN QUILL 
201 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MACFARLANE VICTOR L TRUST 
VICTOR B & THADERINE D MACFARLANE 

TRUSTEES 
201 SPEAR ST STE 1000 

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 
 

135



MACFARLANE VICTOR L TRUST 
VICTOR B & THADERINE D MACFARLANE 

TRUSTEES 
201 YACHT CLUB DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MATTESON EVAN RICHARD & VIRGINIA ANN 
202 GRETEL PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SIDDIQI NAVEED AND TAMARA ABDULWAHAB 
202 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

SELZER DEANNA 
202 RAINBOW DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

LIECHTY FAMILY PARTNERSHIP LP 
203 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RYAN BETTY & JAMES 
203 YACHT CLUB DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

BRUMMETT JOHN W 
204 GRETEL PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SHORT KATHRYN FARLEY 
204 HENRY M CHANDLER DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75088 
 

 

ALLEN FRANCIS C 
204 SOVEREIGN CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

KNABLE MICHAEL D REVOCABLE TRUST 
MICHAEL D KNABLE TRUSTEE 
205 BENTON DRIVE APT 1202 

ALLEN, TX 75013 
 

 

GARDNER DAVID L REV LIV TR 
205 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

YNIGUEZ THOMAS WAYNE & 
MANDY E YNIGUEZ 

205 MAGIC LN  
SUNNYVALE, TX 75182 

 

GOODCHILD ROBERT R 
205 YACHT CLUB DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CHOATE ELAINE MARGARET REVOCABLE LIVING 
TRUST 

206 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

HENZEN CARLA 
207 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

GROVE JERRY DAVID 
207 YACHT CLUB DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

E C LIVING LLC 
208 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

GARDNER DAVID L REV LIV TR 
209 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

TAYLOR MARY 
210 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

J&R HUNT INVESTMENTS LLC 
211 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

FREDERIKSEN JOHN C & ARLENE C REV LIV TR 
JOHN C & ARLENE C FREDERIKSEN TRUSTEES 

212 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

E C LIVING LLC 
213 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

DAVIS NITA 
214 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

FLORES EMILY RODELA 
221 HENRY M CHANDLER DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

E C LIVING LLC 
222 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CASTER JAMES E JR AND MILINDA J 
228 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

TULK SHARON K 
229 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

NIGH INVESTMENTS LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY 

230 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

KEITH BENJAMIN AND 
SHERYL KEITH 

231 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

ROMER ENTERPRISES LLC 
2311 NORWICH DR  

CARROLLTON, TX 75006 
 

136



ARMSTRONG D 
236 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

KNABLE MICHAEL D REVOCABLE TRUST 
MICHAEL D KNABLE TRUSTEE 
238 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

LIECHTY FAMILY PARTNERSHIP LP 
239 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

JOHNSON BRENT & LINDA 
240 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MORALE PATRICIA L 
241 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

TOMPKINS JAMES MICHAEL & LAURIE CARLENE 
GARVIN 

2521 BOUNTIFUL COURT  
HEATH, TX 75126 

 

CGN SPYGLASS LLC 
2807 EASTGROVE LN  
HOUSTON, TX 77027 

 

 

NICKSON SPYGLASS LLC 
2807 EASTGROVE LN  
HOUSTON, TX 77027 

 

 

BALLARD AMANDA L & 
MATTHEW WEST BALLARD 

28106 WHISPERING MAPLE WAY  
SPRING, TX 77386 

 

KEITH BENJAMIN AND 
SHERYL KEITH 
3011 BAYSIDE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

ANDERSON MARK ANDREAS 
303 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

NICKSON SPYGLASS LLC 
304 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

DOMINGUE JON 
305 HENRY M CHANDLER DR UNIT 305 

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MCCLOY STEPHANIE JOAN 
306 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

NICKSON SPYGLASS LLC 
307 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MCCLAIN-SMITH GARETH AND 
DONNA L WINDSOR 

308 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

WEBSTER MARY ANN 
309 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CGN SPYGLASS LLC 
310 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

JOHNSON FAMILY TRUST 
338 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

VIERLING DENNIS & LISA 
339 HENRY M CHANDLER DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

THOMPSON PAIGE ELIZABETH 
340 HENRY M CHANDLER  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

N & S PROPERTIES LLC 
3402 ANTHONY CIR  
ROWLETT, TX 75088 

 

 

WEBSTER MARY ANN 
341 HENRY M CHANDLERDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

JOHNSON BRENT & LINDA 
3810 COVE RD  

ROWLETT, TX 75088 
 

CONE YVONNE MARIE REVOCABLE LIVING 
TRUST 

4048 ROBIN ST  
BAY ST LOUIS, MS 39520 

 

 

TULK SHARON K 
408 COLUMBIA DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

NELSON FAMILY LIVING TRUST 
JERRY C NELSON AND MARIBETH NELSON- 

TRUSTEES 
410 COLUMBIA DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

J&R HUNT INVESTMENTS LLC 
427 PRIVATE ROAD 2939  

PITTSBURG, TX 75686 
 

 

WRIGHT RHONDA 
428C YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

FISHER TED Y 
4404 PLACIDIA AVE  

TOLUCA LAKE, CA 91602 
 

137



DAVIS NITA 
5 DARR ROAD  

HEATH, TX 75032 
 

 

LIECHTY FAMILY PARTNERSHIP LP 
502 TERRY LN  

HEATH, TX 75032 
 

 

CASTER JAMES E JR AND MILINDA J 
512 PRIVATE RD 52444  
LEESBURG, TX 75451 

 

FREDERIKSEN JOHN C & ARLENE C REV LIV TR 
JOHN C & ARLENE C FREDERIKSEN TRUSTEES 

5518 CHALLENGER CT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

MCCLOY STEPHANIE JOAN 
5575 CANADA CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RABAH MUSTAFA-HASAN AND MILAN 
5912 YACHT CLUB DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

HALL GLENN D & JUDY K 
5913 SCEPTRE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HUNT ROBERT W & MARY E 
5915 SCEPTRE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

PRICE JASON ALAN 
5919 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RIVERA ENRIQUE JR AND 
SAHARA AGUIRRE 

5921 VOLUNTEER PL  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

LENOX NANCY H 
5922 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HEFFERNAN MARILYN 
5924 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

SRP SUB, LLC 
5925 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CONE YVONNE MARIE REVOCABLE LIVING 
TRUST 

5926 VOLUNTEERPL  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

STOUT JEFFREY AND SHERI 
5927 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

ALLEN FRANCIS C 
5928 VOLUNTEERPL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SCHIRATO LISA 
5929 VOLUNTEER PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

LEATHERWOOD CATHY R 
5930 VOLUNTEER PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

COLLICHIO STEVEN JAMES 
6002 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

DALY PETER H & CARLA S BRICE 
6003 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

WOOD TERESA E 
6004 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

DEAN ANGIE D & ROY M 
6005 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

FUNDARO ANTHONY J AND MARTINA 
6007 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

DWYER REX W AND AMY 
6101 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MACALIK OTTO JEFFREY 
6102 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

JOHNSON FAMILY TRUST 
628 SHADOW WOOD LN  

HEATH, TX 75032 
 

 

HAYS DANNY W & JOAN 
639 STAFFORD CIR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

CHANDLERS LANDING COMMUNITY ASSOC 
7 GREENBELT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

PATTERSON WILLIAM L JR AND DWAYLA L 
REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 

782 HANOVER DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

E C LIVING LLC 
7926 ENCLAVE WAY  
DALLAS, TX 75218 

 

138



ARMSTRONG D 
804 EAGLE PASS  

HEATH, TX 75032 
 

 

SRP SUB, LLC 
8665 EAST HARTFORD DRIVE SUITE 200  

SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85255 
 

 

ESTRERA AARON S ETUX 
9011 CLEARHURST DR  

DALLAS, TX 75238 
 

ROCKWALL HOMES LLC 
C/O SAUNDRA HOLLAND 

909 CULLINS RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

CHOATE ELAINE MARGARET REVOCABLE LIVING 
TRUST 

963 W YELLOWJACKET LN APT 302  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

ENGEL MARIA 
994 GREEN RIVER RD  

WAYNESBORO, TN 38485 
 

VIERLING DENNIS & LISA 
PO BOX 1506  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

MACALIK OTTO JEFFREY 
PO BOX 2110  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CHANDLERS LANDING COMMUNITY ASSOC 
PO BOX 638  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

139



PUBLIC NOTICE  
 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 
 

Case No. Z2020-044: Specific Use Permit for Residential Infill 
 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Casey Cox of Costal Plains Estates for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 
Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-family home on a 0.21-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 24, 
Block A, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 7, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family 
residential land uses, addressed as 102 Thistle Place, and take any action necessary. 
 

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, November 
10, 2020 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, November 16, 2020 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the 
City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 
 

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 

Henry Lee 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

 

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   
 

Your comments must be received by Monday, November 16, 2020 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City 
Council. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

 

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 
 

PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 
 

Case No. Z2020-044: Specific Use Permit for Residential Infill 
 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 
 

 

 

 

 

Name:  

Address:  

 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

 
PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

140

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


141



142



z
 

0
 

]O
 

1 11
1 

I.
 

tJ)
 

n
 

)>
 

r rn
 - " 0
 

I 0
 

l]J
 

LI
 

[QJ
 

9
 

l]J
 

LI
 

�
 

�
 

-I
 

C)
 

('\
 

U1
 

Ul .....
 

..n
 

tJ)
 

n
 

)>
 

r rn
 

- � " 0
 

I 0
 

}>
 

'
 ('> 0 0
 

..,., ,, 0 c+ E 0 ' '7
1 

0
 

� ())
 

(J)
 

fl
 

..,., c+

LI
 

�
 

�
 

(gJ
 

@JD
 

(TI)
 

�
 

l]J
 

[jui]
 

l]J
 

LI
 

�
 

�
 

'
\ \ 

' ' \ 

-a
 n

 :t>
 

)>
 

('>
 0

 '
 

'
 <

 ('>
 

() 
('>

 0
 

Cb
 

('>
'

 
::l 

('>
 0

 
m

c+
 c,_

--,.,
 

0 
en

d:l
 

}>
 r

 
('>

 '
0

 
••

('>
 c+

 
n

o 
0

 
< ('> ' ('>

 
(>_

 

0
 

l)l
 

lD
 -

-1 
-

_jJ
o

. 
l)l

 
l)l

 
�

1'.l
 

(J)
 

(J)
 

�
fl

 fl
 

_jJ
 ..,.,

 ..,.,
 

�
�

�
 

A
 

C
u

s
t

o
m

 
H

o
u

s
e

 
f

o
r

 

Sp
e
c 

H
o
u

se
 

T
h

is
tl

e
 

P
la

c
e

 
1

0
2

 
L
o
t
 

2
4

, 
B

lo
c

k
 

A
 

C
h

a
n

d
le

rs
 

La
n

d
in

g 
#

7 

\ 

, C
it

y
 

o
f 

R
o

c
k

w
a

ll
, 

T
e

x
a

s 

� Ill ill
 

� (\)
 

Cl..
 

0
 

0
 ., .....
 

0
 

0
 

�
 

Ul
 

0
 

Cl..
 

Ill
 

i3 C ::::i
 

Cl..
 

::::l"
 

0
 

C
 

Ul (\)

\ \ 
' ' '

\ 

5'1
'-1

 O"

.....
 
.....

 
i3 

IU
 

3
 

�
 

Ul
 

3
...
 

<il
 

Ill
(\)

 
X

...
 

Ul

s
 

0 "'O
 

(\)
 

>,
 .

.
 

� Ill ill
 

� (\)
 

Cl..
 

0
 

0 ., .....
 

.
.

 
' 

'
, 

st
ep

 . . .....
 

0
 

CP
 

�
 

5'1
'-1

0"
 

6
0

'-3
" 

.. 

�
 
.....

 
IU

 
3

 
�

 
Ul

 
3

...
 

<il
 

Ill
(\)

 
X

...
 

Ul
s
 

0 "'O (\)

I 

•
 

·
 ..

.
 ,

L
'

.
 

•
 

•
 

.
 

.
 

.
:CS

' .
.

.
.

.
.

 .
' 

' 
' 

' 
.

 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
-=
'
 

'
 

8"
 ta

ll c
on

cr
et

e 
cu

rb
 

Cl..
 
8
 

<
' 

::::i
(\)

 
('I

 
E 

<il
 

Ill
 
...

IC
 

(\)
 

ad
in

g 
fr

 n
t p

or
ch

 

. 

�
 

, en
, ,
 , 
. 
,

.
 

�
 

o
.

I:)_
 

�
 

. 
. 

' \ \ \8
" t

al
l c

on
cr

et
e 

cu
rb

 

'
 

Cl..
 

('I
 

:::i
.

 
0

 
<

 
::::i

(\)
 

('I
 

\ �
 

E 
<il

 
Ill

 
...

IC
 

(\)
 

6
 

\�
 

. .s>
✓

, 
\

,,f
 

\
�

(\)
 \\ 

\, 

\ \ 

...J ' 0

71
 

"'ti
 

U1
 

.I>,.
 

0
 

q
 

6'
 b

ui
 

71
 

"'ti
 

�
 

0
 

0
 

' '

' 

• ' ' ' ' ' ' \
 ' 

lin
e 

' ' \ ' \ ' ' '
 ' ' ' '

 13
8.

0'I
' 

(n
o 

fe
nc

e 
Ii 

e)
 

�
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
'

. 
-

. 
' 

' 
. 

' 

. 
' 

' 
' 

' 
·o

.
·.

· .
· 

(
 

=
 

(
 

2'1
'-1

" 

36
" r

et
ai

ni
ng

 w
al

l 

71
 

"'ti
 

�
 

.I>,.
 

0
 

CJ'
 

.....
 ' 0

56
'-8

" 

13
8.

0'I
' 

\ ' ' ' '
 ' ' \ \ ' ' ' ' ' ' ' '

 ' ' ' ' ' \ \ 

12
0.

00
' 

• ' ' '

(n
o 

fe
nc

e 
Ii 

...J ' 0 \ \ ' \ 6
 

\ \ ' ' \ \ \
 

' 

:::!>
 

Ill
 ., 7':"
 

::::i Ul
 

�
 

(\)
 

<il
 

...l
 

L'.::::
�

=t
G

·�
·. 

. 
. . 

. . 
. .

 ' 
...l

...
 

Ill
 

::::i
 

::::i
 

�
 E Ill
 

iji"
 

20
'-6

" 

(�
-;-

fe
nc

e 
lin

e)
 

2'1
'-1

" 

20
'-

" 

4
1 ' -6

"

-I
 

�
 

U1
 

.I>,.
 

...J
 

0
 

8 
-6

"

• ' ' ' ' \ ' ' ' ' ' \ 

36
" r

et
ai

ni
ng

 w
al

l ' ' ' ' ' \ 

' \ 

' ' ' ' ' ' (\) (\)

\ \ \ ' \ ' \ ' ' \ \ ' \ 

U1
 

U1
 

q
 ' \ 

' \ 

\ \ ' \ ' ' \ ' 
' \ \

 \ \ ' \ ' ' ' ' \ 

\ \ 

\ ' \ \ \ ' \ \ ' \ \ \ 
0

 
0

 
�

 
st

ep
 

I 
a 

in
g 

t 
fr

 n
 . p

or
e�

\ 
' ' 

56
'-8

" 
\ \

 ' \ \ 

' \ \ \ ' 
Ul

 
0

 
Cl..

 

Ill
 

i3 C
 

::::i
 

Cl..
 

::::l"
 

0
 

C
 

Ul (\)
.....

 
0

 
CP

 
�

 

U1
 

Ul
 

CJ'
 

26
'-7

" 

-
-

-
-�

---,-

24
'-1

 O
" 

--+­

I ' ' 
U1

 
Ul

 
CP

 

\ ' '
 ' ' '

 ' ' '
\ ' ' '

 ' \ ' 

71
 

"'ti
 t q
 

' ' \ ' 

\ ' ' ' \ 

' ' ' '
' ' ' '

-
-

--t
�

.Jl-'c-
-

-
-

-
-

' 0
 

12
0.

00
' ' ' ' '

 ' \ ' ' '
20

'-6
" 

36
" r

et
ai

ni
n 

w
al

l 

64,
l dg

-ti
 

(\)
 

oi
 

0 1".'" 10
 

-I
 

C)
 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
si

de
nc

e 
ne

xt
 d

o
o

r
�

 

C
o

a
st

a
l 

P
la

in
s 

E
st

a
te

s 
(6

1
8

)
2

1
8

-
5

3
3

9

' ' I \ '
' 

'
I 

\ ' ' ' ' ' I

' '

' ' ' ' ' '
I ' ' \ ' 

�
 

...J
 

0
 

0
 

Th
es

e 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

in
te

n
d

ed
 

to
 

pr
o

vi
d

e 
th

e 
b

a
si

c 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

is
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

. 
Li

ke
 

m
os

t 
ho

m
e 

de
si

gn
er

s,
 

th
is

 
fi

rm
, 

J.
 

Ka
rl

ov
ic

h 
Ho

m
e 

De
si

gn
, 

n
o

t 
b

ei
n

g 
an

 
ar

c
hi

te
c

tu
ra

l 
or

 
en

g
in

ee
ri

n
g 

fir
m

 
st

an
d

s 
n

o 
lia

b
ili

ty
 

fo
r 

st
ru

c
tu

ra
l 

or
 

a
rc

h
it

ec
tu

ra
l 

d
e

s
ig

n
 

in
te

g
ri

ty
. 

E
ve

ry
 

e
ff

or
t 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 

m
a

d
e 

to
 

en
su

re
 

a
ll 

d
im

en
si

on
s 

ar
e 

co
rr

ec
t 

a
n

d
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
re

gu
la

ti
on

s 
h

a
ve

 
b

ee
n

 
m

et
. 

If 
on

y 
er

ro
r 

o
r 

o
m

is
si

on
 

do
es

 o
cc

ur
 

it
 i

s 
th

e 
so

le
 

re
sp

on
si

b
lit

y 
o

f 
th

e 
c

on
tr

ac
to

r 
a

n
d

/
o

r 
th

e 
ow

n
er

 
to

 
c

or
re

c
t 

th
e 

er
ro

r 
an

d/
or

 
om

is
si

on
 

at
 

hi
s 

ow
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

an
d

 
no

t 
th

e 
re

sp
on

si
b

lit
y 

of
 

J.
 

Ka
rl

ov
ic

h 
Ho

m
e 

De
si

gn
. 

Th
es

e 
pl

an
s 

or
e 

in
te

nd
ed

 t
o 

be
 

a 
on

e 
tim

e 
us

e 
fo

r 
th

is
 a

dd
re

ss
 

O
N

LY
. 

\ ' 

' ' '\ ' ' 

' \ ' ' \ ' \ 

\ \ 

\ ' 
\ \ 

�
 

CP
 

\ \
 \ ' ' ' \ ' ' ' ' '

 ' ' ' \ 

' ' ' \ \ ' ' ' '
 ' '

\ \ ' ' ' \ ' 

' ' I
' 

' '

I J
. 

K
a

r
l�

v
ic

h
 I 

�-
-

-
!-l

o--t\,'\,f.,,
D

e+t-9
Vv

-
-

�
-

(2
14

)
67

4-
02

90
 :

 
Ph

on
e

jk
ar

lo
vi

ch
ho

m
ed

es
ig

n.
co

m

' \ \ 

' \ \ 

' ' ' '
 ' ' ' ' '

\ ' 

/
 

\ \ \ \ 

' \ ' ' ' ' ' '
 ' ' ' '
 ' ' ' \ ' \ \ ' '°

 
'-.

.,
ru '-.., ru 0

 
ru

 
0

 

' ' '
' ' ' ' CD
 

'-.
., - - '-.., ru 0
 

ru
 

0
 

Al
 

CD
 

l'l
 

'-..,
 

<
 

w
 

>--,
 

(/)
 

'-.
., 

>--,
 

ru
 

D
 

0
 

z
 

ru
 

(/)
 

0
 

143



144



145



Adjacent Housing Attributes

Address Housing Type Year Built House SF Accessory Building SF Exterior Materials

102 Thistle Place RCAD Indicates Vacant N/A

103 Thistle Place Single-Family Home 1994 2,356                  N/A Brick

104 Thistle Place Single-Family Home 2018 4,949                  N/A Brick

105 Thistle Place Single-Family Home 1984 2,567                  N/A Brick

202 Gretel Place Single-Family Home 1986 3,014                  N/A Brick

204 Gretel Place Single-Family Home 1988 2,686                  N/A Brick

206 Gretel Place Single-Family Home 1988 3,920                  N/A Brick

208 Gretel Place Single-Family Home 1989 3,163                  N/A Brick

6002 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1982 3,233                  N/A Brick

6003 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1979 2,498                  N/A Brick

6004 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1995 2,171                  N/A Brick

6005 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1987 2,422                  N/A Brick

6007 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1989 2,684                  N/A Brick

6101 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1985 2,488                  N/A Brick

6102 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1983 2,719                  N/A Brick

6103 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1988 1586 N/A Brick

6105 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1994 1,931                  N/A Brick

6106 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 2012 3,605                  N/A Brick

6108 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1982 2,696                  N/A Brick

6109 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1985 2,779                  N/A Brick

6110 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1982 3,113                  N/A Brick

6111 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 1986 3,322                  N/A Brick

6112 Volunteer Place Single-Family Home 2002 3141 N/A Brick

Averages: 1990 2,866                  

Subject Property

146



 
102 Thistle Place 
 

 
103 Thistle Place 
 
 

147



 
104 Thistle Place 
 

 
105 Thistle Place 
 

148



 
202 Gretel Place 
 

 
204 Gretel Place 
 

149



 
206 Gretel Place 
 

 
208 Gretel Place 
 

150



 
6002 Volunteer Place 
 

 
6003 Volunteer Place 

151



 
6004 Volunteer Place 

 
6005 Volunteer Place 

152



 
6007 Volunteer Place 

 
6101 Volunteer Place 

153



 
6102 Volunteer Place 

 
6103 Volunteer Place 

154



 
6105 Volunteer Place 

 
6106 Volunteer Place 

155



 
6108 Volunteer Place 

 
6109 Volunteer Place 

156



 
6110 Volunteer Place 

 
6111 Volunteer Place 

157



6112 Volunteer Place 

158



CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-2XX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 8 (PD-8) AND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
(UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, 
SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR 
RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO
ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME 
ON A 0.21-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 24, 
BLOCK A, CHANDLER’S LANDING, PHASE 7, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE 
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’
OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Major Rush for the approval of a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision to allow the construction of a 
single-family home on a 0.21-acre parcel of land being described as Lot 24, Block A, Chandler’s 
Landing, Phase 7, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development 
District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 102 Thistle Place, and being 
more specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of  this ordinance, which herein after shall 
be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] and Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) of the City of Rockwall should 
be amended as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 

SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and Planned 
Development District 8 (PD-8) of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same 
is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an 
Established Subdivision to allow for the construction of a single-family home in an established 
subdivision in accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 

SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

159



Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.07, Single-Family 
7 (SF-7) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and to the requirements set forth in Planned Development District 
8 (PD-8) -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with the following 
conditions: 

2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS

The following conditions pertain to the construction of a single-family home on the Subject 
Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required: 

1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan
as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.

2) The construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance.

3) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted
by the City of Rockwall, this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by
the property owner shall be required.

2.2 COMPLIANCE

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 

1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this
ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation,
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02].

SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 

SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

160



 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 7TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2020. 
 
 
 
     

 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  November 16, 2020 
 

2nd Reading: December 7, 2020 
 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

161



Address: 102 Thistle Place 
Legal Description: Lot 24, Block A, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 7 
 

 
 
 
  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

162



D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

163



 
  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

164



 
D

R
A

FT
  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

165



MEMORANDUM
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: November 16, 2020

SUBJECT: Z2020-045; ZONING CHANGE (NS & SF-16 TO PD) FOR NELSON LAKE
ESTATES

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
HOA Notification Map
Neighborhood Notification Email
Property Owner Notification Map
Property Owner Notification List
Public Notice
Property Owner Notifications
Applicants Letter
Survey
SCS Easements
Concept Plan
Fiscal Impact Analysis Tool
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Z2020-045 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael
Joyce Properties, LLC on behalf of Jen-Liang Wu of Unison Investment, LP for the approval of
an ordinance for a Zoning Change from a Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District and Neighborhood
Services (NS) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District
land uses on a 121.16-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract
No. 88, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District and
Neighborhood Services (NS) District, generally located at the southeast corner of the
intersection of FM-1141 and FM-552, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed

166



The City Council is being asked to [1] approve, [2] approve with condition, or [3] deny the
request for a zoning change. This case will require a super majority vote of those City Council
members present (e.g. six [6] out of the seven [7] members). 

167



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: November 16, 2020 
 

APPLICANT: Ryan Joyce; Michael Joyce Properties, LLC 
 

CASE NUMBER: Z2020-045; Zoning Change (NS & SF-16 to PD) for Nelson Lake Estates 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties, LLC on behalf of Jen-Liang 
Wu of Unison Investment, LP for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change form a Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District and 
Neighborhood Services (NS) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses on a 
121.16-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 
Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District and Neighborhood Services (NS) District, generally located at the southeast 
corner of the intersection of FM-1141 and FM-552, and take any action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The subject property was annexed by the City Council on August 30, 1999 by Ordinance No. 99-33.  At the time of annexation, 
the subject property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  On April 4, 2005, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 05-16 
[Case No. Z2005-007] changing the zoning of the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Neighborhood Services 
(NS) District and a Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District.  The concept plan included with Ordinance No. 05-16 showed that the 
subject property would include 104.8-acres of land zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District with the remainder of the subject 
property (i.e. 16.36-acres) being designated for Neighborhood Service (NS) District land uses.  The residential portion of the 
concept plan also showed the provision of 106 single-family residential lots, and that ~56.00-acres of the 104.8-acres designated 
for residential land uses would be dedicated for open space.  The overall proposed density of this development was 1.01 dwelling 
units per acre.  Despite this plan being adopted by the City Council, the subject property has remained vacant since its 
annexation into the City. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
On October 16, 2020, the applicant -- Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties, LLC -- submitted an application requesting to 
change the zoning of the subject property from a Neighborhood Services (NS) District and Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District to 
a Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses.  Specifically, the applicant is proposing to entitle 
the subject property for a 264-lot single-family, residential subdivision that will incorporate lots that are 60’ x 120’ (i.e. a minimum 
of 7,000 SF) and 70’ x 120’ (i.e. a minimum of 8,400 SF). 
 
ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 
 
The subject property is located at southeast corner of the intersection of FM-1141 and FM-552.  The land uses adjacent to the 
subject property are as follows: 

 
North: Directly north of the subject property is FM-552, which is identified as a TXDOT4D (i.e. Texas Department of 

Transportation, four [4] lane, divided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the 
OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan.  Beyond this thoroughfare is a 47.31-acre portion of a larger 
56.31-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 3 of the M. Simmons Survey, Abstract No. 194), which is zoned Agricultural (AG) 
District.  Currently situated on this property are two (2) agricultural accessory structures.  Beyond this property is 
the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall. 

 

168



South: Directly south of the subject property is North Country Lane, which is identified as a M4U (i.e. major collector, four 
[4] lane, undivided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan.  Beyond this thoroughfare are two (2) tracts of land (i.e. Tract 14 of the J. M. Gass Survey), 
which are zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  The 48.267-acre tract of land is owned by the City of Rockwall, is 
currently vacant (with the exception of the North Country Lane Water Tower), and is the future site for the Alma 
Williams Park.  The other tract of land is a 101.43-acre tract of land that currently has a 660 SF single-family home 
and multiple agricultural accessory structures situated on it. 

 
East: Directly east of the subject property are the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall.  Beyond this are residential 

properties that are situated within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). 
 
West: Directly west of the subject property is an Elementary School (i.e. Celia Hays Elementary School) on a 11.036-acre 

parcel of land (i.e. Lot 5, Block C, Dalton Ranch, Phase 2 Addition) that is owned by the Rockwall Independent 
School District (RISD).  Also, adjacent to the subject property is Phase 1 of the Dalton Ranch Subdivision, which 
consists of 151 single-family residential lots on 62.33-acres.  This subdivision is zoned Planned Development 
District 58 (PD-58) for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses.  Beyond this is the Stoney Hollow Subdivision, 
which consists of 96 single-family residential lots on 41.88-acres.  This subdivision is zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-
16) District. 

 
CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST 
 
The applicant has submitted a concept plan and development standards for 
the proposed residential subdivision.  The concept plan shows that the 
121.16-acre subject property will consist of 265 single-family residential lots 
that will be broken down into two (2) lot types (i.e. 60’ x 120’ and 70’ x 120’).  
More specifically, the development will incorporate 193, 60’ x 120’ (i.e. a 
minimum of 7,200 SF) lots and 72, 70’ x 120’ (i.e. a minimum of 8,400 SF) 
lots, and have a density of 2.19 dwelling units per acre for the total 
development.  The minimum dwelling unit size (i.e. air-condition space) will 
range from 2,000 SF to 2,200 SF.  According to the applicant, the proposed 
housing product will be similar to the product that was constructed in Phases 
IIA & IIB of the Breezy Hill Subdivision (i.e. the Type ‘A’, 60’ x 120’ and Type 
‘B’, 70’ x 120’ lot products from Planned Development District 74 [PD-74]) 
[see example in Figure 1]; however, in addition to the J-Swing or Traditional 
Swing driveway configuration the applicant will be requesting 35% of the 
homes (i.e. 40% of the Type ‘A’ Lots and 20% of the Type ‘B’ Lots) be allowed to be constructed with Flat Front Entry garages.  
The proposed housing product will incorporate a minimum masonry requirement of 90% (with a minimum of 85% on each 
façade), and be subject to the upgraded anti-monotony requirements that were adopted by the City Council in September of 
2019.  The proposed Planned Development District will also be subject to the land uses and requirements stipulated for the 
Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District unless specifically called out in the Planned Development District ordinance.  The following is 
a summary of the lot composition and density and dimensional standards contained in the proposed Planned Development 
District ordinance: 
 

TABLE 1: LOT COMPOSITION 
     

Lot Type Minimum Lot Size 
(FT) Minimum Lot Size (SF) Dwelling Units (#) Dwelling Units (%) 

A 60’ x 120’ 7,000 SF 193 72.83% 
B 70’ x 120’ 8,400 SF 72 27.16% 
     

Maximum Permitted Units: 265 100.00% 
 

TABLE 2: LOT DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

Lot Type (see Concept Plan) ►  A B 
Minimum Lot Width (1) 60’ 70’ 
Minimum Lot Depth 120’ 120’ 

FIGURE 1: EXAMPLE HOUSING PRODUCT FROM 
BREEZY HILL, PHASE IIA 

169



Minimum Lot Area 7,000 SF 8,400 SF 
Minimum Front Yard Setback (2), (5) & (6) 20’ 20’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback 5’ 5’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) (2) & (5) 20’ 20’ 
Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement 20’ 20’ 
Maximum Height (3) 36’ 36’ 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback (4) 10’ 10’ 
Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) [Air-Conditioned Space] 2,000 SF 2,200 SF 
Maximum Lot Coverage 65% 65% 

 

General Notes: 
1:  Lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may have the front lot width reduced by 20% as 

measured at the front property line provided that the lot width will be met at the Front Yard Building Setback.  
Additionally, the lot depth on lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may be reduced by 
up to ten (10) percent, but shall meet the minimum lot size for each lot type referenced in Table 1. 

2:  The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line. 
3:  The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single-family home. 
4: The location of the Rear Yard Building Setback as measured from the rear property line. 
5: Sunrooms, porches, stoops, bay windows, balconies, masonry clad chimneys, eaves and similar architectural 

features may encroach beyond the Front Yard Building Setback by up to ten (10) feet for any property; however, 
the encroachment shall not exceed five (5) feet on Side Yard Setbacks.  A sunroom is an enclosed room no more 
than 15-feet in width that has glass on at least 50% of each of the encroaching faces. 

6: Flat front entry garage configurations are permitted on up to 35% (i.e. a maximum of 92 lots) of the total number 
of lots provided that: [1] no more than 40% (i.e. a maximum of 78 lots) of the lots for Lot Type ‘A’ have a flat front 
entry garage, [2] no more than 20% (i.e. a maximum of 14 lots) of the Lot Type ‘B’ have a flat front entry garage, 
and [3] the front yard building setback for all lots with a flat front entry garage is increased to a minimum of 25-
feet. 

 
With regard to the proposed amenities, the concept plan provided by the applicant shows that the proposed development will 
provide [1] ~51.77-acres of open space (18.62-acres will be outside of the floodplain -- after reclamation -- and the development 
will be credited with 35.195-acres of open space [i.e. 33.15-acres x ½ = 16.575-acres + 18.62-acres = 35.195-acres]), [2] a one 
(1) acre amenity center, and [3] a trail system.  The open space required for this development is 24.232-acres, and the applicant 
is exceeding this by 10.963-acres (or 9.05%).  The proposed trail system will be constructed along the edge of the floodplain 
running north and south, and utilize the required sidewalks along FM-552 and FM-1141 to create a loop.  In addition, pedestrian 
paths connecting the north side of the development to the amenities center via a trail will also be incorporated. 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
Based on the applicant’s concept plan and the proposed density, the following infrastructure is required to be constructed to 
provide adequate public services for the proposed development: 
 
(1) Roadways. The applicant shall verify the right-of-way width of FM-1141 and ensure there is 85-feet of right-of-way, and 

dedicate any area that is within 42.50-feet of the centerline of the roadway.  The applicant will also need to verify the current 
right-of-way width of North Country Lane, and dedicate any area within 32.50-feet of the centerline of the roadway.  The 
applicant shall also verify the right-of-way along FM-552, which currently has approved construction plans per the Texas 
Department of Transportation (TXDOT). 
 

(2) Water.  The applicant shall be required to construct an eight (8) inch looped water line through the site.  In addition, the 
applicant must install a 12-inch water line along FM-552 and FM-1141 per the Master Water Plan. 

 
(3) Wastewater.  The applicant shall install the required eight (8) inch sewer line through the subject property and connect it to 

the 15-inch sanitary sewer line that is currently located on the westside of FM-1141.  In addition -- and in accordance with 
the Master Wastewater Plan --, a 20-foot sewer line easement with a 30-foot temporary construction easement shall be 
dedicated along Nelson Creek.  The applicant will be required to perform an infrastructure study to determine there is 
capacity in the Stoney Hollow lift station basin and -- if so -- what appurtenances will be required to be upgraded or 

170



constructed with the proposed development.  The applicant will also be required to pay the required pro-rata on the existing 
Stoney Hollow basin infrastructure.    

 
(4) Drainage.  The applicant shall be required to perform a flood study to delineate the fully developed 100-year floodplain for 

all ponds, creeks or streams, and draws on the subject property.  Detention will be required and sized per the required 
detention study.  The applicant will also be required to perform a Wetlands and Waters of the United States (WOTUS) study 
for the existing pond, and receive written permission from the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) regarding 
any encroachment or construction around Nelson Lake. 

 
CONFORMANCE TO THE CITY’S CODES 
 
The proposed Planned Development District conforms to the majority of the City’s code requirements; however, it should be 
noted that the development standards contained within the Planned Development District ordinance deviate from the 
requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC) and the Engineering Department’s Standards of Design and Construction 
Manual in the following ways: 
 
(1) Alleyways. The Engineering Department’s Standards of Design and Construction Manual stipulates that “(a)lleys shall be 

provided in all residential areas and shall be paved with steel reinforced concrete…”  The code does grant the City Council 
the ability to “… waive the residential alley requirement, if it is in the best interest of the City.” [Page 14; Section 2.11 of the 
Standards of Design and Construction Manual]  
 

(2) Garage Configuration.  The Unified Development Code (UDC) requires that, “(i)n single-family or duplex districts, parking 
garages must be located at least 20-feet behind the front building façade for front entry garages unless it is a J-Swing [or 
traditional swing] garage where the garage door is perpendicular to the street.”  

 
Applicant’s Response to (1) & (2): In lieu of providing the required alleyways, the applicant is proposing to provide 65% J-
Swing or Traditional Swing and 35% Flat Front Entry (i.e. where the garage is even with the front façade).  This translates 
to 40% of the Type ‘A’ Lots (i.e. 60’ x 120’ lots) and 20% of the Type ‘B’ Lots (i.e. 70’ x 120’ lots) being in Flat Front Entry 
garage configuration.  As a compensatory measure the applicant is proposing to increase the front yard building setback 
from 20-feet to 25-feet for homes that have a Flat Front Entry garage configuration.  The applicant is also proposing to 
provide decorative wood garage doors or garage doors that incorporate a wood overlay on an insulated metal door.  All 
garage doors will also incorporate carriage style hardware.  In addition, the applicant will also have the ability to provide 
Recessed Front Entry (i.e. where the front of the garage is setback a minimum of 20-feet from the front façade of the house).   

 
(3) Landscape Buffers.  According to Subsection 02.01, General Standards for Planned Development Districts, of Article 10, 

Planned Development Regulations, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(a) minimum of a 30-foot landscape buffer 
shall be provided adjacent to all perimeter roadways (outside of and beyond any required right-of-way dedication), and shall 
incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm and shrubbery along the entire length of the frontage.”  
 
Applicant’s Response to (3): In this case, the proposed Planned Development District ordinance adheres to this requirement 
along both FM-552 and FM-1141; however, along North Country Lane the applicant is proposing a ten (10) foot landscape 
buffer with four (4) inch caliper evergreen trees being planted on 15-foot centers adjacent to where homes will back to the 
roadway.  Staff should point out that the applicant has incorporated language that will allow the Planning and Zoning 
Commission the ability to review an alternative screening plan making use of the existing trees at the time of PD Site Plan; 
however, any changes from the stated requirement is a discretionary approval for the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH OURHOMETOWN VISION 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
According to the Land Use Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan, the subject property is 
located within the Northeast Residential District and is designated for Commercial/Retail and Low Density Residential land uses 
on the Future Land Use Plan.  The applicant’s request will necessitate that the portion of the subject property that is designated 
for Commercial/Retail land uses be changed to Low Density Residential land uses on the Future Land Use Plan.  This change 
is discretionary to the City Council; however, staff should point out that this change will bring the land use ratios closer to the 
desired 80% residential/ 20% commercial land uses called for by the Comprehensive Plan [Goal 01, Policy 1; Section 02.01 of 
Chapter 1].  Specifically, the proposed zoning change will shift the residential/commercial ratio from 75.92%/24.08% to 

171



76.24%/23.76%.  Should the City Council choose to approve this request staff has added a condition of approval that would 
make the necessary change to the Future Land Use Map. 
 
According to the Comprehensive Plan, Low Density Residential land uses are defined as “… residential subdivisions that are 
two (2) units per gross acre or less; however, a density of up to two and one-half (2½) units per gross acre may be permitted for 
developments that incorporate increased amenity and a mix of land uses …” In addition, the Comprehensive Plan defines 
amenity as, “… developments that provide some of the following: [1] open space beyond the required 20%, [2] a golf course 
and/or other comparable recreation facilities, [3] amenity/recreation facilities, [4] school site integration, [5] dedication or 
development of park land beyond the required park land dedication, [6] additional development of trails, [7] other amenities 
deemed appropriate by the City Council.”  In this case, the applicant is requesting a 2.18 dwelling units per gross acre (2.20 
dwelling units per gross acre in the Planned Development District ordinance), and is proposing to construct [1] an amenity 
center, [2] open space in excess of 20% (i.e. 24.232-acres of open space), and [3] a trail system.  The proposed amenities do 
appear to justify the requested density; however, density under any Planned Development District request is a discretionary 
decision for the City Council. 
 
In addition to the changes to the Future Land Use Map and density justification, staff has also identified the following non-
conformities to the Comprehensive Plan and provided the following recommendations to the applicant: 
 
RED: NOT INCORPORATED INTO THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ORDINANCE. 
BLUE: INCORPORATED INTO THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ORDINANCE. 
 
(1) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.03 | Goal 1; Policy 2: To maximize the value of properties that are directly adjacent to or across the street 

from a park and/or public open space, the house on the property should face onto the park and/or public open space, and 
should not back or side to the park and/or open space. If homes face onto a park and/or public open space and there is no 
public street, then the homes should be accessed via a mew-type street design. 

 
Staff Response: The houses at the end of each block face should be turned to front onto the open space areas as opposed 
to siding to them as currently depicted.  The applicant has chosen not to incorporate this into the Planned Development 
District ordinance. 

 
(2) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.03 | Goal 1; Policy 5: Design neighborhoods utilizing the Housing Tree Model (a method of laying of single-

family lots so that the largest lots are located adjacent to main entries or perimeter streets, and smaller lots are located 
internal to the subdivision). 

 
Staff Response: The concept plan should be rearranged so that larger lots (i.e. 70’ x 120’ lots) are adjacent to the major 
roadways (i.e. FM-552, FM-1141, and North Country Lane).  This will reduce the number of lots backing to these roadways 
and bring the plan into conformance with the Housing Tree Model.  Additionally, a larger lot product (e.g. 80’ x 120’ lots) 
could be incorporated to bring the concept plan into to closer compliance with the Comprehensive Plan.  The applicant has 
incorporated the Housing Tree Model into the concept plan, but has chosen not to incorporate an additional larger lot 
product.  

 
(3) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.03 | Goal 3; Policy 4: Require a larger separation between homes to make neighborhoods feel more 

spacious. This separation should be no less than 12-feet (i.e. six [6] foot side yard building setback) and should be scaled 
to the height of the home. 

 
Staff Response: Increase the side yard setbacks to six (6) feet on both lot types to create a greater separation between 
structures.  The applicant has chosen not to incorporate this into the Planned Development District ordinance. 

 
(4) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.02 | Goal 3; Policy 4: All parks and open space should provide an integrated trail system that serves the 

adjacent neighborhood areas. 
 

Staff Response: Provide a trail system that connects to the sidewalks along FM-552 and North Country Lane, and that runs 
through the open space area adjacent to Nelson Lake. The applicant has incorporated this recommendation into the 
proposed Planned Development District ordinance. 

 

172



(5) CH. 08 | Sec. 02.03 | Goal 3; Policy 3: In cases where flat front entry garages (i.e. even with the front façade of the primary 
structure) are requested as part of a development no greater than 20% should be incorporated into the development. In 
addition, flat front entry garages should have a minimum of a 25-foot front yard building setback to allow vehicles to be 
parked in the driveway without overhanging public right-of-way. This type of garage may not be appropriate for all 
developments and should be generally discouraged. 

 
Staff Response: If a Flat Front Entry Garage configuration is being requested it should be limited to 20% and the front 
building setback of these properties should be increased to 25-feet. The applicant has chosen to request 35% Flat Front 
Entry Garages, but has consented to upgraded garage door requirements and a minimum of a 25-foot front yard building 
setbacks on all Flat Front Entry Garages. 

 
Taking all of this into account, the concept plan does maintain general conformance to the residential policies and guidelines 
contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan; however, the approval of the applicant’s request remains a 
discretionary decision for the City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
NOTIFICATIONS 
 
On October 17, 2020, staff mailed 37 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the subject property.  Staff 
also sent a notice to the Dalton Ranch Homeowner’s Association (HOA), which is the only HOA or Neighborhood Organization 
within 1,500-feet of the subject property participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program.  Additionally, staff posted a sign 
on the subject property, and advertised the public hearings in the Rockwall Herald Banner as required by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).  At the time this report was drafted, staff had received one (1) email in opposition to the applicant’s 
request. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the applicant’s request to rezone the subject property from a Neighborhood Services 
(NS) District and Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land 
uses, then staff would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the conditions contained in the Planned Development 

District ordinance; 
 

(2) By approving this zoning change, the City Council will effectively be approving changes to the Comprehensive Plan and 
Future Land Use Map.  Specifically, this will change the designation of portions of the subject property from 
Commercial/Retail and Low Density Residential designation to a Low Density Residential designation; and, 
 

(3) Any construction resulting from the approval of this zoning change shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On November 10, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend denial of the zoning change 
by a vote of 4-3, with Commissioners Womble, Deckard, and Welch.  According to Subsection 02.03(G), Protest of a Zoning 
Change, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(i)f such 
change [zoning change or Specific Use Permit (SUP)] is recommended for denial by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
such zoning change or Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall require a supermajority vote (i.e. three-fourths vote of those members 
present), with a minimum of four (4) votes in the affirmative required for approval.” 
 

173



174



FM 552

COUNTRY

FM
 11

41

AN
NA

 CA
DE

STO
DG

HIL
L

QUAIL RUN

TANNERSON

PA
NH

AN
DL

E

RE
D V

AL
LEY

OL
D M

ILL
WO

OD

TRAIL

SADDLEBROOK

CRESTVIEW

CHUCK WAGON
NO

RT
H R

IDG
E

NO
RT

HC
RE

ST

OR
CH

AR
D

MA
RT

Y

BR
OK

EN
 SP

OK
E

LONGHORN

PA
INT

ED
 PO

NY

Z2020-045- ZONING CHANGE FROM AG TO PD
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I175



Dalton Ranch

0 425 850 1,275 1,700212.5
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

FM 552

GOLIAD

JOHN KING

FM
 11

41

STO
DG

HIL
L

CLEM

COUNTRY

LAKESHORE

BE
N P

AY
NE

RUSK

SM
ITH

DALTON

QUAIL RUN

HEATH

HA
YS

CARUTH

CORNELIUS
EAST FORK

HUNT

WINDY

SUNSET HILL

POTTER

DA
VIS

WATER

WO
OD

ED

SPARKS

KIMBERLYCase Number:

Case Address:
Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property 

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2020-045

SEC of FM 552 and FM 1141
Zoning
Zoning Change AG to PD
NS & SF-16

10/19/2020 176



1

Miller, Ryan

From: Gamez, Angelica
Sent: Wednesday, October 21, 2020 2:20 PM
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Lee, Henry
Subject: Neighborhood Notification Program
Attachments: Public Notice (10.20.2020).pdf; HOA Map Z2020-045.pdf

HOA/Neighborhood Association Representative: 
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notice to inform your organization 
that a zoning case has been filed with the City of Rockwall that is located within 1,500‐feet of the boundaries of your 
neighborhood.  As the contact listed for your organization, you are encouraged to share this information with the 
residents of your subdivision.  Please find the attached map detailing the property requesting to be rezoned in relation to 
your subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is the summary of the zoning case that was published in the Rockwall 
Herald Banner on Friday, October 23, 2020.  The Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, 
November 10, 2020 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, November 16, 2020 at 6:00 
PM.  Both hearings will take place at 6:00 PM at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, TX 75087.  
 
All interested parties are encouraged to submit public comments via email to Planning@rockwall.com  at least 30 minutes 
in advance of the meeting.  Please include your name, address, and the case number your comments are referring 
to.  These comments will be read into the record during each of the public hearings. Additional information on all current 
development cases can be found on the City’s website: 
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development‐cases. 
 
Z2020‐045 Zoning Change from SF‐16 & NS to PD 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties, LLC on behalf of Jen‐
Liang Wu  of  Unison  Investment,  LP  for  the  approval  of  a  Zoning  Change  form  a  Single‐Family  16  (SF‐16)  District  and 
Neighborhood Services (NS) District to a Planned Development District for Single‐Family 10 (SF‐10) District land uses on a 
121.16‐acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Single‐Family 16 (SF‐16) District and Neighborhood Services (NS) District, generally located at the southeast
corner of the intersection of FM‐1141 and FM‐552, and take any action necessary. 
 

Thank you,  

 
Angelica Gamez  
Planning & Zoning Coordinator 
City of Rockwall 
972.771.7745 Office  
972.772.6438 Direct 
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/  
 
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender 

177



379

1880

2826

325

23 1

8

7

9

56 4

11

721

12102852

2806

1819

1796

1837

1824

17941790

1821

1828

2920

2925

1792

1833

1823

2909
1824 1836

2918

1847

1835

2908

2926

1834

2916
2914

2906
1823 1825

1827

2919

1845

2913

2917

29213008

1829

1831

2915

2920

2917

1826

1824

2914

1825
1827

1826

2917

2924
2922

2918

2914
2912

2915

2910
2908

2912
2914

2913

1822

2919
1820

2916

3016

3012

3018

3010

2780

3123

3125

AG

SF-16
PD-58

NS

SFE-4

FM 552

COUNTRY

FM
 11

41

PA
NH

AN
DL

E

TANNERSON

AN
NA

 C
AD

E

CRESTVIEW

NO
RT

H 
RI

DG
E

NO
RT

HC
RE

ST

RE
D 

VA
LL

EY

OL
D 

MI
LL

WO
OD

0 425 850 1,275 1,700212.5
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

E FM 552

N GOLIAD ST

FM
 11

41

N JOHN KING BLVD STO
DG

HIL
L R

D

CLEM RD

SHORES BLVD

DALTON RD

WILLIAMS ST

HA
YS 

RD

WINDY LN

ARCADIA WAY

COASTAL DR

WINDHAM DR

NORTH HILLS DR

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2020-045

SEC of FM 552 and FM 1141
Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: Zoning Change from AG to PD
Zoning: NS & SF-16

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  10/19/2020

Legend
Parcels
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties

178



WEIR JAMES B & CRYSTAL 
1831 TRAIL DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

OLIVER MICHAEL 
1832 TRAIL DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

MILLER ANGELA KAY & JOHN RAY 
1833 TRAIL DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

FOSTER BRIAN AND DEIDRE 
1834 TRAIL DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

ALLEN JAMES JR & BARBARA A 
1835 TRAIL DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SANTOSO HARDJO AND 
SENDYTIAWATI KURNIAWAN 

1836 TRAIL DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

REAMSBOTTOM DELAYNE 
1837 TRAIL DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STOVALL KEVIN 
1847 TANNERSON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

ROCKWALL I S D 
1880 TANNERSON  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

ERWIN KARL DANIEL EXECUTOR 
KARL W ERWIN ESTATE 

2030 CROSSWOOD LANE  
IRVING, TX 75063 

 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
205 W RUSK ST  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

UNISON INVESTMENT 
23545 CRENSHAW BLVD STE 201 

TORRANCE, CA 90505 
 

EIDT WILLIAM H AND 
MARGARET E SHEEHAN/JOHN EIDT 

2728 MCKINNON ST APT 1902  
DALLAS, TX 75201 

 

 

KIM BUNNA 
2908 BROKEN SPOKE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

LIPSEY RANDALL L AND KAREN M 
2910 BROKEN SPOKE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

RODRIQUEZ MONICA CANO & ISRAEL A JR 
2912 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

FRANCIS SHELBY & KRISTI 
2913 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

KOZLOWSKI BRIAN STEPHEN & JULIE 
2914 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

CONFIDENTIAL 
2914 CHUCK WAGON DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

MARTIN JEFFREY MICHAEL & ELIZABETH DIANE 
2915 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CURRY JOANNA & SHAWN 
2916 BROKEN SPOKE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

LOGWOOD DANA CELESTE 
2916 CHUCK WAGON DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

DE MASELLIS ADAM CLAUDE & STEPHANIE 
DENISE 

2917 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

2018 S M TAYLOR REVOCABLE TRUST 
STEVEN EUGENE TAYLOR AND MICHELLE DIANE 

TAYLOR- TRUSTEES 
2918 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

DORROUGH JEFFREY 
2918 CHUCK WAGON DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

GAY VINCENT NEIL AND KERRI L 
2919 BROKEN SPOKE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SANTIAGO ABE D AND ROCIO D SIMENTAL 
2920 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

BOYD JOEY D 
2920 CHUCK WAGON DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

RANNIGAN MICHAEL R & RACHELLE LE ANN 
2921 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

DENNISON BOBBY & RAMONA 
2922 BROKEN SPOKE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

179



JONAS CHAD & JOANA 
2924 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

BUNCH LLOYD M & LINDA G 
2925 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

QUINTERO JORGE & DELILAH 
2926 BROKEN SPOKE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

ERWIN KARL DANIEL EXECUTOR 
KARL W ERWIN ESTATE 

379 N COUNTRYLN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

DALTON RANCH OWNERS ASSOC 
C/O VISION COMMUNITIES MANAGEMENT INC 

5757 ALPHA RD STE 680  
DALLAS, TX 75240 

 

 

PEARCE CAROL ALLEY 
721 N COUNTRY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

ROCKWALL I S D 
801 E WASHINGTON ST  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

    

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

180



PUBLIC NOTICE  
 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 
 

Case No. Z2020-045: Zoning Change from SF-16 & NS to PD 
 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties, LLC on behalf of Jen-Liang Wu of Unison 
Investment, LP for the approval of a Zoning Change form a Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District and Neighborhood Services (NS) District to a Planned 
Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses on a 121.16-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass Survey, 
Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District and Neighborhood Services (NS) District, 
generally located at the southeast corner of the intersection of FM-1141 and FM-552, and take any action necessary. 
 

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, November 
10, 2020 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, November 16, 2020 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the 
City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 
 

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 

Ryan Miller 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

 

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   
 

Your comments must be received by Monday, November 16, 2020 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City 
Council. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

 

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 
 

PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 
 

Case No. Z2020-045: Zoning Change from SF-16 & NS to PD 
 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 
 

 

 

 

 

Name:  

Address:  

 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

 
PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

181

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



4
9
8
'

4
9
8
'

614'

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS 260

OF

CORWIN ENGINEERING, INC.

PREPARED BY

200 W. BELMONT, SUITE E

972-396-1200

ALLEN, TEXAS 75013

ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

OWNER

SITUATED IN THE

IN THE

CONCEPT PLAN

NOVEMBER 2020  SCALE 1" = 100'

0  50 100 200

SCALE:  1" = 100'

LOCATION

PROJECT

LOCATION MAP

N.T.S.

LEGEND

TYPICAL LOT SIZES

NELSON LAKE ESTATES

F.M. 552

F
.M
. 

1
1
4

1

NORTH COUNTY LANE

J.M. GLASS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 88

(80' R.O.W.)

(
8

0
' 

R
.O
.W
.)

2.145

F
.M
. 

1
1
4

1

JOHN KING

F.M. 552

OPEN SPACEOPEN SPACE

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E

1
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 

D
E

D
IC

A
T
IO

N

20' R.O.W. DEDICATION

LAKE

CITY OF ROCKWALL

UNISON INVESTMENT

TORRANCE, CA 90505

23545 CRENSHAW BLVD., STE. 201

35' R.O.W. DEDICATION

- AMENITY CENTER - 1.020 Ac.

- 60' X 123' - 188 LOTS

50' R.O.W. (TYP.)

50' R.O.W. (TYP.)

50' R.O.W. (TYP.)

50' R.O.W. (TYP.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 
(
T

Y
P
.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 
(
T

Y
P
.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 
(
T

Y
P
.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 
(
T

Y
P
.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
. 
(
T

Y
P
.)

- 70' X 123' - 72 LOTS

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
O

P
E

N
 

S
P

A
C

E

TOTAL ACRES 121.158

35.67

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

& NCRS EASEMENT

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

NCRS EASEMENT

& NCRS EASEMENT

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

FEMA FLOODPLAIN

APPROX. LOCATION

(AFTER RECLAMTION)

PROPOSED FLOODPLAIN ACRES 33.15

CURRENT FLOODPLAIN ACRES

0.48 AC

OPEN SPACE

0.82 AC

OPEN SPACE

2.67 AC.

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE EASEMENT

1.00 AC.

OPEN SPACE/DRAINAGE EASEMENT

  LANDSCAPE BUFFER - 51.77 AC.

- PUBLIC OPEN SPACE/

11.69 AC. (NET)

46.47 AC. (GROSS)

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE

AMENITY CENTER

OPEN SPACE/

O
P

E
N
 

S
P

A
C

E
O

P
E

N
 

S
P

A
C

E

5' SIDEWALK

5' SIDEWALK

5' SIDEWALK
5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

(BY BUILDER)

5' SIDEWALK
(BY BUILDER)

5' SIDEWALK

6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

6
' S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

6' SIDEWALK

6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

(BY BUILDER)

5' SIDEWALK

MONUMENT SIGN

PRIMARY MONUMENT SIGN

SECONDARY

MONUMENT SIGN

SECONDARY

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P
IN

G

3
 

T
IE

R
E

D

RESIDENTIAL DENSITY

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P
IN

G

3
 

T
IE

R
E

D

(
T

Y
P
.)

5
0
' 

R
.O
.W
.

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T
 

S
IG

N

S
E

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y

MONUMENT SIGN

PRIMARY

SHALL NOT EXCEED 265 LOTS.

THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF RESIDENTIAL LOTS

NOTE:

6' SIDEWALK

6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

(
B

Y
 

B
U
IL

D
E

R
)

5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

6
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

190



CASE NO.: Z2020-045

CASE NAME: Zoning Change (SF-16 & NS to PD) [Nelson Lake Estates]

ACRES % EST. PROP. VALUE % ACRES % EST. PROP. VALUE % CH. ACRES % CHANGE CHANGE IN VALUE % CHANGE ACREAGE VALUE DIFFERENCE
RESIDENTIAL 10,934.11  75.49% 4,086,072,836.39$   75.92% 10,949.47 75.59% 4,159,745,765.77   76.24% 15.36          0.11% 73,672,929.38     1.37% 80% 67% -9.24%

NON-RESIDENTIAL 3,550.31    24.51% 1,296,229,067.61$   24.08% 3,533.95  24.40% 1,296,111,589.15   23.76% (16.36)        -0.11% (117,478.46)        0.00% 20% 33% -9.24%
14,484.42  100.00% 5,382,301,904.00$   100.00% 14,483.42 99.99% 5,455,857,354.92   100.00% 73,555,450.92     1.37% 100% 100%

OPEN SPACE 2,487.57    380,531,381.26$      2,488.57  389,033,454.47$     

TOTAL 16,971.99  5,762,833,285.26$   16,971.99 5,844,890,809.39   

ACRES %
RESIDENTIAL 19,697.30  80.41%

NON-RESIDENTIAL 4,799.77    19.59% [A] [B] - [C]
24,497.07  100.00%

OPEN SPACE 6,114.49    402,557.62$         33,980,494.35$      
117,478.46$         (9,527,246.00)$       

TOTAL 30,611.56  56.06                   15.36$                    
16.36                   (16.36)$                   

ACRES %
RESIDENTIAL 19,729.78  80.54% 1,489.46$             125,649.91$           

NON-RESIDENTIAL 4,783.41    19.53% 434.67$                (56,519.64)$            
24,513.19  100.07% -$                     (229,556.40)$          

-$                     130,761.47$           
OPEN SPACE 6,098.36    1,924.13$             (29,664.66)$            

TOTAL 30,611.56  
-$                     (369,922.06)$          
-$                     78,815.93$             

ACRES % -$                     (291,106.14)$          
RESIDENTIAL 32.48         0.13%

NON-RESIDENTIAL (16.36)        -0.07% 1,924.13$             (320,770.80)$          

320                        
(147)                       

(715,566.98)$                  

-$                               
309,948.52$                  
582,632.60$                   

-$                                
272,684.08$                   

-$                                
73,672,929.38$              

-$                                
71.42$                           56.06                     

9,527,246.00$         
39,692,435.04$       

612,297.26$            

229,556.40$           
56,519.64$              

147,034.16$            

16.36                       

BENCHMARKS

Total Revenues

Direct Sales Tax Increase
Non-Residential Revenues
Residential Revenues

ANNUAL REVENUES

Proposed Zoning @ BO
Difference of 

Proposed vs. Current

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS TOOL
ASSUMPTIONS:  (1) All values are based on the Appraised Value and not  the Market Value; (2) All Agricultural (AG) District land is assumed to be residential under Current Zoning and zoned in accordance to the Future Land Use Map under Current Zoning at Build Out.
DISCLAIMER:   The information provided below is not a reasonable basis for the approval or denial of any zoning case.  This is a general tool that is meant to assist elected and appointed officials in the understanding the potential fiscal impacts of a zoning request, and to track 
conformance to the Comprehensive Plan's targeted land use ratios of 80% residential to 20% commercial land use, which is intended to yield a 67% residential value to 33% commercial value. 
SUMMARY OF METHODOLOGY:  The methods used in this study are based on a rough fiscal impact analysis, and involve reducing the City's land values down to a per square footage cost to estimate potential impact on existing property value.  The cost of service model is constructed 
around the City's current fiscal year costs versus the percentage of land area that is currently residential and non-residential.  A per capita multiplier and average cost method were used to estimate sales tax.

CHANGE GOALZ
O

N
IN

G
 M

A
P

PRESENT PROPOSED

Current Zoning
Current Zoning 
Potential @ BO

ESTIMATED COST/REVENUES
[C][B]

-                                  
438                          
147                          

Additional Citizens Added to Population
Estimated Non-Resident Consumers in City

OTHER BENCHMARKS
758                                 

ANNUAL EXPENDITURES

(424,460.84)$          
(78,815.93)$            

(345,644.92)$          

187,836.42$            

Cost of Community Service for Non-Residential
Cost of Community Service for Residential

EST. ANN. COST/REVENUES

Total Estimated Expenditures

(132,934.38)$                  

(715,566.98)$                  
-$                                

LAND USE LAND VALUE

F
U

T
U

R
E

 L
A

N
D

 U
S

E
 

M
A

P

LAND USE LAND VALUE LAND USE LAND VALUE

Indirect Sales Tax Increase 179,187.05$           

Non-Residential Acreage
Residential Acreage
Non-Residential Value
Residential Value

CHANGE

PRESENT

PROPOSED

191



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 04-38] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS 
HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING FROM 
A NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES (NS) DISTRICT AND A SINGLE-
FAMILY 16 (SF-16) DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT XX (PD-XX) FOR SINGLE-FAMILY 10 (SF-10) DISTRICT 
LAND USES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, BEING A 121.16-ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 2 OF THE J. M. GASS 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 88, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND DEPICTED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘B’; PROVIDING 
FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Ryan Joyce of Ryan Michael Joyce Properties, 
LLC on behalf of Jen-Liang Wu of Unison Investment, LP for the approval of a zoning change 
from a Neighborhood Services (NS) District and a Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District to a 
Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses, on a 121.16-acre 
tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas and more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this 
ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by 
reference herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing 
body of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the 
ordinances of the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, 
and have held public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners 
generally and to all persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity 
thereof, and the governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that 
the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] should be amended as follows: 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
authorized by this Planned Development District Ordinance and the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 04-38] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by 
granting this zoning change, and as maybe amended in the future; 
 

SECTION 2. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the Concept Plan, depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference as Exhibit ‘C’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of approval of the 
amended zoning classification for the Subject Property;  
 
SECTION 3. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

192



the Density and Development Standards, outlined in Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘D’, which is deemed hereby to be a 
condition of approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; 
 

SECTION 4. That a Master Parks and Open Space Plan for the Subject Property, prepared in 
accordance with this ordinance and consistent with the Planned Development Concept Plan 
described in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, shall be considered for approval by the City Council 
following recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 
SECTION 5. That development of the Subject Property shall be in conformance with the 
schedule listed below (except as set forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and 
approvals). 

 
(a) The procedures set forth in the City’s subdivision regulations on the date this 

ordinance is approved by the City, as amended by this ordinance [including 
Subsections 5(b) through 5(g) below], shall be the exclusive procedures applicable 
to the subdivision and platting of the Subject Property.  
 

(b) The following plans and plats shall be required in the order listed below (except as 
set forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and approvals). The City 
Council shall act on an application for a Master Parks and Open Space Plan in 
accordance with the time period specified in Section 212.009 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. 

 
(1) Master Parks and Open Space Plan  
(2) Master Plat  
(3) Preliminary Plat 
(4) PD Site Plan 
(5) Final Plat 

 
(c) Master Parks and Open Space Plan.  A Master Parks and Open Space Plan for the 

Subject Property, as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, prepared in 
accordance with this ordinance, shall be considered for approval by the City Council 
following recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 

(d) Master Plat. A Master Plat for the Subject Property, as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this 
ordinance, shall be submitted and shall identify the proposed timing of each phase 
of the proposed development. A Master Plat application may be processed by the 
City concurrently with a Master Parks and Open Space Plan application for the 
development. 
 

(e) Preliminary Plat. A Preliminary Plat for each phase of the Subject Property, as 
depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, shall be submitted in accordance with the 
phasing plan established by the Master Plat and shall include a Treescape Plan for 
the phase being Preliminary Platted. A Preliminary Plat application may be 
processed by the City concurrently with a Master Plat and a Master Parks and Open 
Space Plan application for the development. 
 

(f) PD Site Plan.  A PD Site Plan for each phase of the development of the Subject 
Property, as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, shall be submitted and shall 
identify all site/landscape/hardscape plan(s) for all open space, neighborhood parks, 
trail systems, street buffers and entry features.  A PD Site Plan application may be 
processed by the City concurrently with a Final Plat application for the development. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

193



(g) Final Plat. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, a Final Plat, conforming to 
the Preliminary Plat, shall be submitted for approval. 

 
SECTION 6.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate 
offense; 
 

SECTION 7.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any 
reason judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision 
of this ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other 
person, firm, corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, 
or provision of the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have 
adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this 
end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 

SECTION 8.  The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between 
this ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City 
Code, ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that 
is different from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or 
other standards in the Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified 
Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits 
hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City 
Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 

SECTION 9.  That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage; 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 7TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2020. 

 
 

      
 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 

 

1st Reading:  November 16, 2020 
 
2nd Reading: December 7, 2020 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

194



All that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in the J.M. GLASS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 
88, Rockwall County, Texas, and being all of that tract of land as described in a Warranty Deed 
from Charles I. Cheshire to Marvin Menaker, Trustee, dated April 23, 1980, and being recorded 
in Volume 154, Page 625 of the Deed Records of Rockwell County, Texas, and being more 
particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a ½-inch iron rod found for corner at the east cut back corner at the intersection 
of the east right-of-way line of FM-1141 (80' ROW) with the South right-of-way line of FM-552 
(80’ ROW); 
 
THENCE along the south right-of-way line of said FM-552 the following: 
 

S. 89 DEG. 44 MIN. 00 SEC. E. (Controlling Bearing) a distance of 1681.27-feet to a ½-inch 
iron rod found for corner; 
 
N. 88 DEG. 45 MIN. 05 SEC. E. a distance of 700.30-feet to a tack found in wood 
monument for corner; 
 
N. 54 DEG. 06 MIN. 00 SEC. E. a distance of 77.79-feet to a ½-inch iron rod found for 
corner; 

 
THENCE S. 87 DEG. 51 MIN. 31 SEC. E. leaving the South line of said FM-552, a distance of 
156.34-feet to a ½-inch iron rod set for corner at the base of a fence corner post for corner at 
the northeast corner of said Meneker Tract; 
 
THENCE S. 00 DEG. 06 MIN. 49 SEC. E. along the east line of said Meneker Tract a distance 
of 2,041.03-feet to a 3/8-inch iron rod found for corner in the center of North Country Lane; 
 
THENCE N. 89 DEG. 56 MIN. 19 SEC. W. along and near said center of North Country Lane a 
distance of 2,645.47-feet to a ½-inch iron rod found for corner at the southwest corner of said 
Meneker Tract at the intersection of the center of said road with the east right-of-way line of said 
FM-1141; 
 
THENCE N. 00 DEG. 01 MIN.46 SEC. W. with the east right-of-way line of said FM-1141 a 
distance of 1,941.18-feet to a ½-inch iron rod found for corner; 
 
THENCE N.45 DEG. 02 MIN. 47 SEC. E. along the east right-of-way line of said highway a 
distance of 70.50-feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 121.16-acres or 5,277,595 
SF of land. 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

195



D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

196



  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

197



Density and Development Standards. 
 

(1) Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development District 
ordinance, only those uses permitted within the Single Family 10 (SF-10) District, as 
stipulated by the Permissible Use Charts contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), are allowed on the Subject Property. 

 
(2) Lot Composition and Layout. The lot layout and composition shall generally conform to 

the Concept Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ and stated in Table 1, which is as follows: 
 

Table 1: Lot Composition 
     

Lot Type Minimum Lot Size (FT) Minimum Lot Size (SF) Dwelling Units (#) Dwelling Units (%) 
A 60’ x 120’ 7,000 SF 193 72.83% 

B 70’ x 120’ 8,400 SF 72 27.16% 
     

Maximum Permitted Units: 265 100.00% 
     

 
(3) Density and Dimensional Requirements. Unless specifically provided by this Planned 

Development District ordinance, the development standards stipulated by the Single 
Family 10 (SF-10) District, as specified by Article 05, District Development Standards, 
of the Unified Development Code (UDC) are applicable to all development on the 
Subject Property.  The maximum permissible density for the Subject Property shall not 
exceed 2.20 dwelling units per gross acre of land; however, in no case should the 
proposed development exceed 265 units.  All lots shall conform to the standards 
depicted in Table 2, which are as follows: 

 

Table 2: Lot Dimensional Requirements 
 

Lot Type (see Concept Plan) ►  A B 
Minimum Lot Width (1) 60’ 70’ 

Minimum Lot Depth 120’ 120’ 

Minimum Lot Area 7,000 SF 8,400 SF 

Minimum Front Yard Setback (2), (5) & (6) 20’ 20’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback 5’ 5’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) (2) & (5) 20’ 20’ 

Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement 20’ 20’ 

Maximum Height (3) 36’ 36’ 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback (4) 10’ 10’ 

Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) [Air-Conditioned Space] 2,000 SF 2,200 SF 

Maximum Lot Coverage 65% 65% 
 

General Notes: 
1:  Lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may have the front lot width reduced 

by 20% as measured at the front property line provided that the lot width will be met at the Front Yard 
Building Setback.  Additionally, the lot depth on lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and 
eyebrows may be reduced by up to ten (10) percent, but shall meet the minimum lot size for each lot 
type referenced in Table 1. 

2:  The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line. 
3:  The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single-

family home. 
4: The location of the Rear Yard Building Setback as measured from the rear property line. 
5: Sunrooms, porches, stoops, bay windows, balconies, masonry clad chimneys, eaves and similar 

architectural features may encroach beyond the Front Yard Building Setback by up to ten (10) feet for 
any property; however, the encroachment shall not exceed five (5) feet on Side Yard Setbacks.  A 
sunroom is an enclosed room no more than 15-feet in width that has glass on at least 50% of each of 
the encroaching faces. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

198



6: Flat front entry garage configurations are permitted on up to 35% (i.e. a maximum of 92 lots) of the 

total number of lots provided that: [1] no more than 40% (i.e. a maximum of 78 lots) of the lots for Lot 
Type ‘A’ have a flat front entry garage, [2] no more than 20% (i.e. a maximum of 14 lots) of the Lot 
Type ‘B’ have a flat front entry garage, and [3] the front yard building setback for all lots with a flat front 
entry garage is increased to a minimum of 25-feet. 

 
(4) Building Standards. All development shall adhere to the following building standards: 

 
(a) Masonry Requirement. The minimum masonry requirement for the total exterior 

façade area of all buildings shall be 90% (excluding dormers and walls over roof 
areas); however, no individual façade shall be less than 85% masonry.  For the 
purposes of this ordinance, the masonry requirement shall be limited to full width 
brick, natural stone, and cast stone.  Cementitious fiberboard horizontal lap-siding 
(e.g. HardiBoard or Hardy Plank) and stucco (i.e. three [3] part stucco or a 
comparable -- to be determined by staff) may be used for up to 50% of the 
masonry requirement; however, stucco (i.e. three [3] part stucco or a comparable -- 
to be determined by staff) shall be permitted through a Specific Use Permit (SUP) 
only.  Excluding dormers and walls over roof areas, siding products (e.g. 
HardiBoard or Hardy Plank) shall not be visible on homes abutting any major 
thoroughfare (i.e. FM-552 and FM-1141 as shown on Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance). 

 
(b) Roof Pitch. A minimum of an 8:12 roof pitch is required on all structures with the 

exception of dormers, sunrooms and porches, which shall have a minimum of a 
4:12 roof pitch. 

 
(c) Garage Orientation and Garage Doors. This development shall adhere to the 

following garage design and orientation requirements:  
 

(1) Type ‘A’ Lots. Garages shall be oriented in a traditional swing (or j-swing) -- 
where the two (2) car garage is situated facing the side property line and the 
driveway swings into the garage in a ‘J’ configuration -- or in a flat front entry 
configuration (i.e. even with the front façade of the primary structure).  On 
traditional swing (or j-swing) garage configurations, a second single garage 
door facing the street is permitted if it is located behind the width of the double 
garage door.  Garages configured in a flat front entry configuration shall be 
allowed on a maximum of 40% of the lots (i.e. a maximum of 78 lots) provided 
that the front yard building setback is increased to 25-feet.  All garage 
configurations not conforming to this section shall meet the requirements of 
Article 09, Parking and Loading, of the Unified Development Code (UDC).    
 

(2) Type ‘B’ Lots. Garages shall be oriented in a traditional swing (or j-swing) -- 
where the two (2) car garage is situated facing the side property line and the 
driveway swings into the garage in a ‘J’ configuration -- or in a flat front entry 
configuration (i.e. even with the front façade of the primary structure).  On 
traditional swing (or j-swing) garage configurations, a second single garage 
door facing the street is permitted if it is located behind the width of the double 
garage door.  Garages configured in a flat front entry configuration shall be 
allowed on a maximum of 20% of the lots (i.e. a maximum of 14 lots) provided 
that the front yard building setback is increased to 25-feet.  All garage 
configurations not conforming to this section shall meet the requirements of 
Article 09, Parking and Loading, of the Unified Development Code (UDC).    

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

199



 
All garage doors shall be required to have decorative wood doors or wood overlays 
on insulated metal doors.  The design between the garage door and home shall 
use the same or complementary colors and materials.  All garages shall include 
carriage style hardware.  An example of carriage style hardware is depicted in 
Figure 1.   

 
Figure 1. Examples of Enhanced Garage Door 

 
 Carriage Hardware 

 
(5) Anti-Monotony Restrictions. The development shall adhere to the Anti-Monotony 

Matrix depicted in Table 3 below (for spacing requirements see Figures 3 & 4 below). 
 

Table 3: Anti-Monotony Matrix 
Lot Type Minimum Lot Size Elevation Features 

A 60’ x 120’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 

B 70’ x 130’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 

 
(a) Identical brick blends or paint colors may not occur on adjacent (side-by-side) 

properties along any block face without at least five (5) intervening homes of 
differing materials on the same side of the street beginning with the adjacent 
property and six (6) intervening homes of differing materials on the opposite side of 
the street. 

 
(b) Front building elevations shall not repeat along any block face without at least five 

(5) intervening homes of differing appearance on the same side of the street and 
six (6) intervening homes of differing appearance on the opposite side of the street.  
The rear elevation of homes backing to open spaces, FM-552, FM-1141, or North 
Country Lane shall not repeat without at least five (5) intervening homes of differing 
appearance. Homes are considered to have a differing appearance if any of the 
following two (2) items deviate: 

 
(1) Number of Stories 
(2) Permitted Encroachment Type and Layout 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

200



(3) Roof Type and Layout 
(4) Articulation of the Front Façade  

  
(c) Permitted encroachment (i.e. porches and sunroom) elevations shall not repeat or 

be the same along any block face without at least five (5) intervening homes of 
sufficient dissimilarity on the same side of the street beginning with the home 
adjacent to the subject property and six (6) intervening homes beginning with the 
home on the opposite side of the street. 

 
(d) Each phase of the subdivision will allow for a maximum of four (4) compatible roof 

colors, and all roof shingles shall be an architectural or dimensional shingle (3-Tab 
Roofing Shingles are prohibited). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(6) Fencing Standards. All individual residential fencing and walls shall be architecturally 
compatible with the design, materials and colors of the primary structure on the same 
lot, and meet the following standards: 

 
(a) Front Yard Fences.  Front yard fences shall be prohibited. 

 
(b) Wood Fences.  All solid fencing shall be constructed utilizing standard cedar 

fencing materials (spruce fencing is prohibited) that are a minimum of ½-inch or 

Figure 3: Properties line up on the opposite side of the street.  Where RED is the subject property. 

Figure 4: Properties do not line up on opposite side of the street. Where RED is the subject property. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

201



greater in thickness. Fences shall be board-on-board panel fence that is 
constructed a minimum of six (6) feet in height and a maximum of eight (8) feet in 
height. Posts, fasteners, and bolts shall be formed from hot dipped galvanized or 
stainless steel. All cedar pickets shall be placed on the public side (i.e. facing 
streets, alleys, open space, parks, and/or neighboring properties). All posts and/or 
framing shall be placed on the private side (i.e. facing towards the home) of the 
fence. All wood fences shall be smooth finished, free of burs and splinters, and be 
stained and sealed on both sides of the fence. Painting a fence with oil or latex 
based paint shall be prohibited. 
 

(c) Wrought Iron/Tubular Steel. Lots located along the perimeter of roadways (i.e. FM-
552, FM-1141 and North Country Lane), abutting open spaces, greenbelts and 
parks shall be required to install a wrought iron or tubular steel fence.  Wrought 
iron/tubular steel fences can be a maximum of six (6) feet in height. 
 

(d) Corner Lots. Corner lots fences (i.e. adjacent to the street) shall provide masonry 
columns at 45-feet off center spacing that begins at the rear of the property line.  A 
maximum of six (6) foot solid board-on-board panel fence constructed utilizing 
cedar fencing shall be allowed between the masonry columns along the side 
and/or rear lot adjacent to a street.  In addition, the fencing shall be setback from 
the side property line adjacent to a street a minimum of five (5) feet.  The property 
owner shall be required to maintain both sides of the fence. 
 

(e) Solid Fences (including Wood Fences). All solid fences shall incorporate a 
decorative top rail or cap detailing into the design of the fence. 

 
(7) Landscape and Hardscape Standards.  

 
(a) Landscape. Landscaping shall be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan.  

All Canopy/Shade Trees planted within this development shall be a minimum of 
four (4) caliper inches in size and all Accent/Ornamental/Under-Story Trees shall 
be a minimum of four (4) feet in total height. 
 

(b) Landscape Buffers. All landscape buffers and plantings located within the buffers 
shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA). 

 
(1) Landscape Buffer and Sidewalks (FM-552). A minimum of a 30-foot landscape 

buffer shall be provided along FM-552 (outside of and beyond any required 
right-of-way dedication), that shall incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm 
and shrubbery along the entire length of the frontage.  Berms and/or shrubbery 
shall have a minimum height of 30-inches and a maximum height of 48-inches.  
In addition, three (3) canopy trees and four (4) accent trees shall be planted per 
100-feet of linear frontage.  A meandering five (5) foot sidewalk shall be 
constructed within the 30-foot landscape buffer.  In addition, additional three (3) 
tiered landscaping (i.e. small to mid-sized shrubs, large shrubs or accent trees, 
and canopy trees) shall be required adjacent to the cul-de-sacs along FM-552 
as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 

 
(2) Landscape Buffer and Sidewalks (FM-1141). A minimum of a 30-foot 

landscape buffer shall be provided along FM-1141 (outside of and beyond any 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

202



required right-of-way dedication), and shall incorporate ground cover, a built-up 
berm and shrubbery along the entire length of the frontage.  Berms and/or 
shrubbery shall have a minimum height of 30-inches and a maximum height of 
48-inches.  In addition, three (3) canopy trees and four (4) accent trees shall be 
planted per 100-feet of linear frontage.  A meandering five (5) foot sidewalk 
shall be constructed within the 30-foot landscape buffer. 

 
(3) Landscape Buffers (North Country Lane). A minimum of a 10-foot landscape 

buffer shall be provided along North Country Lane (outside of and beyond any 
required right-of-way dedication).  This landscape buffer shall incorporate a 
solid living screen utilizing evergreen trees -- either Eastern Red Cedar or 
Leland Cypress unless approved otherwise approved by the Director of 
Planning and Zoning --, a minimum of four (4) caliper inches in size, that will be 
planted on 15-foot centers along the entire frontage of North Country Lane.  An 
alternative screening plan proposing the use of existing trees, for the area 
directly adjacent to North Country Lane, may be submitted by the developer 
with the PD Site Plan.  This alternative plan can be approved by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission upon a finding that the proposed plan will provide 
adequate screening that is equal to or exceeds the standards stated in this 
section.  

 
(c) Street Trees. The Homeowner’s Association (HOA) shall be responsible for the 

maintenance of all street trees and will be required to maintain a minimum of 14-
feet vertical clearance height for any trees overhanging a public right-of-way.  
Street trees shall be planted a minimum of five (5) feet from public water, sanitary 
sewer and storm lines.  All street trees shall be reviewed with the PD Site Plan. 
 

(d) Irrigation Requirements. Irrigation shall be installed for all required landscaping 
located within common areas, landscape buffers and/or open space.  Irrigation 
installed in these areas shall be designed by a Texas licensed irrigator or 
landscape architect and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association 
(HOA). 
 

(e) Hardscape. Hardscape plans indicating the location of all sidewalks and trails shall 
be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan. 

 
(8) Street. All streets (excluding drives, fire lanes and private parking areas) shall be built 

according to City street standards. 
 
(9) Lighting. Light poles shall not exceed 20-feet in total height (i.e. base and lighting 

standard).  All fixtures shall be directed downward and be positioned to contain all light 
within the development area. 

 
(10) Sidewalks. All sidewalks adjacent to a street shall be a maximum of two (2) feet inside 

the right-of-way line and be five (5) feet in overall width. 
 
(11) Buried Utilities. New distribution power-lines required to serve the Subject Property 

shall be placed underground, whether such lines are located internally or along the 
perimeter of the Subject Property, unless otherwise authorized by the City Council.  
Temporary power-lines constructed across undeveloped portions of the Subject 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

203



Property to facilitate development phasing and looping may be allowed above ground, 
but shall not be considered existing lines at the time the area is developed, and if they 
are to become permanent facilities, such lines shall be placed underground pursuant 
to this paragraph.  Franchise utilities shall be placed within a ten (10) foot public utility 
easement behind the sidewalk, between the home and the property line. 

 
(12) Open Space. The development shall consist of a minimum of 20% open space (or a 

minimum of 24.232-acres -- as calculated by the formula stipulated in the 
Comprehensive Plan), and generally conform to the Concept Plan contained in Exhibit 
‘C’ of this ordinance.  All open space areas (including landscape buffers) shall be 
maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA). 

 
(13) Trails.  A concrete trail system shall be constructed in generally the same areas and of 

the same sizes as what is depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance.  
 
(14) Neighborhood Signage and Enhancements. Permanent subdivision identification 

signage shall be permitted at all major entry points for the proposed subdivision.  Final 
design and location of any entry features shall be reviewed and approved with the PD 
Site Plan.  The developer shall provide enhanced landscaping areas at all entry points 
to the Subject Property.  The final design of these areas shall be provided on the PD 
Site Plan. 

 
(15) Homeowner’s Association (HOA). A Homeowner’s Association shall be created to 

enforce the restrictions established in accordance with the requirements of Section 38-
15 of the Subdivision Regulations contained within the Municipal Code of Ordinances 
of the City of Rockwall.  The HOA shall also maintain all private neighborhood parks, 
trails, open space and common areas (including drainage facilities), floodplain areas, 
irrigation, landscaping, screening fences and neighborhood signage associated with 
this development. 

 
(16) Variances. The variance procedures and standards for approval that are set forth in 

the Unified Development Code (UDC) shall apply to any application for variances to 
this ordinance. D

R
A

FT
  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

204



MEMORANDUM
TO: Rick Crowley, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: November 16, 2020

SUBJECT: Z2020-046; SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR A RESIDENTIAL INFILL
FOR 295 VICTORY LANE

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
HOA Notification Map
Neighborhood Notification Email
Property Owner Notification Map
Property Owner Notification List
Public Notice
Property Owner Notifications
Building Elevations
Residential Plot Plan
Floor Plan
Housing Analysis
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Mike Whittle of Whittle & Johnson
Custom Homes for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit
(SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a
single-family home on a 0.15-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 24, Block E, Chandler’s
Landing #16, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8
(PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 295 Victory Lane, and take any
action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to [1] approve, [2] approve with condition, or [3] deny the
Specific Use Permit (SUP).

205



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
DATE: November 16, 2020 
APPLICANT: Mike Whittle 
CASE NUMBER: Z2020-046; Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Residential Infill for 295 Victory Lane 

SUMMARY 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Mike Whittle of Whittle & Johnson Custom Homes for the approval 
of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-family 
home on a 0.15-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 24, Block E, Chandler’s Landing #16, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 295 Victory Lane, 
and take any action necessary. 

BACKGROUND 

The subject property was annexed into the City of Rockwall on October 29, 1973 by Ordinance No. 73-42. At the time of 
annexation, the property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  On November 12, 1973, the subject property was rezoned from 
an Agricultural (AG) District to Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land uses by Ordinance No. 73-48.  The 
subject property was platted as Lot 16, Block E, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 16 Addition on August 5, 1985 by Case No. PZ1985-
50-01.  On January 20, 1986, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 86-04 [Case No. PZ1985-094-01] amending Planned
Development District 8 (PD-8) [Ordinance No. 73-48] to change the zoning of Lots 1-26, Block E and Lots 1-11, Block F of the
Chandler’s Landing, Phase 16 Addition to allow a zero lot-line lot configuration. The subject property was again replatted as Lot
24, Block E, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 16 Addition on March 16, 2020 by Case No. P2020-010. The subject property has
remained vacant since its annexation into the City of Rockwall.

PURPOSE 

The applicant, is requesting the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for the purpose of constructing a single-family home 
on the subject property in accordance with Subsection 02.03(B)(11), Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established 
Subdivision, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC). 

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 

The subject property is located at 295 Victory Lane.  The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 

North: Directly north of the subject property is Victory Lane, which is classified as a R2 (i.e. residential, two [2] lane, 
undivided roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive 
Plan. Beyond this are several single-family homes, which are zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for 
single-family land uses. North of this is Yacht Club Drive, which is classified as a Minor Collector on the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan.   

South: Directly south of the subject property is a tract of land owned by the Chandler’s Landing Home Owners Association 
(HOA), and which is dedicated as open space. Beyond this are several single-family homes, which are zoned 
Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land uses. South of this is Freedom Court, which is 
classified as a R2 (i.e. residential, two [2] lane, undivided roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in 
the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

206



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

East: Directly east of the subject property are two (2) single-family homes (i.e. 291 & 293 Victory Lane) that are zoned 
Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land uses. Beyond this is a tract of land owned by the 
Chandler’s Landing Home Owners Association (HOA), and which is dedicated as open space. East of this are 
several single-family homes that are zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land uses. 

West: Directly west of the subject property are several homes that are zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for 
single-family land uses. Beyond this is Yacht Club Drive, which is classified as a Minor Collector on the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this are several 
single-family homes that are zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land uses. 

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST AND CONFORMANCE TO THE CITY’S CODES 

Article 13, Definitions, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) defines Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established 
Subdivision as “(t)he new development of a single-family home or duplex on an existing vacant or undeveloped parcel of land 
or the redevelopment of a developed parcel of land for a new single-family home or duplex within an established subdivision 
that is mostly or entirely built-out.”  An established subdivision is further defined in Subsection 02.03(B) (11) of Article 04, 
Permissible Uses, of the UDC as “…a subdivision that consists of five (5) or more lots, that is 90% developed, and that has 
been in existence for more than ten (10) years.”  In this case, the subject property is located within the Chandler’s Landing 
Phase 16 Subdivision, which has been in existence August 5, 1985, consists of 57 lots, and is 98.25% developed.  The 
Permissible Use Charts contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the UDC, requires a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 
Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established Subdivision in all single-family zoning districts, the Two-Family (2F) District, 
the Downtown (DT) District, and the Residential-Office (RO) District.  This property, being in a Planned Development District for 
single-family land uses, requires a Specific Use Permit (SUP). 

In addition, Subsection 02.03(B)(11) of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the UDC states that, “…the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council shall consider the proposed size, location, and architecture of the home compared to the existing 
housing … [and] (a)ll housing proposed under this section [i.e. Residential Infill in or Adjacent to an Established Subdivision] 
shall be constructed to be architecturally and visually similar or complimentary to the existing housing …”  The following is a 
summary of observations concerning the housing on Victory Lane compared to the house proposed by the applicant: 

Housing Design and 
Characteristics 

Existing Housing on Victory Lane and the Subject 
Property Proposed Housing 

Building Height One (1) & Two (2) Story Two (2) Story 
Building Orientation All of the homes are oriented toward the street they 

are built along. 
The front elevation of the home will face onto Victory 
Lane. 

Year Built 1994-2017 N/A 
Building SF on Property 1,788 SF – 3,528 SF  4,020 SF (3,508 SF of Air-Conditioned Space) 
Building Architecture Single Family Homes Comparable Architecture to the surrounding Single-

Family Homes 
Building Setbacks: 

Front Estimated Between 20-Feet and 35-Feet 30-Feet
Side Estimated between zero (0) and greater than ten (10) 

feet. 
0-Feet and 12-Feet

Rear The rear yard setbacks appear to be greater than ten 
(10) feet.

20-Feet

Building Materials Brick and Siding (Secondary) Brick and Siding 
Paint and Color Red, White, Grey, Blonde, and Brown White Brick and Siding 
Roofs Composite Shingles and Tile Composite Shingle 
Driveways/Garages Driveways all front the same street the single-family

home faces. Front-facing, J-swing, and no garages.
The garage will be attached and located 
approximately nineteen (19) feet in front of the front 
façade. 

According to Section 04, Residential Parking, of Article 06, Parking and Loading, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(i)n 
single-family or duplex districts, parking garages must be located at least 20-feet behind the front façade for front entry garages 
…” In this case, the applicant is proposing to put the garage nineteen (19) feet in front of the front façade of the single-family 
home, and if approved the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be waiving this requirement. Staff should note 
that other single-family homes along Victory Lane have a garage in front of the front façade of the single-family home, and that 

207



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 3 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

this garage orientation is not uncharacteristic of the neighborhood. With the exception of the garage orientation, the proposed 
single-family home meets all of the density and dimensional requirements as stipulated by the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
and Planned Development District 8 (PD-8). For the purpose of comparing the proposed home to the existing single-family 
housing located adjacent to or in the vicinity of the subject property, staff has provided photos of the properties along Victory 
Lane and the proposed building elevations in the attached packet. The approval of this request is a discretionary decision for 
the City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission and a finding that the proposed house 
will not have a negative impact on the existing subdivision. 

NOTIFICATIONS 

On October 20, 2020, staff mailed 129 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the subject property.  Staff 
also notified the Chandler’s Landing, Signal Ridge, Signal Ridge Phase 4, Water’s Edge Lake Ray Hubbard, and Lago Vista 
Homeowner’s Associations (HOAs), which are HOAs within 1,500-feet of the subject property participating in the Neighborhood 
Notification Program.  Additionally, staff posted a sign on the subject property, and advertised the public hearings in the Rockwall 
Herald Banner as required by the Unified Development Code (UDC).  At the time this report was drafted, staff had received one 
(1) email in opposition to the applicant’s request.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

If the City Council chooses to approve the applicant’s request for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to construct a single-family home 
as a Residential Infill within an Established Subdivision, then staff would propose the following conditions of approval: 

(1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the operational conditions contained in the Specific Use
Permit (SUP) ordinance and which are detailed as follows:

(a) Development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of
the draft ordinance.

(b) Construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Building Elevations
depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of the draft ordinance; and,

(c) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted by the City, the Specific
Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by the property owner shall be required.

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall conform to the requirements set forth
by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of
Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered
and/or enforced by the state and federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING 

On November 10, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) by a vote of 7-0. 

208



209



VICTORYZ2020-046- SUP FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL AT 295 VICTORY LANE
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 25 50 75 10012.5
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street

Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I210



SUMMER LEE

RIDGE

WHISPERROCK

LA COSTA

DAME
PATTIE

SHADYDALE

YACHT
CLUB

YA
CH

T C
LU

B

RESOLUTE

FOXCHASE

SHAMROCK

AURORA

BOURBON

STREET

GENESTA

VA
LK

YR
IE

MA
YF

LO
WE

R

EN
DEA

VO
R

FRANCE

CO
LU

MB
IA

SIGNAL RIDGE

CANADA

RANGER

DE
FE

ND
ER

RELIANCE

BENTON
WOODS

MARINER

YANKEE

RAINBOW

NEWPORT

COLU
MBIA

LIONHART
BOURBON STREET

CHALLENGER

EASTERNER

AU
ST

RA
LIA

INDEPENDENCE

CLIPPER

BRIST
OL

MYSTIC

RIDGE

PORTOFINO

CHAPARRAL

SOVEREIGN

FREEDOM

LAGO VISTA

COLUMBIA

VIC
TO

RY

SCEPTRE

VALIANT

MIS
CH

IEF

CAMBRIA

LIB
ER

TY

Lago Vista

Chandler's
Landing

Signal
Ridge,
PH 4

Water's Edge
Lake Ray
Hubbard

Fox Chase

Benton
Woods

The Cabana's
at Chandler's

Landing

Signal Ridge

0 300 600 900 1,200150
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street

Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

RA
NG

ERYACHT CLUB

FREEDOM

LIB
ER

TY

COLUMBIA

SCEPTRE

CANADA

CAMBRIA

LIONHART

SOVEREIGNCOURAGEOUS

VIC
TO

RY

VALIANT

MISCHIEF
YANKEE

INTREPID

YA
CH

T C
LU

B

Case Number:

Case Address:

Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2020-046

295 Victory Lane

Zoning
SUP for Residential Infill
Planned Development District 8
(PD-8)

10/19/2020 211



1

Miller, Ryan

From: Gamez, Angelica
Sent: Wednesday, October 21, 2020 2:20 PM
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Lee, Henry
Subject: Neighborhood Notification Program 
Attachments: Public Notice (10.20.2020).pdf; HOA Map Z2020-046.pdf

HOA/Neighborhood Association Representative: 
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notice to inform your organization 
that a zoning case has been filed with the City of Rockwall that is located within 1,500‐feet of the boundaries of your 
neighborhood.  As the contact listed for your organization, you are encouraged to share this information with the 
residents of your subdivision.  Please find the attached map detailing the property requesting to be rezoned in relation to 
your subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is the summary of the zoning case that was published in the Rockwall 
Herald Banner on Friday, October 23, 2020.  The Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, 
November 10, 2020 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, November 16, 2020 at 6:00 
PM.  Both hearings will take place at 6:00 PM at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, TX 75087.  
 
All interested parties are encouraged to submit public comments via email to Planning@rockwall.com  at least 30 minutes 
in advance of the meeting.  Please include your name, address, and the case number your comments are referring 
to.  These comments will be read into the record during each of the public hearings. Additional information on all current 
development cases can be found on the City’s website: 
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development‐cases. 
 
Z2020‐046 Specific Use Permit for Residential Infill 
Hold  a public hearing  to discuss  and  consider  a  request by Mike Whittle of Whittle &  Johnson Custom Homes  for  the
approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a 
single‐family home on a 0.15‐acre parcel of  land  identified as Lot 24, Block E, Chandler’s Landing #16, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD‐8) for single‐family residential land uses, addressed as 
295 Victory Lane, and take any action necessary.  
 

Thank you,  

 
Angelica Gamez  
Planning & Zoning Coordinator 
City of Rockwall 
972.771.7745 Office  
972.772.6438 Direct 
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/  
 
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender 

212



281

921

106

114

257

103

126

314

210

104

114

107

115

125

256

214

110

247

103

138

225

110

105

118

113

4501

111

107

125

102

115

110

236

117

284

112

228
106

109
213

130

224

209

123

107

221

119

111

108

118

297

135

139

131

262

126

127

205

122

201

134

108

232
217

126

121

104

141

102

299

103

218

318

331

122

264

289

114

112

102

326

128

109

320

130

314

101

322

132

131

105

101

306

293

106

103

102

272

129

137

246

291

127

102

329

101

253

105

285

327

104

307

305

268

220

315

303

311

313

333

116

301

309

325

251 104

229

307

323

321

319

317

310

106

124

315

145

335

337

102

104

133

222

103

151

105

105

127

216

103

1030

1028
1029

1031

1032

109

101

121

122

226

101

106108

5502

120

PD-8

FREEDOM

YA
CH

T C
LU

B

VIC
TO

RY

VALIANT

CLIPPER

LIONHART
MISCHIEF

RELIANCE

DE
FE

ND
ER

YANKEE

WEATH
ERLY

DAME PATTIE

YACHT CLUB

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street

Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

RID
GE

 RDRANGER DR

FREEDOM CT

LIB
ERT

Y L
N

LIONHART PL

CAMBRIA DR

VIC
TO

RY
 LN

VALIANT DR

MISCHIEF LN

EASTERNER PLYANKEE CT

RIDGE RD

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2020-046

295 Victory Lane

Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: SUP for Residential Infill
Zoning: Planned Development District 8

(PD-8)

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  10/19/2020

Legend
Parcels

Subject Property

500' Buffer

Notified Properties

213



CHANDLERS LANDING COMMUNITY 
ASSOCIATION 

1 COMMODORE PLAZA  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

MAFFEI DIEGO R & GERTRAUD A 
101 DAME PATTIE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

GOODSON JOSEPH F & SONJA R 
101 RELIANCE CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

VANGUARD PORTABLE SOLUTIONS INC 
1017 NATIVE TR  

HEATH, TX 75032 
 

 

HUNTER STEVEN R AND KAREN J 
102 DAME PATTIE DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HALL JASON & CORI 
102 MISCHIEF LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

CHENAULT JOSH & NATHALIE 
102 RELIANCE COURT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

THOMAS VELIA 
103 DAME PATTIE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SINCLAIR SUE AND 
JEREMY LEE SINCLAIR 

103 RELIANCE CT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

FAYAD HUSSAIN 
104 DAME PATTIE DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CARR LORI 
104 MISCHIEF LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

VANGUARD PORTABLE SOLUTIONS INC 
104 RELIANCE CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

SPOKES JULIE 
105 CLIPPER COURT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

JOHNSON ROBERT & DOLORES 
105 MISCHIEF LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HAYES BRANDON 
105 RELIANCE CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

GRAF DANIEL & JESSICA 
106 MISCHIEF LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ROARK BOBBIE ETAL 
107 DEFENDER CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ALLEN REGINALD 
107 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

HARTFIELD THOMAS E & EDITH E 
109 CLIPPER CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HAGIN GARY L & W ANNE 
109 MISCHIEF LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HPA TEXAS SUB 2017-1 LLC 
110 DEFENDERCT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

STEBBINS GREGORY & KRISTEN 
111 DEFENDER CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HEBERT EARL T & LANA G 
111 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RUSSELL DEBORA J AND 
JOSEPH A JR & EDNA J JERMAN 

112 FREEDOM COURT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

SMITH THOMAS M 
113 CLIPPER COURT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

WEAVER C R & KAREN REV LIVING TR 
114 DEFENDER CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

WEBSTER LIDIA 
115 DEFENDER CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

YU DAVIS & HYUN SOOK 
115 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

PALMER TONY & JUDY 
117 CLIPPER CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

JASTER FAMILY LIVING TRUST 
EMIL EDWARD & MARGARET O JASTER 

TRUSTEES 
118 FREEDOM COURT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

214



JONES FELICIA M 
119 FREEDOM COURT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

HPA TEXAS SUB 2017-1 LLC 
120 S RIVERSIDE PLZ STE 2000  

CHICAGO, IL 60606 
 

 

HPA II TEXAS SUB 2019-1 LLC 
120 SOUTH RIVERSIDE PLAZA SUITE 2000 

CHICAGO, IL 60606 
 

PINSON REGINALD A & CAROL S 
121 CLIPPER CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HPA II TEXAS SUB 2019-1 LLC 
122 FREEDOMCT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

THOMAS ALAN AND DANA 
123 FREEDOM COURT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

CASHMAN GINA L AND 
JOEY L RIVER 

125 CLIPPER CT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

ODOM LACEY AND JOSH 
125 MISCHIEFLN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

BOLES ALAN L & DANA M 
126 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

HUIE LANDON DARNELL AND KRISTIN NOEL 
126 MISCHIEF LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SNIDER MICHAEL AND CASSANDRA 
127 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MARTIN NAN YI 
127 MICHIEF LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

HALAMA STEVEN 
128 MISCHIEF LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MANSFIELD PHYLLIS J 
129 MISCHIEF LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

BILLITER MARGARET AND ROGER 
130 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

HARGROVE PATRICIA ANN 
130 MISCHIEF LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

WALTON ALLEN NICK & WANDA JEAN 
131 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CHURY JENNIFER LEIGH & BRIAN D 
131 MISCHIEF LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

ROSHAN KC 
132 MISCHIEFLN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

COFFEE CHARLES C AND DEBRA P 
134 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ROBISON BRUCE EMERSON 
135 FREEDOM COURT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

ROGERS SHAWN A & BRENDA 
138 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HENDRICKS LORI L 
139 FREEDOMCT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

JOHNSON TIFFANY MICHELLE 
148 OXFORD  

HEATH, TX 75032 
 

JOHNSON TIFFANY MICHELLE 
148 OXFORD DR  
HEATH, TX 75032 

 

 

2019-1 IH BORROWER LP 
1717 MAIN SST SUITE 2000  

DALLAS, TX 75201 
 

 

MAXCEY THOMAS AND KIRSTEN 
201 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

FRITZ AND KATHY MCKINSTRY LIVING TRUST 
205 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

LANE LAWRENCE DALE & HARRIETT B 
209 FREEDOM COURT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

MORRISON MICHAEL JARED AND 
SARAH MARIE GOOCH 

210 FREEDOM CT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

215



MONKRESS MONTE R & MARGARET D 
213 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

GENTZEL DUSTIN AND SHANA 
214 FREEDOM COURT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

NORRISS KIMBERLY S 
217 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

WILLIAMS HARRY E & MARGARET 
218 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MCCASKILL KRISTOFER 
221 FREEDOM COURT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

NICHOLLS HARRY E JR 
222 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

DUNCAN FRANK T AND NORMA E 
224 LIONHART PLACE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

DICKERSON PAUL L & LISA 
225 FREEDOM CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HOLLIS CODY JONATHAN 
228 LIONHART PLACE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

NASH TERRY L & MARGARET SPEAR 
232 LIONHART PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MOLTZAN HERBERT J & JANET R 
236 LIONHART PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ODOM LACEY AND JOSH 
2402 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

PARRISH WENDY R 
246 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

GATZKE LISA AND JAMES 
247 VICTORY LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HARRIS ERIC & DEBBIE 
251 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

LASANCE RICHARD & SHIRLEY 
253 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

TONA CHAD J & MARTI 
256 VICTORY LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MCKINSTRY FRITZ AND KATHY LIVING TRUST 
257 VICTORYLN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

THOMAS VELIA 
2612 GULL LAKE DRIVE  

PLANO, TX 75025 
 

 

HANSEN J D & PATRICIA 
262 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

2019-1 IH BORROWER LP 
264 VICTORYLN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

STUBBLEFIELD SUSAN AND JACK ALLEN 
268 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MADSON RICHARD ARLEN 
2710 ROUTH CREEK PKWY APT 3202  

RICHARDSON, TX 75082 
 

 

FRANCISCO CAROLYN ELLISON 
272 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

WILLIAMS ROBERT C 
281 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HALL JASON M & CORI M 
284 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

BROWN TERRI LYNN 
285 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

BYRUM CURTIS R AND SUSAN L 
289 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

LYNN JASON AND DANIELLE 
291 VICTORY LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

BILLITER KENT A 
291 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

216



WOOD JOHN S & LISA MARIE 
293 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SEEDS DAVID R 
2961 S CHERRY WAY  
DENVER, CO 80222 

 

 

LYNN JASON AND DANIELLE 
297 VICTORYLN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

PERRY GEORGE DAVID & SANDRA SUE 
299 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

STOUFFER AMY JACKSON AND MITCH 
301 VALIANT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

WARD ANDREA N 
303 VALIANT DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

DEAL ROBERT 
305 VALIANT DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MCMINN KIMBERLY 
306 VICTORYLN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

AMH 2014-2 BORROWER LLC 
30601 AGOURA RD SUITE 200 

AGOURA HILLS, CA 91301 
 

MADSON RICHARD ARLEN 
307 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MCNAIR KELLY 
307 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

DEFRANCO JOHN S & DIANE B 
309 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

DEFRANCO JOHN S & DIANE B 
309 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

AMH 2014-2 BORROWER LLC 
310 VICTORYLN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

DEFRANCO JOHN S & DIANE B 
311 VALIANTDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

LOVELESS JERRY L & TOMMIE H 
313 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SMITH JOSHUA AND 
MAEGAN HOLLOWAY 

314 VALIANT DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

MAY DEBRA AND RODNEY 
314 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

JOHNSTON CAROLINE 
315 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

LOREDO SARAHI 
315 VICTORY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

2019-1 IH BORROWER LP 
317 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MURPHY CASEY D AND BRIANNA 
318 VALIANT DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

COPPLER GERALD 
319 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SINCLAIR SUE AND 
JEREMY LEE SINCLAIR 
32 LAKEWAY DRIVE  
HEATH, TX 75032 

 

HANSEN JOSH AND 
RACHEL THORNQUIST 

320 VALIANT DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

BLASINGAME DAVID A AND LISA M HOUCHIN 
321 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CONDIT TINA 
322 VALIANT DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

OWENS MICHAEL V 
323 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

GUNDERSON BLAKE AND 
CASEY MARIE VICKERS 

325 VALIANT DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

JOHNSON TIFFANY MICHELLE 
326 VALIANTDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

217



GENERAL DALE A & KATHRYN 
327 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

IMBURGIA JAMES 
329 VALIANT DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RUBENSTEIN ALAN J AND 
GINA L STRICKLIN 

4501 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

ROSHAN KC 
5335 BROADWAY BLVD #210  

GARLAND, TX 75043 
 

 

HENDRICKS LORI L 
5903 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MCKINSTRY FRITZ AND KATHY LIVING TRUST 
P.O. BOX 2195  

TELLURIDE, CO 81435 
 

MCMINN KIMBERLY 
PMB 239 11654 PLAZA AMERICA DR 

RESTON, VA 20190 
 

 

WHITTLE & JOHNSON CUSTOM HOMES INC 
PO BOX 369  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CHANDLERS LANDING COMMUNITY ASSOC 
PO BOX 638  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

218



PUBLIC NOTICE 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 

Case No. Z2020-046: Specific Use Permit for Residential Infill 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Mike Whittle of Whittle & Johnson Custom Homes for the approval of a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-family home on a 0.15-acre parcel of land 
identified as Lot 24, Block E, Chandler’s Landing #16, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for 
single-family residential land uses, addressed as 295 Victory Lane, and take any action necessary.  

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, November 
10, 2020 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, November 16, 2020 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the 
City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 

Henry Lee 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   

Your comments must be received by Monday, November 16, 2020 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City 
Council. 

Sincerely, 

Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 

PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 

Case No. Z2020-046: Specific Use Permit for Residential Infill 
Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below: 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.  
 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 

Name: 

Address: 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

219

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


220



8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12

12

412

4
12

4

Top	of	Slab
-9'-2.0"

Ceiling	Finish	-	Foundation
-1'-2.6"

Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
0'-0.0"

Ceiling	Finish	-	1st	Floor
9'-11.4"

Highest	Ridge
23'-5.5"

Top	of	Slab
-9.2'

Ceiling	Finish	-	Foundation
-1.2'

Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
0.0'

Ceiling	Finish	-	1st	Floor
9.9'

METAL	ROOF Plateline
6'-8''

SIDING

SIDING
SIDING

BRICK BRICK
BRICK BRICK

2030FX

METAL	ROOFPlateline
14'-10''

8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12
8

12

8

12

Top	of	Slab
-9.2'

Ceiling	Finish	-	Foundation
-1.2'

Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
0.0'

Ceiling	Finish	-	1st	Floor
9.9'

Top	of	Slab
-9.2'

Ceiling	Finish	-	Foundation
-1.2'

Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
0.0'

Ceiling	Finish	-	1st	Floor
9.9'

Highest	Ridge
23.5'

SIDING SIDING

SIDING

SIDING

BRICK BRICK BRICK BRICK

8

12
8

12
8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12

Top	of	Slab
-9.2'

Ceiling	Finish	-	Foundation
-1.2'

Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
0.0'

Ceiling	Finish	-	1st	Floor
9.9'

Top	of	Slab
-9.2'

Ceiling	Finish	-	Foundation
-1.2'

Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
0.0'

Ceiling	Finish	-	1st	Floor
9.9'

Highest	Ridge
23.5'

SIDING
SIDING

BRICK
BRICK

SIDING

CINDER	BLOCK

METAL	ROOFMETAL	ROOF

8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12

Top	of	Slab
-9.2'

Ceiling	Finish	-	Foundation
-1.2'

Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
0.0'

Ceiling	Finish	-	1st	Floor
9.9'

Highest	Ridge
23.5'

Top	of	Slab
-9.2'

Ceiling	Finish	-	Foundation
-1.2'

Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
0.0'

Ceiling	Finish	-	1st	Floor
9.9'

2'X4'	SKYLIGHT

SIDING

BRICK
BRICK

8	
:	1
2

8	:	12 8	:	12

8	
:	1
2

8	
:	1
2

4	:	12

8	:	12

8	
:	1
2

8	:	12

8	:	12

8	:	12

8	:	12 8	:	12

8	
:	1
2

4	:	12

4	:	12

8	
:	1
2

8	
:	1
2 8	
:	1
2

8	
:	1
2

8	
:	1
2

8	:	12 8	:	12

4	
:	1
2

4

SHEET:

SCALE:

W
H
IT
TL
E
	&
	J
O
H
N
S
O
N

C
U
S
TO
M
	H
O
M
E
S

DATE:

5/3/20

R
E
S
ID
E
N
C
E
	F
O
R
:

W
A
R
D
LO
W

LO
T:
	1
6,
	B
LO
C
K
:	E

S
U
B
D
IV
IS
IO
N
:	C
H
A
N
D
LE
R
S
	L
A
N
D
IN
G
,	P
H
.1
6

A
D
D
R
E
S
S
:2
95
	V
IC
TO
R
Y
	L
A
N
E

C
IT
Y
,	S
TA
TE
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL
,	T
X

C
O
U
N
TY
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL

214-837-0241
ARCHIMATRIX.ORG

REAR	ELEVATION
1/4"=1'-0"

ROOF	PLAN
1/4"=1'-0"
* ALL	PITCHES	TO	BE	12:12	U.N.O.

RIGHT	ELEVATION
1/4"=1'-0"

LEFT	ELEVATION
1/4"=1'-0"

FRONT	ELEVATION
1/4"=1'-0"

221



5

SHEET:

SCALE:

W
H
IT
TL
E
	&
	J
O
H
N
S
O
N

C
U
S
TO
M
	H
O
M
E
S

DATE:

5/3/20

R
E
S
ID
E
N
C
E
	F
O
R
:

W
A
R
D
LO
W

LO
T:
	1
6,
	B
LO
C
K
:	E

S
U
B
D
IV
IS
IO
N
:	C
H
A
N
D
LE
R
S
	L
A
N
D
IN
G
,	P
H
.1
6

A
D
D
R
E
S
S
:2
95
	V
IC
TO
R
Y
	L
A
N
E

C
IT
Y
,	S
TA
TE
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL
,	T
X

C
O
U
N
TY
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL

214-837-0241
ARCHIMATRIX.ORG

ELEVATION	NOTES:

COVERAGES:
FRONT:		MASONRY-	81%,	SIDING-	19%
REAR:	 	MASONRY	-87%		SIDING	-13%
LEFT:	 	MASONRY-	86%,	SIDING-	14%
RIGHT:	 	MASONRY-	89%		SIDING-	11%

BRICK-PHOENIX	(BILCO	WHITE)
ROOF-ONYX	BLACK
SIDING-TITANIUM	WHITE
GUTTERS-BLACK
SOFFIT-PURE	WHITE
EXT.	PAINT-PURE	WHITE

NO	FENCING
NO	RETAINING	WALLS
NO	POOLS

222



12
6

8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12

8

12

5'
-0
"

Ceiling	Finish	-	Foundation
-1.2'

Top	of	Subfloor	-	1st	Floor
0.0'

Ceiling	Finish	-	1st	Floor
9.9'

Ceiling	Finish - Foundation
-1.2'

Top	of	Subfloor - 1st Floor
0.0'

Ceiling	Finish - 1st Floor
9.9'

Highest	Ridge
23.5'

BRICK
BRICK BRICK

BRICK

ALUM.
SIDINGALUM.

SIDING

ALUM.
SIDING

ALUM.
SIDING

ALUM.
SIDING

DEEPENED	BEAM	SLAB
(NO	RETAINING	WALLS)

6

SHEET:

SCALE:

W
H
IT
TL
E
	&
	J
O
H
N
S
O
N

C
U
S
TO
M
	H
O
M
E
S

DATE:

5/3/20

R
E
S
ID
E
N
C
E
	F
O
R
:

W
A
R
D
LO
W

LO
T:
	1
6,
	B
LO
C
K
:	E

S
U
B
D
IV
IS
IO
N
:	C
H
A
N
D
LE
R
S
	L
A
N
D
IN
G
,	P
H
.1
6

A
D
D
R
E
S
S
:2
95
	V
IC
TO
R
Y
	L
A
N
E

C
IT
Y
,	S
TA
TE
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL
,	T
X

C
O
U
N
TY
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL

214-837-0241
ARCHIMATRIX.ORG

RIGHT	ELEVATION	SECTION
1/4"=1'-0"

223



21'-3"
r=41'-6"

12
0'
-0
"

S
1°
	5
8'
	2
6"
W

92'-9"
S89°	45'	20"W

14
7'
-1
0"

N3
1°
	1
6'
	3
6"
EDN

N

DRAINAGE

21'-3"
r=41'-6"

12
0'
-0
"

S
1°
	5
8'
	2
6"
W

92'-9"
S89°	45'	20"W

14
7'
-1
0"

N3
1°
	1
6'
	3
6"
E

20
'-3
	1
/2
"
18'-3	1/2"

14'-7	1/2"

31
'-1
0"

1'-5	1/2"

20'	BL

12
'	B
L

30'	BL

21'	DRIVE

FOOTPRINT=	2,609
LOT=	6,784

COVERAGE=	38%

THESE	DRAWINGS	ARE	THE	PROPRIETARY	WORK
PRODUCT	AND	PROPERTY	OF	ARCHIMATRIX,	LLC.
DEVELOPED	FOR	THE	EXCLUSIVE	USE	OF
ARCHIMATRIX,	LLC.	USE	OF	THESE	DRAWINGS	AND
CONCEPTS	CONTAINED	THEREIN	WITHOUT	THE
WRITTEN	PERMISSION	OF(	YOUR	COMPANY	NAME
HERE)	IS	PROHIBITED	AND	MAY	SUBJECT	YOU	TO	A
CLAIM	FOR	DAMAGES.

502'

501'

500'

504'

503'

502'

501'

500'

499'

499'

AD
JA
CE
NT
	

RE
CI
DE
NC
E

A
D
JA
C
E
N
T	
C
O
N
C
.	D
R
IV
E
W
A
Y

AD
JA
CE
NT
	

RE
CI
DE
NC
E

A
D
JA
C
E
N
T	
C
O
N
C
.	D
R
IV
E
W
A
Y

498'497'
496'

495'493'

504.8'

505.4'

505.4'

504.3'

503.8'

502.9'

502.4' 502.5''

41'-8.4''

500.2'

502.4'

502.4'
500.9'499.8'499.5'499.5'

498.3'

498.7'

497.5

497.2'

499.8'

497.7'

496.4'

495.7'

495'

501.8'

502.4'

503.1'

501.7'

500'

495.6'

499.9'

503.4'

495.2'

495.5'

499.9'

497.2'

497'

496.6'

499.5'

494.8'

494.8'

494.3'

496.8'
495.5'

494.3'

495.8'

499.2'

492.3'

492.9'

493.9'

494.2'

493.7'

494.5'

493.7'

494'

494.9'

494'

497.2'

493.7'

DOWNSPOUTS

503.8'

495.5'

494.5'

AC

ADJACENT
RET.	WALL

AD
JA
CE
NT
	C
O
NC
.

DR
IV
EW
AY

SW
AL
E

MISCELLANEOUS	NOTES:

EACH	BEDROOM	TO	HAVE	A	MINIMUM	WINDOW	OPENING	OF	5.7	SQ.	FT.
WITH	A	MINIMUM	WIDTH	OF	20	IN.	AND	A	SILL	LESS	THAN	44"	ABOVE
FIN.	FLR.

ALL	GLAZING	WITHIN	18	IN.	OF	THE	FLOOR	AND/OR	WITHIN	24	IN.	OF
ANY	DOOR	(REGARDLESS	OF	WALL	PLANE)	ARE	TO	HAVE	SAFETY
GLAZING.		ALL	GLAZING	WITHIN	60	IN.	OF	TUB	OR	SHOWER	FLOOR,	60
IN.	OF	A	STAIR	LANDING	OR	GREATER	THAN	9	SQUARE	FEET	ARE	TO
HAVE	SAFETY	GLAZING

SKYLIGHTS	ARE	TO	BE	GLAZED	WITH	TEMPERED	GLASS	ON	OUTSIDE
AND	LAMINATED	GLASS	ON	THE	INSIDE	(UNLESS	PLEXIGLASS).	GLASS
TO	HAVE	MAXIMUM	CLEAR	SPAN	OF	25	IN.	AND	FRAME	IS	TO	BE
ATTACHED	TO	A	2x	CURB	WITH	A	MINIMUM	OF	4	IN.	ABOVE	ROOF
PLANE.

ALL	TUB	AND	SHOWER	ENCLOSURES	ARE	TO	BE	GLAZED	WITH	SAFETY
GLASS.

ALL	EXTERIOR	WINDOWS	ARE	TO	BE	DOUBLE	GLAZED	AND	ALL
EXTERIOR	DOORS	ARE	TO	BE	SOLID	CORE	WITH	WEATHERSTRIPPING.
PROVIDE	1/2	IN.	DEADBOLT	LOCKS	ON	ALL	EXTERIOR	DOORS,	AND
LOCKING	DEVICES	ON	ALL	DOORS	AND	WINDOWS	WITHIN	10	FT.
(VERTICAL)	OF	GRADE.	PROVIDE	PEEPHOLE	54-66	IN.	ABOVE	FIN.
FLOOR	ON	EXTERIOR	ENTRY	DOORS.

PROVIDE	ONE	SMOKE	DETECTOR	IN	EACH	ROOM	AND	ONE	IN	EACH
CORRIDOR	ACCESSING	BEDROOMS.	CONNECT	SMOKE	DETECTORS	TO
HOUSE	POWER	AND		INTER-CONNECT	SMOKE	DETECTORS	TO	HOUSE
POWER	AND	INTERCONNECT	SO	THAT,	WHEN	ANY	ONE	IS	TRIPPED,
THEY	ALL	WILL	SOUND.	PROVIDE	BATTERY		BACKUP	FOR	ALL	UNITS.

PROVIDE	COMBUSTION	AIR	VENTS	(W/SCREEN	AND	BACK	DAMPER)
FOR	GAS	FIRE-PLACE	AND	ANY	OTHER	APPLIANCES	WITH	AN	OPEN
FLAME.

BATHROOMS	AND	UTILITY	ROOMS	ARE	TO	BE	VENTED	TO	THE
OUTSIDE	WITH	A	FAN	CAPABLE	OF	PRODUCING	A	MINIMUM	OF	5	AIR
EXCHANGES	PER	HOUR.	

RANGE	HOODS	ARE	ALSO	TO	BE	VENTED	TO	THE	OUTSIDE.

ELECTRICAL	RECEPTACLES	IN	BATHROOMS,	KITCHENS	AND	GARAGES
SHALL	BE	G.F.I.	OR	G.F.I.C.	PER	NATIONAL	ELECTRICAL	CODE
REQUIREMENTS.

INSULATE	ALL	ACCESS	DOORS/	HATCHES	TO	CRAWL	SPACES	AND
ATTICS	TO	THE	EQUIVALENT	RATING	OF	THE	WALL,	FLOOR	OR	CEILING
THROUGH	WHICH	THEY	PENETRATE.	UNO	ON	PLANS.

ATTIC									R-38
WALLS							R-21
FLOORS				R-30

PROVIDE	CRAWLSPACE	VENTING	TO	MEET	THE	REQUIREMENTS	OF
THE	2006
	EDITION	OF	THE	I.R.C.

PROVIDE	SPECIAL	INSPECTION,	SPECIAL	TESTING,	REPORTING	AND
COMPLIANCE	PROCEDURES	ACCORDING	TO	THE	2006	INTERNATIONAL
BUILDING	CODE.

SPECIAL	INSPECTOR	QUALIFICATIONS:	DEMONSTRATE	COMPETENCE,
TO	THE	SATISFACTION	OF	THE	BUILDING	OFFICIAL,	FOR	INSPECTION
OF	THE	PARTICULAR	TYPE	OF	CONSTRUCTION	OR	OPERATION	IN
QUESTION.	PRIOR	TO	THE	BEGINNING	OF	CONSTRUCTION,	REVIEW
THE	SPECIAL	INSPECTION	REQUIREMENTS	WITH	THE	ARCHITECT,
ENGINEER,	BUILDING	OFFICIAL,	GENERAL	CONTRACTOR	AND	SPECIAL
INSPECTORS.	

DUTIES	OF	THE	SPECIAL	INSPECTOR	INCLUDE,	BUT	ARE	NOT	LIMITED
TO:
OBSERVE	THE	WORK	FOR	CONFORMANCE	WITH	THE	APPROVED
PERMIT	DRAWINGS	AND	SPECIFICATIONS.		BRING	DISCREPANCIES	TO
THE	IMMEDIATE	ATTENTION	OF	THE	GENERAL	CONTRACTOR	FOR
BUILDING	OFFICIAL.
FURNISH	INSPECTION	REPORTS	FOR	EACH	INSPECTION	TO	THE
BUILDING	OFFICIAL,	ARCHITECT,	ENGINEER,	GENERAL	CONTRACTOR
AND	OWNER	IN	A	TIMELY	MANNER.
SUBMIT	A	FINAL	REPORT	STATING	WHETHER	THE	WORK	REQUIRING
SPECIAL	INSPECTION	WAS	INSPECTED,	AND	WHETHER	THE	WORK	IS	IN
CONFORMANCE	WITH	THE	APPROVED	PERMIT	DRAWINGS	AND
SPECIFICATIONS.

DUTIES	OF	THE	GENERAL	CONTRACTOR	INCLUDE,	BUT	ARE	NOT
LIMITED	TO:
NOTIFY	SPECIAL	INSPECTOR	THAT	WORK	IS	READY	FOR	INSPECTION
AT	LEAST	24	HOURS	BEFORE	THE	INSPECTION	IS	REQUIRED.
MAINTAIN	ACCESS	TO	WORK	REQUIRING	SPECIAL	INSPECTION	UNTIL
IT	HAS	BEEN	OBSERVED	AND	INDICATED	TO	BE	IN	CONFORMANCE	BY
THE	SPECIAL	INSPECTOR	AND	APPROVED	BY	THE	BUILDING	OFFICIAL.
PROVIDE	THE	SPECIAL	INSPECTOR	WITH	ACCESS	TO	APPROVED
PERMIT	DRAWINGS	AND	SPECIFICATIONS	AT	THE	JOB	SITE.
MAINTAIN	JOB-SITE	COPIES	OF	ALL	REPORTS	SUBMITTED	BY	THE
SPECIAL	INSPECTOR.

DEFINITIONS:
CONTINUOUS	INSPECTION:	THE	SPECIAL	INSPECTOR	IS	OBSERVING
THE	WORK	REQUIRING	SPECIAL	INSPECTION	AT	ALL	TIMES.
PERIODIC	INSPECTION:	THE	SPECIAL	INSPECTOR	IS	ON	SITE	AS
REQUIRED	TO	CONFIRM	THAT	THE	WORK	REQUIRING	SPECIAL
INSPECTION	IS	IN	CONFORMANCE.

1

SHEET:

SCALE:

W
H
IT
TL
E
	&
	J
O
H
N
S
O
N

C
U
S
TO
M
	H
O
M
E
S

DATE:

5/3/20

R
E
S
ID
E
N
C
E
	F
O
R
:

W
A
R
D
LO
W

LO
T:
	1
6,
	B
LO
C
K
:	E

S
U
B
D
IV
IS
IO
N
:	C
H
A
N
D
LE
R
S
	L
A
N
D
IN
G
,	P
H
.1
6

A
D
D
R
E
S
S
:2
95
	V
IC
TO
R
Y
	L
A
N
E

C
IT
Y
,	S
TA
TE
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL
,	T
X

C
O
U
N
TY
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL

214-837-0241
ARCHIMATRIX.ORG

PLOT	PLAN
10'-0"=1'-0"

DRAINAGE	PLAN
10'-0"=1'-0"

224



S

S

HBHB

2020FX 2020FX

3050SH 3050SH

28
70

40
70

2870

2870 2870 4070

4070

507050705070

28
70

2068

28
70

2870

UP

5'-0	1/2"3'-4	1/2"5'-4"2'-0"2'-0"2'-0"

11'-8	1/2" 12'-0" 18'-5" 2'-4" 5'-10"

50'-3	1/2"

5'-2	1/2" 2'-4"

1'
-2
"

7'
-3
"

5'
-4
"

11
'-2
	1
/2
"

2'
-1
	1
/2
"

27
'-1
"

4'
-3
"

9"9"
3'
-9
"

8'
-2
	1
/2
"

4'
-6
	1
/2
"

18
'-8
"

35
'-1
1"

2'
-1
	1
/2
"

4'
-3
"

3'-8"6'-6"6'-6"3'-8	1/2"

2'-6	1/2"9'-4"2'-2	1/2"20'-4	1/2"3'-3	1/2"14'-1"6'-0"

57'-10"

4'
-0
"

6'
-2
	1
/2
"

5'-3	1/2" 13'-9	1/2" 3'-3	1/2" 20'-8	1/2" 14'-1"

4'-1	1/2" 6'-5" 6'-1" 6'-5" 20'-8	1/2" 6'-6	1/2"

4'-1	1/2" 6'-11" 12'-8"

9"
3'
-1
"

8'
-2
	1
/2
"

4'
-6
	1
/2
"

4'
-1
	1
/2
"

10
'-3
"

4'
-3
	1
/2
"

9"
3'
-1
1"

8'
-7
"

3'
-4
"

4'
-1
	1
/2
"

10
'-6
	1
/2
"

20
'-8
	1
/2
"

2'
-1
	1
/2
"

23
'-9
	1
/2
"

1'-0"5'-8"1'-0"5'-8	1/2"1'-0"5'-8	1/2"1'-0"

1'
-0
"

MECH/STORAGE

PATIO

UNFINISHED

GAME	ROOM

BEDROOM	#3BATH

UNCOVERED	PATIO

8'-0''	CEILING
STAIN.	CONC

8'-0''	CEILING
STAIN.	CONC

8'-0''	CEILING
STAIN.	CONC

8'-0''	CEILING
STAIN.	CONC

8'-0''	CEILING
STAIN.	CONC

8'-0''	CEILING
CONC

LI
N
E
N

5'-3''	X	3'-1''
SHOWER
1	1/2''	DROP

12''X12''
COLUMN

DOOR	SCHEDULE
LABEL QTY FLOOR SIZE DESCRIPTION
2068 	1 0 2068	L SHOWER-GLASS	SLAB
2068 	1 1 2068	R SHOWER-GLASS	SLAB
2080 	2 1 2080	L	IN HINGED-DOOR	P03
2080 	1 1 2080	L	IN HINGED-GLASS	SLAB
2080 	1 1 2080	R 2	DR.	BIFOLD-LOUVERED
2080 	2 1 2080	R	IN HINGED-DOOR	P03
2680 	1 1 2680	L/R	IN DOUBLE	HINGED-DOOR	P03
2868 	1 1 2868	L BARN-DOOR	P03
2870 	2 0 2870	L	IN HINGED-DOOR	P03
2870 	1 0 2870	R	EX EXT.	HINGED-DOOR	E02
2870 	2 0 2870	R	IN HINGED-DOOR	P03
2880 	1 1 2880	L POCKET-DOOR	P03
2880 	1 1 2880	L	EX EXT.	HINGED-DOOR	E02
2880 	3 1 2880	L	IN HINGED-DOOR	P03
2880 	1 1 2880	R POCKET-DOOR	P03
2880 	2 1 2880	R	IN HINGED-DOOR	P03
3068 	1 1 3068	R	EX EXT.	HINGED-DOOR	P01
3080 	1 1 3080	R	EX EXT.	HINGED-DOOR	E02
4070 	3 0 4070	L/R	IN DOUBLE	HINGED-DOOR	P03
5070 	1 0 5070	L	EX EXT.	SLIDER-GLASS	PANEL
5070 	2 0 5070	R	EX EXT.	SLIDER-GLASS	PANEL
9070 	2 1 9070 GARAGE-PANEL

WINDOW	SCHEDULE
LABEL QTY FLOOR SIZE DESCRIPTION TOP
1010FX 	1 1 1010FX FIXED	GLASS 98	1/2"
1068FX 	1 1 1068FX FIXED	GLASS 80"
2020FX 	2 0 2020FX FIXED	GLASS 84"
2020FX 	2 1 2020FX FIXED	GLASS 80"
2020FX 	3 1 2020FX FIXED	GLASS 87"
2030FX 	1 2 2030FX FIXED	GLASS 58"
2626SC 	3 1 2626SC SINGLE	CASEMENT-HR 102"
2626SC 	3 2 2626SC SINGLE	CASEMENT-HR 90"
2630SH 	1 1 2630SH SINGLE	HUNG 84"
2660SH 	1 1 2660SH SINGLE	HUNG 96"
2860SH 	1 1 2860SH SINGLE	HUNG 80"
3010FX 	6 1 3010FX FIXED	GLASS 111"
3010FX 	1 1 3010FX FIXED	GLASS 98	1/2"
3050SH 	2 0 3050SH SINGLE	HUNG 84"
3060DH 	2 1 3060DH DOUBLE	HUNG 80"
3060SH 	2 1 3060SH SINGLE	HUNG 84"
3060SH 	4 1 3060SH SINGLE	HUNG 96"
4020DC 	1 1 4020DC DOUBLE	CASEMENT-LHL/RHR 84"

SQUARE	FOOTAGES
1ST	FLOOR

PORCH

GARAGE

TOTAL	UNDER	ROOF

1498

90

512

4544

2ND	FLOOR 2010

TOTAL	AIR	CONDITIONED 3508

PATIO 434

S

S

UP

R4

R4 R4

R4
R4

R4

R4
R4 R4

R4

R4

R4 R4 R4

R4

R4

GFCI

3
3

R4

R4

R4 R4

R4 R4

R4R4

3

3

WP

Electrical	Schedule
2D
Symbol Qty Floor Description

	2 0 Basic	Ceiling	Fan

	4 0 Caged	Lantern	Sconce

	15 0 Duplex

	1 0 GFCI

	1 0 Medium	Double	Surface	Mounted	Tube	Light	[48W21D]	[48W21D]

	1 0 Nicosia

	24 0 Recessed	Down	Light	4

	12 0 Single	Pole

	4 0 Three	Way

	1 0 Weatherproof

	3 1 Arts	&	Crafts	Pendant

	5 1 Basic	Ceiling	Fan

	1 1 Clothes	Dryer

	2 1 Drizzle	Round	Chandelier

	46 1 Duplex

	4 1 Duplex	(weatherproof)

	3 1 Four	Way

	3 1 GFCI

	1 1 Garbage	Disposal

	2 1 Medium	Double	Surface	Mounted	Tube	Light	[48W21D]	[48W21D]

	2 1 Medium	Surface	Mounted	Tube	Light	[48W9D]	[48W9D]

	2 1 Narciss	Sconce

	4 1 Nicosia

	50 1 Recessed	Down	Light	4

	28 1 Single	Pole

	1 1 Single	Pole	Dimmer

	10 1 Three	Way

GFCI

R4

3

WP

CD

WP

4

GFCI

GD

R4

D
M

3

GFCI

R4

3

WP

CD

WP

4

GFCI

GD

R4

D
M

3

MECH/STORAGE

PATIO

UNFINISHED

GAME	ROOM

BEDROOM	#3BATH

UNCOVERED	PATIO

2P-1

SHEET:

SCALE:

W
H
IT
TL
E
	&
	J
O
H
N
S
O
N

C
U
S
TO
M
	H
O
M
E
S

DATE:

5/3/20

R
E
S
ID
E
N
C
E
	F
O
R
:

W
A
R
D
LO
W

LO
T:
	1
6,
	B
LO
C
K
:	E

S
U
B
D
IV
IS
IO
N
:	C
H
A
N
D
LE
R
S
	L
A
N
D
IN
G
,	P
H
.1
6

A
D
D
R
E
S
S
:2
95
	V
IC
TO
R
Y
	L
A
N
E

C
IT
Y
,	S
TA
TE
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL
,	T
X

C
O
U
N
TY
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL

214-837-0241
ARCHIMATRIX.ORG

FIRST	FLOOR
1/4"=1'-0"

FIRST	FLOOR	ELECTRICAL
1/4"=1'-0"

225



DN

3

R4

R4

3

R4

R4

R4

4
3
3

4
R4 R4 R4

R4 R4 R4

WP
R4

R4

R4

R4

GFCI

GD

D
M

3

R4

R4

R4

R4

R4

R4

R4

R4

R4 R4

R4R4

3
3

R4

R4

R4

R4

R4
R4

R4

R4 R4 R4

R4 R4

WP

R4

GFCI

GFCI

CD

R4

R4

R4 R4

R4R4

33
R4

R4

3

WP

WP

4

R4
R4

17'-11"

21
'-9
	1
/2
"

21'

25
'-7
"

MASTER	SUITE

KITCHEN

GARAGE

STUDIO

MASTER	CLOSET

GUESTROOM

CLOSET

FAMILY	ROOM

DINING

BATH

BATH OFFICE

PORCH

MASTER	BATH

PATIO

ENTRY

PNTRY

UTILITY

DN

HB

HB

2068

3010FX3080
3010FX
2660SH 3060SH

3010FX
3060SH
3010FX

3060SH
3010FX

3060SH
3010FX

90709070

2880

2880

2020FX 2020FX

2080

20
80

20
80

2880

3060DH 3060DH

26
26
S
C

26
26
S
C

26
26
S
C

28
80

26
80

2880

4020DC

2080

3060SH3060SH

3068
3010FX

1068FX
1010FX

28
80

2880

2880

2860SH

2080

2020FX 2020FX 2020FX

28
80

28
80

28
68

2080

2880

26
30
S
H

20'-8	1/2"1'-7"1'-4"5'-0	1/2"2'-0"2'-0"5'-0	1/2"2'-0"2'-0"2'-0"

6'-8	1/2" 10'-8" 6'-4	1/2"

57'-10"

5'-7"
2'-4	1/2"

2'-10"
2'-7	1/2"

2'-0" 2'-11	1/2"

2'-7" 3'-3"

2'-4" 5'-10" 5'-2	1/2"

2'-4"

2'
-8
"
2'
-1
0	
1/
2"
2'
-1
0	
1/
2" 1'
-7
	1
/2
"

10
'-0
	1
/2
"

4'
-9
"

3'
-1
0	
1/
2"

3'
-4
	1
/2
"

5'
-4
"

11
'-2
	1
/2
"

2'
-1
	1
/2
"

69
'-9
"

3'
-7
"

6'
-3
	1
/2
"

9'
-1
0	
1/
2"

14
'-4
	1
/2
"

6'
-1
1	
1/
2"

21
'-4
"

9"
16
'-6
"

7'
-4
"

11
'-0
"

10
'-1
	1
/2
"

22
'-8
"

68
'-4
	1
/2
"

2'
-1
	1
/2
"

9'
-5
"

3'-2"3'-0"3'-2"

2'-6	1/2"9'-4"2'-3"23'-7	1/2"14'-1"6'-0"

57'-10"

9'
-5
"

8"
9'
-8
"

9"

23'-9" 34'-1"

8"5'-4"

2'-3	1/2"
2'-4	1/2"

11"

4'
-5
	1
/2
"

1'
-5
"

6'
-0
"

2'
-0
"

4'
-9
"

11
'-7
"

1'
-5
"

5'
-8
"

13
'-2
"

11
'-0
"

2'
-6
	1
/2
"

10
'-5
	1
/2
"

8"

18
'-4
"

10
'-5
"

10
'-2
	1
/2
"

3'
-8
	1
/2
"

2'
-0
	1
/2
"

4'
-0
	1
/2
"

11
'-0
"

4'
-2
"

4'
-1
	1
/2
"

2'
-6
"

3'
-9
	1
/2
"

9	
1/
2"

6	
1/
2"

3'
-1
1"

5'
-5
"

11
	1
/2
"

2'
-4
	1
/2
"

3'
-0
"

2'
-4
	1
/2
"

4'
-1
1"

7'
-5
"

3'
-7
"

2'
-6
"

4'
-3
"

1'
-2
	1
/2
"

2'
-6
	1
/2
"

22
'-8
"

4'-0	1/2"13'-1"6'-4"

2'-9	1/2" 3'-6	1/2" 1'-6" 4'-8" 5'-1" 1'-10" 3'-7	1/2" 20'-8	1/2" 3'-7	1/2" 2'-0	1/2" 5'-4	1/2"

2'-6	1/2"9'-4"1'-10"5"

4'-1	1/2" 8'-6	1/2" 2'-4" 4'-0" 4'-5" 18'-8	1/2"

12'-7	1/2" 1'-4" 2'-1" 3'-9" 3'-3" 6'-4" 9'-9	1/2"

MASTER	SUITE

KITCHEN

GARAGE

STUDIO

MASTER	CLOSET

GUESTROOM

CLOSET

FAMILY	ROOM

DINING

BATH

BATH OFFICE

PORCH

MASTER	BATH

10'-0''	CEILING
CONC.

10'-0''	CEILING
STAIN.	CONC

10'-0''	CEILING
STAIN.	CONC

10'-0''	CEILING
TILE

10'-0''	CEILING
TILE

10'-0''	CEILING
TILE

VAULTED	CEILING
TILE

10'-0''	CEILING
TILE

VAULTED	CEILING
TILE

BOX	UP	TO	11'
TILE

BOX	UP	TO	11'
STAIN.	CONC 10'-0''	CEILING

STAIN.	CONC.

10'-0''	CEILING
CONC.

10'-0''	CEILING
TILE

10'-0''	CEILING
TILE

PATIO
10'-0''	CEILING

CONC.

R
E
F

DW

G
A
S
	C
K
TP

DBL
OVEN

SINK

8''	COLUMNS
8''	BEAMS

B
A
R
N
	D
O
O
R

DESK

BARN	DOOR

20
''	
O
V
E
R
H
A
N
G
	

@
	C
N
TR
	H
T

2X
6	
W
A
LL

2X
6	
W
A
LL

2X
6	
W
A
LL

2X6	WALL

2X
6	
W
A
LL

2X
6	
W
A
LL

SHOWER
5'-3''	X	3'-2''
1	1/2''	DROP

N
IC
H
E

10
'-0
''	
C
LG

502

ENTRY

PNTRY

UTILITY

BEAM

LINEN

5'-5''	X	3'-4''
SHOWER
1	1/2''	DROP

SINK

ICE

3

SHEET:

SCALE:

W
H
IT
TL
E
	&
	J
O
H
N
S
O
N

C
U
S
TO
M
	H
O
M
E
S

DATE:

5/3/20

R
E
S
ID
E
N
C
E
	F
O
R
:

W
A
R
D
LO
W

LO
T:
	1
6,
	B
LO
C
K
:	E

S
U
B
D
IV
IS
IO
N
:	C
H
A
N
D
LE
R
S
	L
A
N
D
IN
G
,	P
H
.1
6

A
D
D
R
E
S
S
:2
95
	V
IC
TO
R
Y
	L
A
N
E

C
IT
Y
,	S
TA
TE
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL
,	T
X

C
O
U
N
TY
:	R
O
C
K
W
A
LL

214-837-0241
ARCHIMATRIX.ORG

SECOND	FLOOR	ELECTRICAL
1/4"=1'-0"

SECOND	FLOOR
1/4"=1'-0"

226



Adjacent Housing Attributes

Address Housing Type Year Built House SF Accessory Building SF Exterior Materials
246 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2004 3646 N/A Brick
247 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2004 3,106 N/A Stone & Brick
251 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2000 2,344 N/A Brick
253 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 1994 2,629 N/A Brick
256 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2012 3,528 N/A Brick
257 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2014 3,168 N/A Stucco
262 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2000 2,628 N/A Brick
264 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 1994 2,205 N/A Brick
268 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 1995 2,496 N/A Brick
272 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 1997 1,788 N/A Brick
281 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 1995 3,001 N/A Brick
284 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2003 2,462 N/A Brick
285 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 1994 1,897 N/A Brick
289 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2007 2,307 N/A Brick
291 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2005 2,057 N/A Stucco
293 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 1993 2153 N/A Brick
295 Victory Lane RCAD Indicates Vacant N/A

297 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2002 2,661 N/A Brick
299 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2007 2,262 N/A Brick
306 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2004 3,047 N/A Brick
307 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 2004 2,589 N/A Stone & Brick
310 Victory Lane Single-Family Home 1995 2,002 N/A Brick

Averages: 2001 2,570 

Subject Property

227



246 Victory Lane 

247 Victory Lane 

228



 
251 Victory Lane 
 

 
253 Victory Lane 
 

229



 
256 Victory Lane 
 

 
257 Victory Lane 
 

230



 
262 Victory Lane 
 

 
264 Victory Lane 
 

231



 
268 Victory Lane 
 

 
272 Victory Lane 

232



 
281 Victory Lane 

 
284 Victory Lane 

233



 
285 Victory Lane 

 
289 Victory Lane 

234



 
291 Victory Lane 

 
293 Victory Lane 

235



 
295 Victory Lane 

 
297 Victory Lane 

236



 
299 Victory Lane 

 
306 Victory Lane 

237



 
307 Victory Lane 

 
310 Victory Lane 

238



CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-2XX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 8 (PD-8) AND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
(UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL,
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, 
SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR 
RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO
ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME 
ON A 0.15-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 24, 
BLOCK E, CHANDLER’S LANDING, PHASE 16, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE 
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’
OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Major Rush for the approval of a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision to allow the construction of a 
single-family home on a 0.15-acre parcel of land being described as Lot 24, Block E, Chandler’s 
Landing, Phase 16, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development 
District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 295 Victory Lane, and being 
more specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of  this ordinance, which herein after shall 
be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] and Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) of the City of Rockwall should 
be amended as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 

SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and Planned 
Development District 8 (PD-8) of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same 
is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an 
Established Subdivision to allow for the construction of a single-family home in an established 
subdivision in accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 

SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

239



Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.07, Single-Family 
7 (SF-7) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and to the requirements set forth in Planned Development District 
8 (PD-8) -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with the following 
conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 

The following conditions pertain to the construction of a single-family home on the Subject 
Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required: 

 

1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan 
as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 

 

2) The construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to 
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 

 

3) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted 
by the City of Rockwall, this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by 
the property owner shall be required. 

 
 
2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this 

ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings 
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 

 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

240



 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 7TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2020. 
 
 
 
     

 Jim Pruitt, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  November 16, 2020 
 

2nd Reading: December 7, 2020 
 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

241



Address: 295 Victory Lane 
Legal Description: Lot 24, Block E, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 16 
 
 

 
 
 
  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

242



D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

243



 

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

11
.1

6.
20

20

244



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council     
 
FROM:  Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Boydstun Reconstruction Project 
  
 
Mayor Pruitt has requested the following agenda item for Monday’s city council meeting: 
 

Discuss and consider the Boydstun reconstruction project, and take any 
action necessary. 

245


	11/16/20
	 Consider approval of the minutes from the November 2, 2020 regular City Council meeting, and take any action necessary.
	 11-02-2020 CC Mtg. Minutes

	 Consider approval of an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances in Chapter 26 'Motor Vehicles & Traffic', Article VII 'Stopping, Standing, or Parking,' Section 26-505 'Prohibited in Specific Places' to include the prohibition of parking on South Lakeshore Drive and Summit Ridge, and take any action necessary. (2nd Reading)
	 Ord (2nd Reading)

	 Consider entering into a Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with the City of Pearland, Texas and authorizing the City Manager to execute a Cooperative Purchasing agreement and take any action necessary.
	 Agreement

	 P2020-044 - Consider a request by Pat Atkins of KPA Consulting on behalf of Pat Atkins of CDGT/Rockwall/2016, LLC for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Saddle Star North Subdivision consisting of 92 single-family residential lots on a 44.56-acre tract of land identified as Tract 3 of the T. R. Bailey Survey, Abstract No. 30, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 80 (PD-80) for Single-Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District land uses, generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection of FM-552 and John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Survey
	 Preliminary Plat
	 Preliminary Utility and Drainage Plan
	 Closure Report

	 P2020-046 - Consider a request by Humberto Johnson of the Skorburg Co. on behalf of the Gideon Grove Addition, LTD for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for Phase 2 of the Gideon Grove Subdivision consisting of 84 single-family residential lots on a 30.36-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Tract 1-01 of the S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 13, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 84 (PD-84) for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses, generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection of E. Quail Run Road and John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Legal Description
	 Survey
	 Preliminary Plat
	 Preliminary Drainage Plan
	 Preliminary Utility Plan
	 Preliminary Landscape Plan

	 Appointment with Jim Rosenberg to hear presentation regarding a concept plan for Harbor Bay Marina, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo
	 Harbor Bay ReDevelopment & Expansion

	 Z2020-043 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Maxwell Fisher, AICP of Master Plan on behalf of Wolverine Self-Storage Investments-Rockwall EDP, LLC for the approval of an ordinance amending an existing Specific Use Permit for the purpose of increasing the number of storage units permitted by Ordinance No. 14-25 to account for the number of storage units constructed on a 2.857-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block A, Platinum Storage Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, addressed as 1245 SH-276, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 HOA Notification Map
	 Neighborhood Notification Email
	 Property Owner Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification List
	 Public Notice
	 Property Owner Notifications
	 Ordinance No. 14-25
	 Information Provided to the P&Z on October 28, 2020
	 Applicant's Letter to the City Council
	 Applicants Letter
	 Property Owner Letter
	 Concept Plan
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Z2020-044 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Casey Cox of Costal Plains Estates for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-family home on a 0.21-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 24, Block A, Chandler's Landing, Phase 7, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 102 Thistle Place, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 HOA Notification Map
	 Neighborhood Notification Email
	 Property Owner Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification List
	 Public Notice
	 Building Elevations
	 Residential Plot Plan
	 Floor Plan
	 Housing Analysis
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Z2020-045 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties, LLC on behalf of Jen-Liang Wu of Unison Investment, LP for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from a Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District and Neighborhood Services (NS) District to a Planned Development District for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses on a 121.16-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the J. M. Gass Survey, Abstract No. 88, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District and Neighborhood Services (NS) District, generally located at the southeast corner of the intersection of FM-1141 and FM-552, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 HOA Notification Map
	 Neighborhood Notification Email
	 Property Owner Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification List
	 Public Notice
	 Property Owner Notifications
	 Applicants Letter
	 Survey
	 SCS Easements
	 Concept Plan
	 Fiscal Impact Analysis Tool
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Z2020-046 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Mike Whittle of Whittle & Johnson Custom Homes for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-family home on a 0.15-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 24, Block E, Chandler's Landing #16, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 295 Victory Lane, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 HOA Notification Map
	 Neighborhood Notification Email
	 Property Owner Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification List
	 Public Notice
	 Property Owner Notifications
	 Building Elevations
	 Residential Plot Plan
	 Floor Plan
	 Housing Analysis
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Discuss and consider the Boydstun reconstruction project, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo




